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Lone Star National Bank will be the respected leader in financial services committed to 
building customer relationships and helping them succeed financially.

With our Customers, Employees, Community and Shareholders, Lone Star National Bank 
stands by the following Pillars:

               Customers: Being a trusted financial advisor by providing superior customer   
                                  service through an array of financial products.

               Employees: Providing a rewarding work environment with opportunities for 
                                  career advancement and professional development.

              Community: Championing our communities with pride and integrity to 
                                  promote growth.

           Shareholders: Creating a culture to operate efficiently and effectively to 
                                  maximize shareholder value.

                Our Values which support our Pillars
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Our goal is to make the
customer’s banking experience

exceed their expectations.
 

- S. David Deanda, Jr.
President



Letter to Our Shareholders,
Customers and Friends

Letter to our Shareholders, Customers and Friends

This past year our organization focused on developing and implementing 
corporate standards and expectations company wide. The focus was on 
accountability and the impact it had both on making decisions at the 
lowest possible level to improve customer efficiency and on streamlining 
business decisions. This was done to expedite quicker decision making at 
all levels of the organization.

The process was effective in creating more of a personal relationship 
approach with our customers rather than a sales process. That approach 
has allowed us to have a better understanding of our customers’ 
operations and make sure that the products and services we offered were 
appropriate for our customers. This sales culture has had a positive impact 
on our organization and we are re-establishing our vision of becoming our 
customers’ primary financial institution.

Our organization continues to focus on regulatory matters and has made 
significant improvement in all areas that have experienced compliance 
shortfalls. The Executive team has adjusted our policies and procedures 
accordingly to assure compliance throughout these areas. As a result, we 
have experienced positive results throughout the organization.  

Our earnings picture has improved year after year. I am excited to say that 
the best is yet to come. We are working hard to make sure that we offer 
the best services to our customers. Our goal is to make the customer’s 
banking experience exceed their expectations. Our expectation is that we 
will grow our customer base, as they refer family and friends. In turn the 
bank will experience an improvement to our bottom line. Our focus is on 
quality customer service. Our goal is to be the best community bank with 
the best online delivery at the most reasonable price.

The San Antonio market has continued to grow and has added tremendous 

value to our company. We are focusing on loan growth and developing a large referral base of 
customers. The bank has done well in that market as San Antonio has continued to have a strong and 
vibrant economy. We are making significant strides in developing new relationships and expanding our 
share of the market.

Both of the bank operating subsidiaries have experienced substantial growth year over year and both 
have increased their book of business. Our investment subsidiary was once again recognized as one of 
the best performing investment teams in LPL’s banking division, and we expect that to continue as we 
focus on expanding our market share. I am excited to report that all this continues to reflect on building 
and mining of existing relationships.

Today I am excited about our organization’s focus: serving our communities that we serve, being 
involved in those communities, and helping those communities we serve grow. Our bankers are 
professionals who believe in the mission of doing things right, focusing on serving our customers and 
building relationships. Our mission will be to go above and beyond the standards that have been set.  
Our goal as an organization is to create legacy that others are measured by. It’s not the leader that 
matters, it’s whether he or she has created an organization that lives up to the expectations of our 
customers and our shareholders. At Lone Star National Bank it is understood that we ultimately will be 
measured by whether or not we lived up to the expectations of our customers. Our sole purpose and 
goal is to make sure we not only live up to them but exceed them.

We at Lone Star National Bank are looking forward to an exciting future. We are committed to be the 
best because we know our customers expect the best!

Blessings,

S. David Deanda, Jr.
President
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Saludos Afectuosos a Nuestros Accionistas, Clientes y Amigos:

El año pasado nuestra organización se enfocó principalmente en el desarrollo e implementación  de normas y expectativas 
corporativas en toda la empresa. La atención se centró en el principio de responsabilidad y en el impacto que esta tiene en la toma 
de decisiones en todos los niveles dentro de la organización.  El objetivo primordial fue hacer más ágil y eficiente este proceso, 
para así mejorar  el servicio al cliente en todas las áreas de nuestra institución.

El éxito de este proceso fue el haber establecido una relación mucho más personalizada con nuestros clientes,  en lugar de haber 
tenido un exclusivamente un proceso de ventas; esto nos permitió entender mejor las operaciones de nuestros clientes y 
asegurarnos de que los productos y servicios que ofrecemos  fueran los más adecuados para ellos. Sin embargo, nuestra cultura 
de ventas también ha tenido un impacto positivo en nuestra institución y estamos restableciendo nuestra visión de convertirnos 
en la principal institución financiera de nuestros clientes.

Nuestra organización continua concentrándose en los temas regulatorios y ha logrado mejoras substanciales en todas las áreas 
que experimentaron fallas normativas a través de nuestra organización.  El equipo Ejecutivo ha ajustado nuestras políticas y 
procedimientos para garantizar el cumplimiento normativo en todas estas áreas y, por consiguiente, hemos experimentado 
resultados positivos dentro de la institución .

Nuestros ingresos han mejorado año tras año, y por ello me emociona comunicarles que lo mejor está por venir. Estamos 
trabajando arduamente para asegurarnos de poder ofrecer los mejores servicios a nuestros clientes y exceder sus expectativas en 
relación  a su experiencia con nuestro banco. Nuestro objetivo es el de crecer nuestra base de clientes y que éstos a su vez refieran 
a sus familiares y amigos lo cual traerá como resultado que nuestro banco mejore su estado de resultados. Nuestro enfoque es de 
proveer  a nuestros clientes de un servicio de alta calidad y nuestra meta es el de ser el mejor banco comunitario con el mejor 
sistema de distribución de la banca en línea el mejor precio posible.

El mercado de San Antonio continua creciendo y ha añadido un enorme valor a nuestra empresa. Estamos enfocados en el 
crecimiento de los créditos y en el desarrollo de una extensa base de referencias de clientes. A nuestro banco le ha ido muy bien 
en este mercado al mismo tiempo que esta ciudad continua creciendo como una economía fuerte y vibrante. Estamos haciendo 
grades avances en el desarrollo de nuevas relaciones de negocios y ampliando nuestra participación en este mercado.

Las dos subsidiarias operativas del banco han tenido un tremendo crecimiento año con año y ambas igualmente han crecido su 
cartera de negocios. Nuestra subsidiaria de inversiones nuevamente ha sido reconocida como uno de los equipos de inversiones 
de mejor desempeño en la división bancaria de LPL y anticipamos que continúe así al enfocarnos en expandir nuestra presencia en 
el mercado. Me es grato reportarles que todo lo anterior continua reflejando tanto la solidificación como la expansión de nuestras 
relaciones de negocios existentes.

Carta a Nuestros Accionistas,
Clientes y Amigos
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Estoy muy contento con el enfoque de nuestra organización al día de hoy. Estamos concentrados en 
servirle a las comunidades en las que participamos, el estar involucrados en las comunidades que 
atendemos y ayudar en el crecimiento de aquellas comunidades a la cual servimos. Nuestros banqueros 
son un grupo de profesionales quienes creen firmemente en la misión de hacer bien las cosas, 
enfocándose en servir a nuestros clientes y en la construcción de relaciones. Nuestra misión será ir más 
allá de los estándares establecidos. Nuestro objetivo como organización es crear un legado corporativo 
a partir del cual podremos medir a los demás, no es el líder quien importa, lo que importa es si él o ella 
haya creado una organización que se desenvuelve conforme a las expectativas de nuestros clientes y 
nuestros accionistas. En Lone Star National Bank entendemos que finalmente seremos medido con 
respecto al cumplimiento o no de las expectativas de nuestros clientes y nuestro único propósito y 
objetivo es estar plenamente convencidos de que no solamente las debemos de cumplir, sino debemos 
de excederlas, ¡y por mucho!

Nosotros en Lone Star National Bank esperamos tener un apasionante 2016. ¡Estamos comprometidos 
en ser los mejores  porque sabemos que nuestros clientes esperan lo mejor! ¡Nada menor que esto!

Bendiciones,

S. David Deanda, Jr.
Presidente
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For the Year
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Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

The following discussion addresses information pertaining to the financial condition and results of the operation of Lone Star National 
Bancshares-Texas, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) that may not be otherwise apparent from a review of the audited consolidated financial 
statements and related footnotes. It should be read in conjunction with those statements, as well as other information presented throughout 
the report. In addition to historical information, this discussion and other sections contained in this Annual Report include certain forward-looking 
statements regarding events and trends which may affect the Company’s future results. Such statements are subject to risk and uncertainties 
that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially. Such factors include, but are not limited to, those described in this discussion 
and analysis.

The Company is a privately held bank holding company headquartered in McAllen, Texas, offering a broad array of financial services through its 
wholly-owned banking subsidiary, Lone Star National Bank (the “Bank”). The Bank operates from thirty-two banking locations: twenty-seven 
(27) banking locations in the Rio Grande Valley and five (5) banking locations in San Antonio, Texas. The Bank engages in a wide range of 
commercial and personal banking activities including the usual acceptance of deposits for checking, savings and time deposit accounts; 
extension of secured and unsecured loans to corporations, individuals and others; issuance of letters of credit; rental of safe deposit boxes; 
brokerage services and insurance services. The Bank’s lending services include commercial, industrial, real estate, installment and credit card 
loans and participation in loans with other banks. The members of the Bank’s management team have significant experience and contacts from 
their service at the Bank and their prior service with other successful community banks that have operated in the same market. The Bank seeks 
to provide its products and services through a high quality, experienced staff and local decision making.

Year 2015 has proven to be another challenging year for the Company due to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense 
competitive pressures with business owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. On December 31, 2015, the 
Company had total assets of $2.2 billion, loans of $1.1 billion, deposits of $1.8 billion and shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million.

The Company’s primary goal is to provide a higher quality service for its customers in the South Texas market by providing personal service, 
relationship banking and innovative technological solutions. In order to broaden the customer base, primarily through expanding the Company’s 
network of full-service banking offices, the Board of Directors is continuing its efforts to expand our banking organization in the Rio Grande 
Valley and San Antonio markets by selecting sites for future branches.

The Company’s profitability is dependent on managing interest rate spreads, other operating income and expenses, and credit risk. Net interest 
income is the largest component of revenue for the Company. The Company manages interest rate risks through a funds management strategy 
which involves offering deposit and / or loan structures that tend to counter the natural rate risk profile of the Company. The Company addresses 
loan and deposit pricing, the asset and liability mix and interest rate sensitivity on a periodic basis. Yields on earning assets and rates paid on 
interest-bearing deposits within the Company declined during 2015. Through management’s efforts the net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 
reflects an 8 basis points decline when compared to the net interest margin of 3.51% for 2014. The Company manages its credit risk by 
establishing underwriting guidelines which address the characteristics of borrowers, industries, geographic locations and risk products. The 
credit process is controlled by continuous review and credit analysis. The Company evaluates its management of operating expenses through 
the efficiency ratio, which is approximately 82.6% for 2015. The efficiency ratio equates to the cost of recording one dollar’s worth of revenue.

Analysis of Financial Condition
Overview: Total assets of $2.203 billion at December 31, 2015 increased by 1.5% or $31.9 million compared to $2.171 billion on December 
31, 2014. Total deposits of $1.845 billion on December 31, 2015 increased by 1.9% or $33.9 million compared to $1.811 billion on December 
31, 2014. A more detailed description of changes to the balance sheet follows.

Due from Banks-interest bearing: Due from banks-interest bearing accounts of $205.8 million on December 31, 2015 increased $52.4 
million or 34.1% compared to $153.4 million on December 31, 2014. These funds represent excess funds deposited with correspondent banks 
in interest bearing accounts, primarily the Federal Reserve Bank.

Investment Securities: During 2014, management reclassified all held to maturity bonds to available for sale to actively manage the 
investment securities portfolio. As of December 31, 2014, all investment securities were classified as available for sale. Total investment 
securities of $691.5 million at December 31, 2015 increased $68.8 million or 11.1% compared to $622.7 million at December 31, 2014. Included 
in investment securities are municipal tax exempt bonds (“Tax Exempt Munis”). Tax Exempt Munis of $150.0 million at December 31, 2015 
increased $53.6 million or 55.4% compared to $96.8 million at December 31, 2014. The strategy for investment securities during 2015 was to 
remain conservative on reinvesting of cash flows to avoid taking on additional interest rate / extension risk and to increase yield. Included in 
the Tax Exempt Munis are bonds primarily from school districts within the State of Texas that are guaranteed by the Texas Permanent School 
Fund and as such, well secured. The investment securities portfolio yield of 2.49% for 2015 increase 0.04% compared to 2.45% for 2014.

Loans: Loans held for sale and held for investment of $1.143 billion on December 31, 2015 decreased $82.8 million or 6.8% compared to 
$1.225 billion on December 31, 2014. On December 31, 2015, the loan portfolio consisted primarily of $1.2 million of real estate loans held for 
sale, $129.1 million of commercial loans, $1.5 million of agriculture loans, $937.8 million of real estate loans and $73.1 million of consumer and 
other loans. These loans primarily originated within our market area of the Rio Grande Valley and San Antonio, Texas, and are generally secured 
by residential real estate, commercial real estate, business property or personal property. Despite the unprecedented contraction in the credit 
markets, we continued to lend to credit-worthy customers.

The Company manages credit risk by establishing and implementing strategies and guidelines appropriate to the characteristics of borrowers, 
industries, geographic locations and products. Diversification of risk within each of these areas is a primary objective. Policies and procedures 
are developed to ensure that loan commitments conform to current strategies and guidelines. Management continues to refine the Company’s 
credit policies and procedures to address risks in the current and prospective environment and to reflect management’s current strategic focus. 
The credit process is controlled with continuous credit review and analysis, as well as reviewed by internal and external auditors and regulatory 
authorities. The Company’s loans are widely diversified by borrower and industry group.

The Company has lending policies in effect so that lending of all types is approached, to the extent possible, including low-to-moderate income 
neighborhoods and small business, on a basis consistent with safe and sound standards. Stress testing is utilized to take into consideration the 
potentially adverse economic conditions under which liquidation of the loan could occur. Generally collateral accepted to secure the commercial 
loan portfolio is real estate, accounts receivable, inventory, marketable securities and equipment. However, for the consumer loan portfolio, 
autos, deeds of trust, life insurance and marketable securities are accepted as collateral.

The Company’s policy on maturity extensions and rollovers is based on management’s assessment of individual loans. Approvals for the 
extension or renewal of loans without reduction of principal for more than one twelve-month period are generally avoided unless the loans are 
fully secured and properly margined by cash or marketable securities or are revolving lines subject to annual analysis and renewal.

Nonperforming Assets: The Company has procedures in place to assist in maintaining the overall quality of its loan portfolio. Furthermore, 
the Company has established underwriting guidelines to be followed by its officers and monitors its delinquency levels for any negative or 
adverse trends, particularly with respect to credits which have total exposures of $10,000 or more.

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans, loans for which the interest rate has been renegotiated below originally contracted rates and 
real estate or other assets that have been acquired in partial or full satisfaction of loan obligations. On December 31, 2015, nonperforming 
assets totaled $82.3 million or 7.1% of loans plus repossessed assets. Nonperforming assets reflect a decrease of $12.0 million or 17.1% when 
compared to $70.2 million on December 31, 2014. Management has seasoned personnel to assist in turning nonperforming assets into 
performing assets or exiting the relationship. Management believes that it is unlikely that any material loss will be incurred on disposition of the 
collateral.

Management regularly reviews and monitors the loan portfolio to identify borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. Management believes that 
on December 31, 2015 all such loans have been identified and included in the nonaccrual, restructured or 90 days past due loan totals. 
Management continues to emphasize maintaining a low level of nonperforming assets and returning nonperforming assets to an earning status.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 of $25.4 million decreased $3.0 million or 10.7% compared 
to $28.4 million at December 31, 2014. The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 was 2.22% of loans held for investment.

Management analyzes the loan portfolio to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the appropriate provision required to 
maintain an adequate allowance. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, there can be no assurance that 
future additions to the allowance will not be necessary. Future adjustments could be necessary to the allowance for loan losses if circumstances 
or economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations. Additionally, as an internal part of 

the examination process, bank regulatory agencies periodically review our allowance for loan losses. The banking regulatory agencies could 
require the recognition of additions to our loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their 
examination.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment of $56.9 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $2.4 million or 4.0% compared to 
$59.3 million on December 31, 2014. The net decrease in premises and equipment for 2015 is primarily attributable to depreciation expense.

Other Real Estate Owned: Other real estate owned (“OREO”) of $20.7 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $11.3 million or 35.2% 
compared to $32.0 million on December 31, 2014. OREO assets represent property acquired as the result of borrower defaults on loans. 
Management actively manages the OREO and records the value of each OREO at either the lower of the fair market value less estimated selling 
costs or at the cost of the asset. Write-downs occurring at foreclosure are charged against the allowance for possible loan losses. On an ongoing 
basis, OREO is appraised as required by market indications and applicable regulations. Any further write-downs as a result of subsequent 
declines in value are included in other noninterest expense along with other expenses related to maintaining the properties.

Bank Owned Life Insurance: Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”) of $49.1 million on December 31, 2015 increased $1.4 million or 2.9% 
compared to $47.7 million on December 31, 2014. The investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for 
employee compensation and benefit plans. A split dollar benefit is provided for selected management and will be paid to the estate of the 
participant provided the participant is employed by the Company at date of death.

Deposits: Deposits on December 31, 2015 of $1.845 billion increased $33.9 million or 1.9% compared to $1.811 billion on December 31, 2014. 
The increase in deposits was primarily attributable to an increase in public fund deposits, partially offset by a decrease in foreign deposits and 
domestic deposits. Public fund deposits of $633.4 million increased $65.5 million, foreign deposits of $193.1 million decreased $17.0 million and 
all other core deposit accounts of $1.018 billion decreased $14.5 million on December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year. Deposits are the 
Company’s primary source of funds. The Company offers a variety of products designed to attract and retain deposit customers, such as 
checking accounts, regular savings deposits, NOW accounts, money market accounts, select certificates of deposit savings, an interest-bearing 
club account and certificates of deposits. Deposits are obtained primarily from individuals, partnerships and corporations in our market areas. 
In addition, we obtain deposits from state and local public entities, commonly referred to as public fund deposits. The Company’s policies also 
permit the acceptance of brokered deposits. Generally, both brokered certificates of deposit and public funds are less expensive than retail 
deposits  and are easily managed.

The interest rates paid are competitively priced for each particular deposit product and structured to meet our funding requirements. The 
Company’s management will continue to manage interest expense through deposit pricing. The Company’s management believes that additional 
funds, if needed, can be attracted and deposit growth can be accelerated through deposit pricing as the Company experiences increased loan 
demand or other liquidity needs.

Capital Resources: Shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million on December 31, 2015 increased $7.0 million or 2.9% compared to $240.3 million 
on December 31, 2014. The increase was primarily attributable to: $11.6 million of earnings, partially reduced by $1.8 million decrease in 
accumulated other comprehensive income, and further reduced by $2.9 million of net Treasury Stock purchases.

The Company has actively engaged in a buyback program of its stock during years 2012 to the present. During 2015, the Board of Directors 
retired $10.0 million of Treasury Stock by recording a decrease in Treasury Stock of like amount; offset by a $1.3 million decrease in Common 
Stock, a $2.4 million decrease in Paid-in-Capital and a $6.3 million decrease in Retained Earnings.

Bank holding companies are required to maintain capital ratios in accordance with guidelines adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. The 
guidelines are commonly known as Risk-Based Capital Guidelines. The minimum Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common 
Equity Tier 1 Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios which include an additional 2.5% Capital Conservation Buffer are 10.5%, 8.5%, 7.0% 
and 4.0%  respectively. On December 31, 2015, the Company’s Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common Equity Tier 1 
Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios were 21.13%, 19.87%, 17.87%, and 12.42% respectively. Shareholders’ equity as a percentage of 
total year-end assets was 11.22% in 2015 and 11.07% in 2014.

At December 31, 2015, the Company and the Bank met the criteria for classification as a “well-capitalized” institution under the prompt 
corrective action rules promulgated under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. Designation as a well-capitalized institution under these 
regulations does not constitute a recommendation or endorsement of the Company or the Bank by federal bank regulators.

Analysis of Results of Operations
Earnings Summary: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per 
fully diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the year 2014. A more detailed description 
of the results of operations is included in the material that follows.

Net Interest Income: Net interest income represents the largest source of income for the Company. Net interest income is the difference 
between interest earned on assets and interest expense incurred for the funds supporting those assets. The largest category of earning assets 
consists of loans. The second largest category of earning assets is investments, followed by funds due from banks-interest bearing deposits.

Earning assets are funded by consumer and commercial deposits and short-term borrowings. In addition to these interest-bearing funds, assets 
are also supported by interest-free funds, primarily demand deposits and shareholder’s equity. Variations in the volume and mix of assets and 
liabilities and their relative sensitivity to interest rate movements determine changes in net interest income.

Net interest income of $67.4 million for 2015 reflects a decrease of $3.1 million or 4.36% compared to the prior year of $70.5 million. The 
decrease in net interest income was attributable primarily to a decrease in loan volume and partially due to a decline in interest earned. The 
decline in loan volume is primarily attributable to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense competitive pressures with business 
owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. Management’s efforts to control the cost of funds by reducing the 

rate paid on deposits helped offset the decline in noninterest income.

The net yield on total interest-earning assets, also referred to as net interest margin, represents net interest income, on a tax equivalent basis, 
divided by average interest-earning assets. Since a significant portion of the Company’s funding is derived from interest-free sources, primarily 
demand deposits and shareholders’ equity, the effective rate paid for all funds is lower than the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities alone. 
The net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 decreased 8 basis points compared to 3.51% for the prior year. The Company continued to experience 
intense market competition for both loans and deposits during 2015. The yield on interest-earning assets of 4.06% for 2015 decreased 18 basis 
points compared to 4.24% for the prior year. The rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities of 0.86% for 2015 decreased 10 basis points compared 
to 0.96% for the prior year.

Provision for Loan Losses: The amount of provision for loan losses is based on periodic (not less than quarterly) evaluations of the loan 
portfolio, especially nonperforming and other potential problem loans. During these evaluations, management considers various factors. For 
additional information concerning the factors in these evaluations, see the “Allowance for Loan Losses” section of this Report.

The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings to bring the allowance for loan losses to a level deemed appropriate by management based 
on factors such as historical experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by the Company, the amount of nonperforming assets, 
regulatory policies, generally accepted accounting principles, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to the Company’s lending 
area, and other factors related to the collectibility of the Company’s loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for the year 2015 was zero. A 
zero provision for loan losses for year 2015 and 2014 was partially due the allowance for loan losses being at a level deemed appropriate by 
management based on various factors discussed in the “Allowance for Loan Loss” section of this Report.

Noninterest Income: Noninterest income for 2015 of $23.4 million increased $419,000 or 1.8% compared to $23.0 million for prior year. The 
net increase in noninterest income for 2015 compared to the prior year was primarily attributable to increases in Gain on securities, Increase in 
BOLI cash value, Brokerage services, and Insurance Services partially offset by decreases in Service charges on deposit accounts, Other service 
charge and fee income, Real estate package fees and Other noninterest income.

Service charges on deposit accounts for 2015 of $7.1 million decreased $346,000 or 4.6% compared to $7.5 million for the prior year. 
Non-sufficient check income more commonly referred to as net overdraft charges for 2015 of $5.2 million decreased $256,000 or 4.7% 
compared to $5.5 million for the prior year. Foreign customer service charges for 2015 of $233,000 decreased $67,000 or 22.3% compared to 
$299,000 for the prior year. The decline in service charges for the aforementioned categories was attributable to a decline in volume of activity 
for 2015.

Other service charge and fee income for 2015 of $7.7 million decreased $127,000 or 1.6% as compared to $7.9 million for the prior year. The 
net decrease in other service charge and fee income for 2015 was primarily attributable to three subcategories: debit card interchange fee 
income, foreign currency fees, and inspection fees. The decline in other service fees was partially offset by gains in merchant services income. 
Debit card interchange fee income of $4.6 million for 2015 decreased $84,000 or 1.8% compared to $4.7 million for the prior year. The Debit 
card interchange fee income for the prior year was a record year for the Company. The decrease in debit card fee income is attributable to 
volume of activity. Foreign currency fees for 2015 of $326,000 decreased $144,000 or 30.7% as compared to $470,000 for the prior year. The 
decline in foreign currency fees was due to a decline in currency exchange activity. Inspection fees for 2015 of $181,000 decreased $90,000 or 
33.3% as compared to $271,000 for the prior year. Merchant services income of $699,000 for 2015 increased $237,000 or 51.2% compared to 
$462,000 for the prior year and was attributable to an increased volume of business conducted by Bank customer merchants.

Real estate package fees for 2015 of $806,000 decreased $92,000 or 10.2% as compared to $898,000 for the prior year. The decrease in Real 
estate package fees was attributable to management's strategy to keep short-term mortgage loans on the Bank’s portfolio versus holding the 
mortgage loans for sale. For 2015 fewer mortgage loans were sold in the secondary market which resulted in fewer gains on sale of mortgage 
loans.

Gain on securities for 2015 of $1.8 million increased $581,000 or 47.7% compared to $1.2 million for the prior year. Securities were sold out of 
the Available for Sale portfolio to accomplish investment portfolio objectives aimed at maximizing the total return of the investment portfolio 
and to manage the Bank’s liquidity.

Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLI) for 2015 of $1.4 million increased $288,000 or 26.8% compared to $1.1 million for the prior year. The 
investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for employee compensation and benefit plans.

Brokerage services' commission income for 2015 of $2.433 million increased $42,000 or 1.8% compared to $2.391 million for the prior year. 

The increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Insurance services' commission income for 2015 of $2.1 million increased $121,000 or 6.2% compared to $1.9 million for the prior year. The 
increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Other noninterest income for 2015 of $48,000 decreased $48,000 or 50.0% compared to $96,000 for the prior year. The decrease in other 
noninterest income is primarily attributable to loss on sale of repossessed assets and abandoned assets.

Noninterest Expense: Noninterest expense for 2015 of $75.0 million decreased $2.5 million or 3.3% compared to $77.6 million for prior year. 
The decrease in noninterest expense was primarily attributable to a decrease in five subcategories: Legal and professional fees; Other real 
estate, net; Telephone expense; Business development expense, and Supplies. The decrease in noninterest expense was partially offset by an 
increase in employee compensation and employee benefit expense.

The largest category of noninterest expense is personnel expense of $40.3 million, which is comprised of employee compensation of $33.5 
million and employee benefits of $6.8 million. For 2015 these categories increased $1.8 million or 4.8% compared to $38.5 million for the prior 
year. Personnel expense increase was primarily a result of increases in staffing and medical benefit expenses. The Company group medical 
benefits are primarily provided through a self-funded plan which is supplemented by employee premiums. The funding for the self-funded is 
adjusted each year for anticipated claims. Net employee group insurance expense of $3.0 million for 2015 increased $786,000 or 35.6% 
compared to $2.2 million for the prior year. As of year-end 2015, the self-funded group medical plan had excess reserves of $635,000 for future 
medical claims.

Net occupancy and equipment expense of $9.2 million for 2015 increased $83,000 or 0.9% compared to $9.1 million for the prior year. The net 
increase in net occupancy and equipment expense for 2015 is primarily attributable to a decline in rental income of $103,000.

Data processing expense of $5.6 million for 2015 increased $16,000 or 0.3% compared to $5.6 million for the prior year. The net increase in 
data processing expense is primarily due to the volume of business conducted by the Company partially offset by cost savings realized in 
software and maintenance contracts.

Legal and professional expense of $5.8 million for 2015 decreased $3.2 million or 35.5% compared to $8.9 million for the prior year. The 
decrease is primarily due to a decrease in legal and consulting fees incurred to review and enhance compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) 
and legal settlements. That is partially offset by increases in audit and examination fees related to compliance with BSA.

Advertising expense of $1.9 million for 2015 increased $108,000 or 6.0% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to television and radio production / broadcast (up $96,000) and sports marketing (up $109,000) with all other categories 
reflecting a net decrease in expense. The marketing focus is to continue to promote the bank in the communities that we serve and to promote 
product awareness.

The other real estate owned net expense of $2.4 million for 2015 decreased $749,000 or 23.6% compared to $3.2 million for the prior year. This 
category includes direct expenses for foreclosed real estate including property taxes, maintenance costs, write-downs, less rent income and net 
gains on the sale of properties. For years 2015 and 2014, both years reflected a net loss from sale of OREO. The net loss on sale of OREO for 
2015 reflects a net decrease of $586,000 or 48.8% when compared to the prior year. OREO expenses of $1.8 million for 2015 decreased 
$163,000 or 8.2% compared to $2.0 million for the prior year. The decline in expenses is also reflective of the decline in OREO holdings for 2015. 
Management is aggressively working to reduce total OREO holdings to return the investment in said properties to earning assets.

Telephone expense of $1.4 million for 2015 decreased $395,000 or 21.8% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net decrease is 
primarily attributable to data communication expenses (down $489,000), mobile phone / device expenses (down $12,000), and all other 
expenses (up $105,000). The decrease in data communication expenses were a result of restructuring bandwidth and number of data lines to 
all locations, additional back-up connectivity and from renegotiating line charges of past billings.

Business development expense of $353,000 for 2015 decreased $316,000 or 47.2% compared to $669,000 for the prior year. The net decrease 
is primarily attributable to terminating, during 2014, a promotional program designed to increase customer debit card usage thereby increasing 
the Company’s debit card interchange fee income. The promotional program rewarded customers with redeemable points which were paid for 
by the Company. Total expenses for this program for 2015 of zero reflects a net decrease of $282,000 or 100.0% compared to the prior year.

Supplies expense of $533,000 for 2015 decreased $49,000 or 8.4% compared to $582,000 for the prior year. The net decrease is primarily 

attributable to stationery and printer supplies of $284000 for 2015 which decreased $48,000 or 14.6% compared to $333,000 for the prior year. 
Management is urging all employees to reduce expenses and to go paperless when possible.

Other noninterest expense of $4.7 million for 2015 increased $51,000 or 1.1% compared to $4.6 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to postage (up $103,000); State sales tax (up $194,000); Director expenses (up $146,000); and Other insurance (up 
$97,000), partially offset by ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses (down $166,000) and Provision for Off Balance Sheet Losses (down $287,000). 
The increase in Director expenses includes fees for Advisory Directors. For 2015, a new promotional program was implemented for Advisory 
Directors in the amount of $152,000 for business referrals. The incentives were accrued based on each referral that resulted in booked business. 
The improvement to the ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses were the result of a new debit card monitoring program to control the exposure to 
debit card losses.

Federal and State Income Taxes: Federal and state income taxes of $4.1 million for the year 2015 decreased $1.0 million compared to $5.1 
million for the prior year. The decrease in federal and state income taxes is attributable to a decreased level of pretax income during 2015. The 
decreased level of pretax income was partially achieved by the shift in investment strategy of investing in tax exempt municipal bonds. See 
discussion on “Investment Securities” for more information.

Net Income: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per fully 
diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the prior year.
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The following discussion addresses information pertaining to the financial condition and results of the operation of Lone Star National 
Bancshares-Texas, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) that may not be otherwise apparent from a review of the audited consolidated financial 
statements and related footnotes. It should be read in conjunction with those statements, as well as other information presented throughout 
the report. In addition to historical information, this discussion and other sections contained in this Annual Report include certain forward-looking 
statements regarding events and trends which may affect the Company’s future results. Such statements are subject to risk and uncertainties 
that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially. Such factors include, but are not limited to, those described in this discussion 
and analysis.

The Company is a privately held bank holding company headquartered in McAllen, Texas, offering a broad array of financial services through its 
wholly-owned banking subsidiary, Lone Star National Bank (the “Bank”). The Bank operates from thirty-two banking locations: twenty-seven 
(27) banking locations in the Rio Grande Valley and five (5) banking locations in San Antonio, Texas. The Bank engages in a wide range of 
commercial and personal banking activities including the usual acceptance of deposits for checking, savings and time deposit accounts; 
extension of secured and unsecured loans to corporations, individuals and others; issuance of letters of credit; rental of safe deposit boxes; 
brokerage services and insurance services. The Bank’s lending services include commercial, industrial, real estate, installment and credit card 
loans and participation in loans with other banks. The members of the Bank’s management team have significant experience and contacts from 
their service at the Bank and their prior service with other successful community banks that have operated in the same market. The Bank seeks 
to provide its products and services through a high quality, experienced staff and local decision making.

Year 2015 has proven to be another challenging year for the Company due to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense 
competitive pressures with business owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. On December 31, 2015, the 
Company had total assets of $2.2 billion, loans of $1.1 billion, deposits of $1.8 billion and shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million.

The Company’s primary goal is to provide a higher quality service for its customers in the South Texas market by providing personal service, 
relationship banking and innovative technological solutions. In order to broaden the customer base, primarily through expanding the Company’s 
network of full-service banking offices, the Board of Directors is continuing its efforts to expand our banking organization in the Rio Grande 
Valley and San Antonio markets by selecting sites for future branches.

The Company’s profitability is dependent on managing interest rate spreads, other operating income and expenses, and credit risk. Net interest 
income is the largest component of revenue for the Company. The Company manages interest rate risks through a funds management strategy 
which involves offering deposit and / or loan structures that tend to counter the natural rate risk profile of the Company. The Company addresses 
loan and deposit pricing, the asset and liability mix and interest rate sensitivity on a periodic basis. Yields on earning assets and rates paid on 
interest-bearing deposits within the Company declined during 2015. Through management’s efforts the net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 
reflects an 8 basis points decline when compared to the net interest margin of 3.51% for 2014. The Company manages its credit risk by 
establishing underwriting guidelines which address the characteristics of borrowers, industries, geographic locations and risk products. The 
credit process is controlled by continuous review and credit analysis. The Company evaluates its management of operating expenses through 
the efficiency ratio, which is approximately 82.6% for 2015. The efficiency ratio equates to the cost of recording one dollar’s worth of revenue.

Analysis of Financial Condition
Overview: Total assets of $2.203 billion at December 31, 2015 increased by 1.5% or $31.9 million compared to $2.171 billion on December 
31, 2014. Total deposits of $1.845 billion on December 31, 2015 increased by 1.9% or $33.9 million compared to $1.811 billion on December 
31, 2014. A more detailed description of changes to the balance sheet follows.

Due from Banks-interest bearing: Due from banks-interest bearing accounts of $205.8 million on December 31, 2015 increased $52.4 
million or 34.1% compared to $153.4 million on December 31, 2014. These funds represent excess funds deposited with correspondent banks 
in interest bearing accounts, primarily the Federal Reserve Bank.

Investment Securities: During 2014, management reclassified all held to maturity bonds to available for sale to actively manage the 
investment securities portfolio. As of December 31, 2014, all investment securities were classified as available for sale. Total investment 
securities of $691.5 million at December 31, 2015 increased $68.8 million or 11.1% compared to $622.7 million at December 31, 2014. Included 
in investment securities are municipal tax exempt bonds (“Tax Exempt Munis”). Tax Exempt Munis of $150.0 million at December 31, 2015 
increased $53.6 million or 55.4% compared to $96.8 million at December 31, 2014. The strategy for investment securities during 2015 was to 
remain conservative on reinvesting of cash flows to avoid taking on additional interest rate / extension risk and to increase yield. Included in 
the Tax Exempt Munis are bonds primarily from school districts within the State of Texas that are guaranteed by the Texas Permanent School 
Fund and as such, well secured. The investment securities portfolio yield of 2.49% for 2015 increase 0.04% compared to 2.45% for 2014.

Loans: Loans held for sale and held for investment of $1.143 billion on December 31, 2015 decreased $82.8 million or 6.8% compared to 
$1.225 billion on December 31, 2014. On December 31, 2015, the loan portfolio consisted primarily of $1.2 million of real estate loans held for 
sale, $129.1 million of commercial loans, $1.5 million of agriculture loans, $937.8 million of real estate loans and $73.1 million of consumer and 
other loans. These loans primarily originated within our market area of the Rio Grande Valley and San Antonio, Texas, and are generally secured 
by residential real estate, commercial real estate, business property or personal property. Despite the unprecedented contraction in the credit 
markets, we continued to lend to credit-worthy customers.

The Company manages credit risk by establishing and implementing strategies and guidelines appropriate to the characteristics of borrowers, 
industries, geographic locations and products. Diversification of risk within each of these areas is a primary objective. Policies and procedures 
are developed to ensure that loan commitments conform to current strategies and guidelines. Management continues to refine the Company’s 
credit policies and procedures to address risks in the current and prospective environment and to reflect management’s current strategic focus. 
The credit process is controlled with continuous credit review and analysis, as well as reviewed by internal and external auditors and regulatory 
authorities. The Company’s loans are widely diversified by borrower and industry group.

The Company has lending policies in effect so that lending of all types is approached, to the extent possible, including low-to-moderate income 
neighborhoods and small business, on a basis consistent with safe and sound standards. Stress testing is utilized to take into consideration the 
potentially adverse economic conditions under which liquidation of the loan could occur. Generally collateral accepted to secure the commercial 
loan portfolio is real estate, accounts receivable, inventory, marketable securities and equipment. However, for the consumer loan portfolio, 
autos, deeds of trust, life insurance and marketable securities are accepted as collateral.

The Company’s policy on maturity extensions and rollovers is based on management’s assessment of individual loans. Approvals for the 
extension or renewal of loans without reduction of principal for more than one twelve-month period are generally avoided unless the loans are 
fully secured and properly margined by cash or marketable securities or are revolving lines subject to annual analysis and renewal.

Nonperforming Assets: The Company has procedures in place to assist in maintaining the overall quality of its loan portfolio. Furthermore, 
the Company has established underwriting guidelines to be followed by its officers and monitors its delinquency levels for any negative or 
adverse trends, particularly with respect to credits which have total exposures of $10,000 or more.

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans, loans for which the interest rate has been renegotiated below originally contracted rates and 
real estate or other assets that have been acquired in partial or full satisfaction of loan obligations. On December 31, 2015, nonperforming 
assets totaled $82.3 million or 7.1% of loans plus repossessed assets. Nonperforming assets reflect a decrease of $12.0 million or 17.1% when 
compared to $70.2 million on December 31, 2014. Management has seasoned personnel to assist in turning nonperforming assets into 
performing assets or exiting the relationship. Management believes that it is unlikely that any material loss will be incurred on disposition of the 
collateral.

Management regularly reviews and monitors the loan portfolio to identify borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. Management believes that 
on December 31, 2015 all such loans have been identified and included in the nonaccrual, restructured or 90 days past due loan totals. 
Management continues to emphasize maintaining a low level of nonperforming assets and returning nonperforming assets to an earning status.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 of $25.4 million decreased $3.0 million or 10.7% compared 
to $28.4 million at December 31, 2014. The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 was 2.22% of loans held for investment.

Management analyzes the loan portfolio to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the appropriate provision required to 
maintain an adequate allowance. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, there can be no assurance that 
future additions to the allowance will not be necessary. Future adjustments could be necessary to the allowance for loan losses if circumstances 
or economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations. Additionally, as an internal part of 

the examination process, bank regulatory agencies periodically review our allowance for loan losses. The banking regulatory agencies could 
require the recognition of additions to our loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their 
examination.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment of $56.9 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $2.4 million or 4.0% compared to 
$59.3 million on December 31, 2014. The net decrease in premises and equipment for 2015 is primarily attributable to depreciation expense.

Other Real Estate Owned: Other real estate owned (“OREO”) of $20.7 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $11.3 million or 35.2% 
compared to $32.0 million on December 31, 2014. OREO assets represent property acquired as the result of borrower defaults on loans. 
Management actively manages the OREO and records the value of each OREO at either the lower of the fair market value less estimated selling 
costs or at the cost of the asset. Write-downs occurring at foreclosure are charged against the allowance for possible loan losses. On an ongoing 
basis, OREO is appraised as required by market indications and applicable regulations. Any further write-downs as a result of subsequent 
declines in value are included in other noninterest expense along with other expenses related to maintaining the properties.

Bank Owned Life Insurance: Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”) of $49.1 million on December 31, 2015 increased $1.4 million or 2.9% 
compared to $47.7 million on December 31, 2014. The investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for 
employee compensation and benefit plans. A split dollar benefit is provided for selected management and will be paid to the estate of the 
participant provided the participant is employed by the Company at date of death.

Deposits: Deposits on December 31, 2015 of $1.845 billion increased $33.9 million or 1.9% compared to $1.811 billion on December 31, 2014. 
The increase in deposits was primarily attributable to an increase in public fund deposits, partially offset by a decrease in foreign deposits and 
domestic deposits. Public fund deposits of $633.4 million increased $65.5 million, foreign deposits of $193.1 million decreased $17.0 million and 
all other core deposit accounts of $1.018 billion decreased $14.5 million on December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year. Deposits are the 
Company’s primary source of funds. The Company offers a variety of products designed to attract and retain deposit customers, such as 
checking accounts, regular savings deposits, NOW accounts, money market accounts, select certificates of deposit savings, an interest-bearing 
club account and certificates of deposits. Deposits are obtained primarily from individuals, partnerships and corporations in our market areas. 
In addition, we obtain deposits from state and local public entities, commonly referred to as public fund deposits. The Company’s policies also 
permit the acceptance of brokered deposits. Generally, both brokered certificates of deposit and public funds are less expensive than retail 
deposits  and are easily managed.

The interest rates paid are competitively priced for each particular deposit product and structured to meet our funding requirements. The 
Company’s management will continue to manage interest expense through deposit pricing. The Company’s management believes that additional 
funds, if needed, can be attracted and deposit growth can be accelerated through deposit pricing as the Company experiences increased loan 
demand or other liquidity needs.

Capital Resources: Shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million on December 31, 2015 increased $7.0 million or 2.9% compared to $240.3 million 
on December 31, 2014. The increase was primarily attributable to: $11.6 million of earnings, partially reduced by $1.8 million decrease in 
accumulated other comprehensive income, and further reduced by $2.9 million of net Treasury Stock purchases.

The Company has actively engaged in a buyback program of its stock during years 2012 to the present. During 2015, the Board of Directors 
retired $10.0 million of Treasury Stock by recording a decrease in Treasury Stock of like amount; offset by a $1.3 million decrease in Common 
Stock, a $2.4 million decrease in Paid-in-Capital and a $6.3 million decrease in Retained Earnings.

Bank holding companies are required to maintain capital ratios in accordance with guidelines adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. The 
guidelines are commonly known as Risk-Based Capital Guidelines. The minimum Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common 
Equity Tier 1 Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios which include an additional 2.5% Capital Conservation Buffer are 10.5%, 8.5%, 7.0% 
and 4.0%  respectively. On December 31, 2015, the Company’s Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common Equity Tier 1 
Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios were 21.13%, 19.87%, 17.87%, and 12.42% respectively. Shareholders’ equity as a percentage of 
total year-end assets was 11.22% in 2015 and 11.07% in 2014.

At December 31, 2015, the Company and the Bank met the criteria for classification as a “well-capitalized” institution under the prompt 
corrective action rules promulgated under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. Designation as a well-capitalized institution under these 
regulations does not constitute a recommendation or endorsement of the Company or the Bank by federal bank regulators.

Analysis of Results of Operations
Earnings Summary: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per 
fully diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the year 2014. A more detailed description 
of the results of operations is included in the material that follows.

Net Interest Income: Net interest income represents the largest source of income for the Company. Net interest income is the difference 
between interest earned on assets and interest expense incurred for the funds supporting those assets. The largest category of earning assets 
consists of loans. The second largest category of earning assets is investments, followed by funds due from banks-interest bearing deposits.

Earning assets are funded by consumer and commercial deposits and short-term borrowings. In addition to these interest-bearing funds, assets 
are also supported by interest-free funds, primarily demand deposits and shareholder’s equity. Variations in the volume and mix of assets and 
liabilities and their relative sensitivity to interest rate movements determine changes in net interest income.

Net interest income of $67.4 million for 2015 reflects a decrease of $3.1 million or 4.36% compared to the prior year of $70.5 million. The 
decrease in net interest income was attributable primarily to a decrease in loan volume and partially due to a decline in interest earned. The 
decline in loan volume is primarily attributable to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense competitive pressures with business 
owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. Management’s efforts to control the cost of funds by reducing the 

rate paid on deposits helped offset the decline in noninterest income.

The net yield on total interest-earning assets, also referred to as net interest margin, represents net interest income, on a tax equivalent basis, 
divided by average interest-earning assets. Since a significant portion of the Company’s funding is derived from interest-free sources, primarily 
demand deposits and shareholders’ equity, the effective rate paid for all funds is lower than the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities alone. 
The net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 decreased 8 basis points compared to 3.51% for the prior year. The Company continued to experience 
intense market competition for both loans and deposits during 2015. The yield on interest-earning assets of 4.06% for 2015 decreased 18 basis 
points compared to 4.24% for the prior year. The rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities of 0.86% for 2015 decreased 10 basis points compared 
to 0.96% for the prior year.

Provision for Loan Losses: The amount of provision for loan losses is based on periodic (not less than quarterly) evaluations of the loan 
portfolio, especially nonperforming and other potential problem loans. During these evaluations, management considers various factors. For 
additional information concerning the factors in these evaluations, see the “Allowance for Loan Losses” section of this Report.

The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings to bring the allowance for loan losses to a level deemed appropriate by management based 
on factors such as historical experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by the Company, the amount of nonperforming assets, 
regulatory policies, generally accepted accounting principles, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to the Company’s lending 
area, and other factors related to the collectibility of the Company’s loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for the year 2015 was zero. A 
zero provision for loan losses for year 2015 and 2014 was partially due the allowance for loan losses being at a level deemed appropriate by 
management based on various factors discussed in the “Allowance for Loan Loss” section of this Report.

Noninterest Income: Noninterest income for 2015 of $23.4 million increased $419,000 or 1.8% compared to $23.0 million for prior year. The 
net increase in noninterest income for 2015 compared to the prior year was primarily attributable to increases in Gain on securities, Increase in 
BOLI cash value, Brokerage services, and Insurance Services partially offset by decreases in Service charges on deposit accounts, Other service 
charge and fee income, Real estate package fees and Other noninterest income.

Service charges on deposit accounts for 2015 of $7.1 million decreased $346,000 or 4.6% compared to $7.5 million for the prior year. 
Non-sufficient check income more commonly referred to as net overdraft charges for 2015 of $5.2 million decreased $256,000 or 4.7% 
compared to $5.5 million for the prior year. Foreign customer service charges for 2015 of $233,000 decreased $67,000 or 22.3% compared to 
$299,000 for the prior year. The decline in service charges for the aforementioned categories was attributable to a decline in volume of activity 
for 2015.

Other service charge and fee income for 2015 of $7.7 million decreased $127,000 or 1.6% as compared to $7.9 million for the prior year. The 
net decrease in other service charge and fee income for 2015 was primarily attributable to three subcategories: debit card interchange fee 
income, foreign currency fees, and inspection fees. The decline in other service fees was partially offset by gains in merchant services income. 
Debit card interchange fee income of $4.6 million for 2015 decreased $84,000 or 1.8% compared to $4.7 million for the prior year. The Debit 
card interchange fee income for the prior year was a record year for the Company. The decrease in debit card fee income is attributable to 
volume of activity. Foreign currency fees for 2015 of $326,000 decreased $144,000 or 30.7% as compared to $470,000 for the prior year. The 
decline in foreign currency fees was due to a decline in currency exchange activity. Inspection fees for 2015 of $181,000 decreased $90,000 or 
33.3% as compared to $271,000 for the prior year. Merchant services income of $699,000 for 2015 increased $237,000 or 51.2% compared to 
$462,000 for the prior year and was attributable to an increased volume of business conducted by Bank customer merchants.

Real estate package fees for 2015 of $806,000 decreased $92,000 or 10.2% as compared to $898,000 for the prior year. The decrease in Real 
estate package fees was attributable to management's strategy to keep short-term mortgage loans on the Bank’s portfolio versus holding the 
mortgage loans for sale. For 2015 fewer mortgage loans were sold in the secondary market which resulted in fewer gains on sale of mortgage 
loans.

Gain on securities for 2015 of $1.8 million increased $581,000 or 47.7% compared to $1.2 million for the prior year. Securities were sold out of 
the Available for Sale portfolio to accomplish investment portfolio objectives aimed at maximizing the total return of the investment portfolio 
and to manage the Bank’s liquidity.

Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLI) for 2015 of $1.4 million increased $288,000 or 26.8% compared to $1.1 million for the prior year. The 
investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for employee compensation and benefit plans.

Brokerage services' commission income for 2015 of $2.433 million increased $42,000 or 1.8% compared to $2.391 million for the prior year. 

The increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Insurance services' commission income for 2015 of $2.1 million increased $121,000 or 6.2% compared to $1.9 million for the prior year. The 
increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Other noninterest income for 2015 of $48,000 decreased $48,000 or 50.0% compared to $96,000 for the prior year. The decrease in other 
noninterest income is primarily attributable to loss on sale of repossessed assets and abandoned assets.

Noninterest Expense: Noninterest expense for 2015 of $75.0 million decreased $2.5 million or 3.3% compared to $77.6 million for prior year. 
The decrease in noninterest expense was primarily attributable to a decrease in five subcategories: Legal and professional fees; Other real 
estate, net; Telephone expense; Business development expense, and Supplies. The decrease in noninterest expense was partially offset by an 
increase in employee compensation and employee benefit expense.

The largest category of noninterest expense is personnel expense of $40.3 million, which is comprised of employee compensation of $33.5 
million and employee benefits of $6.8 million. For 2015 these categories increased $1.8 million or 4.8% compared to $38.5 million for the prior 
year. Personnel expense increase was primarily a result of increases in staffing and medical benefit expenses. The Company group medical 
benefits are primarily provided through a self-funded plan which is supplemented by employee premiums. The funding for the self-funded is 
adjusted each year for anticipated claims. Net employee group insurance expense of $3.0 million for 2015 increased $786,000 or 35.6% 
compared to $2.2 million for the prior year. As of year-end 2015, the self-funded group medical plan had excess reserves of $635,000 for future 
medical claims.

Net occupancy and equipment expense of $9.2 million for 2015 increased $83,000 or 0.9% compared to $9.1 million for the prior year. The net 
increase in net occupancy and equipment expense for 2015 is primarily attributable to a decline in rental income of $103,000.

Data processing expense of $5.6 million for 2015 increased $16,000 or 0.3% compared to $5.6 million for the prior year. The net increase in 
data processing expense is primarily due to the volume of business conducted by the Company partially offset by cost savings realized in 
software and maintenance contracts.

Legal and professional expense of $5.8 million for 2015 decreased $3.2 million or 35.5% compared to $8.9 million for the prior year. The 
decrease is primarily due to a decrease in legal and consulting fees incurred to review and enhance compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) 
and legal settlements. That is partially offset by increases in audit and examination fees related to compliance with BSA.

Advertising expense of $1.9 million for 2015 increased $108,000 or 6.0% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to television and radio production / broadcast (up $96,000) and sports marketing (up $109,000) with all other categories 
reflecting a net decrease in expense. The marketing focus is to continue to promote the bank in the communities that we serve and to promote 
product awareness.

The other real estate owned net expense of $2.4 million for 2015 decreased $749,000 or 23.6% compared to $3.2 million for the prior year. This 
category includes direct expenses for foreclosed real estate including property taxes, maintenance costs, write-downs, less rent income and net 
gains on the sale of properties. For years 2015 and 2014, both years reflected a net loss from sale of OREO. The net loss on sale of OREO for 
2015 reflects a net decrease of $586,000 or 48.8% when compared to the prior year. OREO expenses of $1.8 million for 2015 decreased 
$163,000 or 8.2% compared to $2.0 million for the prior year. The decline in expenses is also reflective of the decline in OREO holdings for 2015. 
Management is aggressively working to reduce total OREO holdings to return the investment in said properties to earning assets.

Telephone expense of $1.4 million for 2015 decreased $395,000 or 21.8% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net decrease is 
primarily attributable to data communication expenses (down $489,000), mobile phone / device expenses (down $12,000), and all other 
expenses (up $105,000). The decrease in data communication expenses were a result of restructuring bandwidth and number of data lines to 
all locations, additional back-up connectivity and from renegotiating line charges of past billings.

Business development expense of $353,000 for 2015 decreased $316,000 or 47.2% compared to $669,000 for the prior year. The net decrease 
is primarily attributable to terminating, during 2014, a promotional program designed to increase customer debit card usage thereby increasing 
the Company’s debit card interchange fee income. The promotional program rewarded customers with redeemable points which were paid for 
by the Company. Total expenses for this program for 2015 of zero reflects a net decrease of $282,000 or 100.0% compared to the prior year.

Supplies expense of $533,000 for 2015 decreased $49,000 or 8.4% compared to $582,000 for the prior year. The net decrease is primarily 

attributable to stationery and printer supplies of $284000 for 2015 which decreased $48,000 or 14.6% compared to $333,000 for the prior year. 
Management is urging all employees to reduce expenses and to go paperless when possible.

Other noninterest expense of $4.7 million for 2015 increased $51,000 or 1.1% compared to $4.6 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to postage (up $103,000); State sales tax (up $194,000); Director expenses (up $146,000); and Other insurance (up 
$97,000), partially offset by ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses (down $166,000) and Provision for Off Balance Sheet Losses (down $287,000). 
The increase in Director expenses includes fees for Advisory Directors. For 2015, a new promotional program was implemented for Advisory 
Directors in the amount of $152,000 for business referrals. The incentives were accrued based on each referral that resulted in booked business. 
The improvement to the ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses were the result of a new debit card monitoring program to control the exposure to 
debit card losses.

Federal and State Income Taxes: Federal and state income taxes of $4.1 million for the year 2015 decreased $1.0 million compared to $5.1 
million for the prior year. The decrease in federal and state income taxes is attributable to a decreased level of pretax income during 2015. The 
decreased level of pretax income was partially achieved by the shift in investment strategy of investing in tax exempt municipal bonds. See 
discussion on “Investment Securities” for more information.

Net Income: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per fully 
diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the prior year.
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The following discussion addresses information pertaining to the financial condition and results of the operation of Lone Star National 
Bancshares-Texas, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) that may not be otherwise apparent from a review of the audited consolidated financial 
statements and related footnotes. It should be read in conjunction with those statements, as well as other information presented throughout 
the report. In addition to historical information, this discussion and other sections contained in this Annual Report include certain forward-looking 
statements regarding events and trends which may affect the Company’s future results. Such statements are subject to risk and uncertainties 
that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially. Such factors include, but are not limited to, those described in this discussion 
and analysis.

The Company is a privately held bank holding company headquartered in McAllen, Texas, offering a broad array of financial services through its 
wholly-owned banking subsidiary, Lone Star National Bank (the “Bank”). The Bank operates from thirty-two banking locations: twenty-seven 
(27) banking locations in the Rio Grande Valley and five (5) banking locations in San Antonio, Texas. The Bank engages in a wide range of 
commercial and personal banking activities including the usual acceptance of deposits for checking, savings and time deposit accounts; 
extension of secured and unsecured loans to corporations, individuals and others; issuance of letters of credit; rental of safe deposit boxes; 
brokerage services and insurance services. The Bank’s lending services include commercial, industrial, real estate, installment and credit card 
loans and participation in loans with other banks. The members of the Bank’s management team have significant experience and contacts from 
their service at the Bank and their prior service with other successful community banks that have operated in the same market. The Bank seeks 
to provide its products and services through a high quality, experienced staff and local decision making.

Year 2015 has proven to be another challenging year for the Company due to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense 
competitive pressures with business owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. On December 31, 2015, the 
Company had total assets of $2.2 billion, loans of $1.1 billion, deposits of $1.8 billion and shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million.

The Company’s primary goal is to provide a higher quality service for its customers in the South Texas market by providing personal service, 
relationship banking and innovative technological solutions. In order to broaden the customer base, primarily through expanding the Company’s 
network of full-service banking offices, the Board of Directors is continuing its efforts to expand our banking organization in the Rio Grande 
Valley and San Antonio markets by selecting sites for future branches.

The Company’s profitability is dependent on managing interest rate spreads, other operating income and expenses, and credit risk. Net interest 
income is the largest component of revenue for the Company. The Company manages interest rate risks through a funds management strategy 
which involves offering deposit and / or loan structures that tend to counter the natural rate risk profile of the Company. The Company addresses 
loan and deposit pricing, the asset and liability mix and interest rate sensitivity on a periodic basis. Yields on earning assets and rates paid on 
interest-bearing deposits within the Company declined during 2015. Through management’s efforts the net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 
reflects an 8 basis points decline when compared to the net interest margin of 3.51% for 2014. The Company manages its credit risk by 
establishing underwriting guidelines which address the characteristics of borrowers, industries, geographic locations and risk products. The 
credit process is controlled by continuous review and credit analysis. The Company evaluates its management of operating expenses through 
the efficiency ratio, which is approximately 82.6% for 2015. The efficiency ratio equates to the cost of recording one dollar’s worth of revenue.

Analysis of Financial Condition
Overview: Total assets of $2.203 billion at December 31, 2015 increased by 1.5% or $31.9 million compared to $2.171 billion on December 
31, 2014. Total deposits of $1.845 billion on December 31, 2015 increased by 1.9% or $33.9 million compared to $1.811 billion on December 
31, 2014. A more detailed description of changes to the balance sheet follows.

Due from Banks-interest bearing: Due from banks-interest bearing accounts of $205.8 million on December 31, 2015 increased $52.4 
million or 34.1% compared to $153.4 million on December 31, 2014. These funds represent excess funds deposited with correspondent banks 
in interest bearing accounts, primarily the Federal Reserve Bank.

Investment Securities: During 2014, management reclassified all held to maturity bonds to available for sale to actively manage the 
investment securities portfolio. As of December 31, 2014, all investment securities were classified as available for sale. Total investment 
securities of $691.5 million at December 31, 2015 increased $68.8 million or 11.1% compared to $622.7 million at December 31, 2014. Included 
in investment securities are municipal tax exempt bonds (“Tax Exempt Munis”). Tax Exempt Munis of $150.0 million at December 31, 2015 
increased $53.6 million or 55.4% compared to $96.8 million at December 31, 2014. The strategy for investment securities during 2015 was to 
remain conservative on reinvesting of cash flows to avoid taking on additional interest rate / extension risk and to increase yield. Included in 
the Tax Exempt Munis are bonds primarily from school districts within the State of Texas that are guaranteed by the Texas Permanent School 
Fund and as such, well secured. The investment securities portfolio yield of 2.49% for 2015 increase 0.04% compared to 2.45% for 2014.

Loans: Loans held for sale and held for investment of $1.143 billion on December 31, 2015 decreased $82.8 million or 6.8% compared to 
$1.225 billion on December 31, 2014. On December 31, 2015, the loan portfolio consisted primarily of $1.2 million of real estate loans held for 
sale, $129.1 million of commercial loans, $1.5 million of agriculture loans, $937.8 million of real estate loans and $73.1 million of consumer and 
other loans. These loans primarily originated within our market area of the Rio Grande Valley and San Antonio, Texas, and are generally secured 
by residential real estate, commercial real estate, business property or personal property. Despite the unprecedented contraction in the credit 
markets, we continued to lend to credit-worthy customers.

The Company manages credit risk by establishing and implementing strategies and guidelines appropriate to the characteristics of borrowers, 
industries, geographic locations and products. Diversification of risk within each of these areas is a primary objective. Policies and procedures 
are developed to ensure that loan commitments conform to current strategies and guidelines. Management continues to refine the Company’s 
credit policies and procedures to address risks in the current and prospective environment and to reflect management’s current strategic focus. 
The credit process is controlled with continuous credit review and analysis, as well as reviewed by internal and external auditors and regulatory 
authorities. The Company’s loans are widely diversified by borrower and industry group.

The Company has lending policies in effect so that lending of all types is approached, to the extent possible, including low-to-moderate income 
neighborhoods and small business, on a basis consistent with safe and sound standards. Stress testing is utilized to take into consideration the 
potentially adverse economic conditions under which liquidation of the loan could occur. Generally collateral accepted to secure the commercial 
loan portfolio is real estate, accounts receivable, inventory, marketable securities and equipment. However, for the consumer loan portfolio, 
autos, deeds of trust, life insurance and marketable securities are accepted as collateral.

The Company’s policy on maturity extensions and rollovers is based on management’s assessment of individual loans. Approvals for the 
extension or renewal of loans without reduction of principal for more than one twelve-month period are generally avoided unless the loans are 
fully secured and properly margined by cash or marketable securities or are revolving lines subject to annual analysis and renewal.

Nonperforming Assets: The Company has procedures in place to assist in maintaining the overall quality of its loan portfolio. Furthermore, 
the Company has established underwriting guidelines to be followed by its officers and monitors its delinquency levels for any negative or 
adverse trends, particularly with respect to credits which have total exposures of $10,000 or more.

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans, loans for which the interest rate has been renegotiated below originally contracted rates and 
real estate or other assets that have been acquired in partial or full satisfaction of loan obligations. On December 31, 2015, nonperforming 
assets totaled $82.3 million or 7.1% of loans plus repossessed assets. Nonperforming assets reflect a decrease of $12.0 million or 17.1% when 
compared to $70.2 million on December 31, 2014. Management has seasoned personnel to assist in turning nonperforming assets into 
performing assets or exiting the relationship. Management believes that it is unlikely that any material loss will be incurred on disposition of the 
collateral.

Management regularly reviews and monitors the loan portfolio to identify borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. Management believes that 
on December 31, 2015 all such loans have been identified and included in the nonaccrual, restructured or 90 days past due loan totals. 
Management continues to emphasize maintaining a low level of nonperforming assets and returning nonperforming assets to an earning status.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 of $25.4 million decreased $3.0 million or 10.7% compared 
to $28.4 million at December 31, 2014. The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 was 2.22% of loans held for investment.

Management analyzes the loan portfolio to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the appropriate provision required to 
maintain an adequate allowance. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, there can be no assurance that 
future additions to the allowance will not be necessary. Future adjustments could be necessary to the allowance for loan losses if circumstances 
or economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations. Additionally, as an internal part of 

the examination process, bank regulatory agencies periodically review our allowance for loan losses. The banking regulatory agencies could 
require the recognition of additions to our loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their 
examination.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment of $56.9 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $2.4 million or 4.0% compared to 
$59.3 million on December 31, 2014. The net decrease in premises and equipment for 2015 is primarily attributable to depreciation expense.

Other Real Estate Owned: Other real estate owned (“OREO”) of $20.7 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $11.3 million or 35.2% 
compared to $32.0 million on December 31, 2014. OREO assets represent property acquired as the result of borrower defaults on loans. 
Management actively manages the OREO and records the value of each OREO at either the lower of the fair market value less estimated selling 
costs or at the cost of the asset. Write-downs occurring at foreclosure are charged against the allowance for possible loan losses. On an ongoing 
basis, OREO is appraised as required by market indications and applicable regulations. Any further write-downs as a result of subsequent 
declines in value are included in other noninterest expense along with other expenses related to maintaining the properties.

Bank Owned Life Insurance: Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”) of $49.1 million on December 31, 2015 increased $1.4 million or 2.9% 
compared to $47.7 million on December 31, 2014. The investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for 
employee compensation and benefit plans. A split dollar benefit is provided for selected management and will be paid to the estate of the 
participant provided the participant is employed by the Company at date of death.

Deposits: Deposits on December 31, 2015 of $1.845 billion increased $33.9 million or 1.9% compared to $1.811 billion on December 31, 2014. 
The increase in deposits was primarily attributable to an increase in public fund deposits, partially offset by a decrease in foreign deposits and 
domestic deposits. Public fund deposits of $633.4 million increased $65.5 million, foreign deposits of $193.1 million decreased $17.0 million and 
all other core deposit accounts of $1.018 billion decreased $14.5 million on December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year. Deposits are the 
Company’s primary source of funds. The Company offers a variety of products designed to attract and retain deposit customers, such as 
checking accounts, regular savings deposits, NOW accounts, money market accounts, select certificates of deposit savings, an interest-bearing 
club account and certificates of deposits. Deposits are obtained primarily from individuals, partnerships and corporations in our market areas. 
In addition, we obtain deposits from state and local public entities, commonly referred to as public fund deposits. The Company’s policies also 
permit the acceptance of brokered deposits. Generally, both brokered certificates of deposit and public funds are less expensive than retail 
deposits  and are easily managed.

The interest rates paid are competitively priced for each particular deposit product and structured to meet our funding requirements. The 
Company’s management will continue to manage interest expense through deposit pricing. The Company’s management believes that additional 
funds, if needed, can be attracted and deposit growth can be accelerated through deposit pricing as the Company experiences increased loan 
demand or other liquidity needs.

Capital Resources: Shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million on December 31, 2015 increased $7.0 million or 2.9% compared to $240.3 million 
on December 31, 2014. The increase was primarily attributable to: $11.6 million of earnings, partially reduced by $1.8 million decrease in 
accumulated other comprehensive income, and further reduced by $2.9 million of net Treasury Stock purchases.

The Company has actively engaged in a buyback program of its stock during years 2012 to the present. During 2015, the Board of Directors 
retired $10.0 million of Treasury Stock by recording a decrease in Treasury Stock of like amount; offset by a $1.3 million decrease in Common 
Stock, a $2.4 million decrease in Paid-in-Capital and a $6.3 million decrease in Retained Earnings.

Bank holding companies are required to maintain capital ratios in accordance with guidelines adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. The 
guidelines are commonly known as Risk-Based Capital Guidelines. The minimum Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common 
Equity Tier 1 Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios which include an additional 2.5% Capital Conservation Buffer are 10.5%, 8.5%, 7.0% 
and 4.0%  respectively. On December 31, 2015, the Company’s Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common Equity Tier 1 
Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios were 21.13%, 19.87%, 17.87%, and 12.42% respectively. Shareholders’ equity as a percentage of 
total year-end assets was 11.22% in 2015 and 11.07% in 2014.

At December 31, 2015, the Company and the Bank met the criteria for classification as a “well-capitalized” institution under the prompt 
corrective action rules promulgated under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. Designation as a well-capitalized institution under these 
regulations does not constitute a recommendation or endorsement of the Company or the Bank by federal bank regulators.

Analysis of Results of Operations
Earnings Summary: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per 
fully diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the year 2014. A more detailed description 
of the results of operations is included in the material that follows.

Net Interest Income: Net interest income represents the largest source of income for the Company. Net interest income is the difference 
between interest earned on assets and interest expense incurred for the funds supporting those assets. The largest category of earning assets 
consists of loans. The second largest category of earning assets is investments, followed by funds due from banks-interest bearing deposits.

Earning assets are funded by consumer and commercial deposits and short-term borrowings. In addition to these interest-bearing funds, assets 
are also supported by interest-free funds, primarily demand deposits and shareholder’s equity. Variations in the volume and mix of assets and 
liabilities and their relative sensitivity to interest rate movements determine changes in net interest income.

Net interest income of $67.4 million for 2015 reflects a decrease of $3.1 million or 4.36% compared to the prior year of $70.5 million. The 
decrease in net interest income was attributable primarily to a decrease in loan volume and partially due to a decline in interest earned. The 
decline in loan volume is primarily attributable to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense competitive pressures with business 
owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. Management’s efforts to control the cost of funds by reducing the 

rate paid on deposits helped offset the decline in noninterest income.

The net yield on total interest-earning assets, also referred to as net interest margin, represents net interest income, on a tax equivalent basis, 
divided by average interest-earning assets. Since a significant portion of the Company’s funding is derived from interest-free sources, primarily 
demand deposits and shareholders’ equity, the effective rate paid for all funds is lower than the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities alone. 
The net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 decreased 8 basis points compared to 3.51% for the prior year. The Company continued to experience 
intense market competition for both loans and deposits during 2015. The yield on interest-earning assets of 4.06% for 2015 decreased 18 basis 
points compared to 4.24% for the prior year. The rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities of 0.86% for 2015 decreased 10 basis points compared 
to 0.96% for the prior year.

Provision for Loan Losses: The amount of provision for loan losses is based on periodic (not less than quarterly) evaluations of the loan 
portfolio, especially nonperforming and other potential problem loans. During these evaluations, management considers various factors. For 
additional information concerning the factors in these evaluations, see the “Allowance for Loan Losses” section of this Report.

The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings to bring the allowance for loan losses to a level deemed appropriate by management based 
on factors such as historical experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by the Company, the amount of nonperforming assets, 
regulatory policies, generally accepted accounting principles, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to the Company’s lending 
area, and other factors related to the collectibility of the Company’s loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for the year 2015 was zero. A 
zero provision for loan losses for year 2015 and 2014 was partially due the allowance for loan losses being at a level deemed appropriate by 
management based on various factors discussed in the “Allowance for Loan Loss” section of this Report.

Noninterest Income: Noninterest income for 2015 of $23.4 million increased $419,000 or 1.8% compared to $23.0 million for prior year. The 
net increase in noninterest income for 2015 compared to the prior year was primarily attributable to increases in Gain on securities, Increase in 
BOLI cash value, Brokerage services, and Insurance Services partially offset by decreases in Service charges on deposit accounts, Other service 
charge and fee income, Real estate package fees and Other noninterest income.

Service charges on deposit accounts for 2015 of $7.1 million decreased $346,000 or 4.6% compared to $7.5 million for the prior year. 
Non-sufficient check income more commonly referred to as net overdraft charges for 2015 of $5.2 million decreased $256,000 or 4.7% 
compared to $5.5 million for the prior year. Foreign customer service charges for 2015 of $233,000 decreased $67,000 or 22.3% compared to 
$299,000 for the prior year. The decline in service charges for the aforementioned categories was attributable to a decline in volume of activity 
for 2015.

Other service charge and fee income for 2015 of $7.7 million decreased $127,000 or 1.6% as compared to $7.9 million for the prior year. The 
net decrease in other service charge and fee income for 2015 was primarily attributable to three subcategories: debit card interchange fee 
income, foreign currency fees, and inspection fees. The decline in other service fees was partially offset by gains in merchant services income. 
Debit card interchange fee income of $4.6 million for 2015 decreased $84,000 or 1.8% compared to $4.7 million for the prior year. The Debit 
card interchange fee income for the prior year was a record year for the Company. The decrease in debit card fee income is attributable to 
volume of activity. Foreign currency fees for 2015 of $326,000 decreased $144,000 or 30.7% as compared to $470,000 for the prior year. The 
decline in foreign currency fees was due to a decline in currency exchange activity. Inspection fees for 2015 of $181,000 decreased $90,000 or 
33.3% as compared to $271,000 for the prior year. Merchant services income of $699,000 for 2015 increased $237,000 or 51.2% compared to 
$462,000 for the prior year and was attributable to an increased volume of business conducted by Bank customer merchants.

Real estate package fees for 2015 of $806,000 decreased $92,000 or 10.2% as compared to $898,000 for the prior year. The decrease in Real 
estate package fees was attributable to management's strategy to keep short-term mortgage loans on the Bank’s portfolio versus holding the 
mortgage loans for sale. For 2015 fewer mortgage loans were sold in the secondary market which resulted in fewer gains on sale of mortgage 
loans.

Gain on securities for 2015 of $1.8 million increased $581,000 or 47.7% compared to $1.2 million for the prior year. Securities were sold out of 
the Available for Sale portfolio to accomplish investment portfolio objectives aimed at maximizing the total return of the investment portfolio 
and to manage the Bank’s liquidity.

Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLI) for 2015 of $1.4 million increased $288,000 or 26.8% compared to $1.1 million for the prior year. The 
investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for employee compensation and benefit plans.

Brokerage services' commission income for 2015 of $2.433 million increased $42,000 or 1.8% compared to $2.391 million for the prior year. 

The increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Insurance services' commission income for 2015 of $2.1 million increased $121,000 or 6.2% compared to $1.9 million for the prior year. The 
increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Other noninterest income for 2015 of $48,000 decreased $48,000 or 50.0% compared to $96,000 for the prior year. The decrease in other 
noninterest income is primarily attributable to loss on sale of repossessed assets and abandoned assets.

Noninterest Expense: Noninterest expense for 2015 of $75.0 million decreased $2.5 million or 3.3% compared to $77.6 million for prior year. 
The decrease in noninterest expense was primarily attributable to a decrease in five subcategories: Legal and professional fees; Other real 
estate, net; Telephone expense; Business development expense, and Supplies. The decrease in noninterest expense was partially offset by an 
increase in employee compensation and employee benefit expense.

The largest category of noninterest expense is personnel expense of $40.3 million, which is comprised of employee compensation of $33.5 
million and employee benefits of $6.8 million. For 2015 these categories increased $1.8 million or 4.8% compared to $38.5 million for the prior 
year. Personnel expense increase was primarily a result of increases in staffing and medical benefit expenses. The Company group medical 
benefits are primarily provided through a self-funded plan which is supplemented by employee premiums. The funding for the self-funded is 
adjusted each year for anticipated claims. Net employee group insurance expense of $3.0 million for 2015 increased $786,000 or 35.6% 
compared to $2.2 million for the prior year. As of year-end 2015, the self-funded group medical plan had excess reserves of $635,000 for future 
medical claims.

Net occupancy and equipment expense of $9.2 million for 2015 increased $83,000 or 0.9% compared to $9.1 million for the prior year. The net 
increase in net occupancy and equipment expense for 2015 is primarily attributable to a decline in rental income of $103,000.

Data processing expense of $5.6 million for 2015 increased $16,000 or 0.3% compared to $5.6 million for the prior year. The net increase in 
data processing expense is primarily due to the volume of business conducted by the Company partially offset by cost savings realized in 
software and maintenance contracts.

Legal and professional expense of $5.8 million for 2015 decreased $3.2 million or 35.5% compared to $8.9 million for the prior year. The 
decrease is primarily due to a decrease in legal and consulting fees incurred to review and enhance compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) 
and legal settlements. That is partially offset by increases in audit and examination fees related to compliance with BSA.

Advertising expense of $1.9 million for 2015 increased $108,000 or 6.0% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to television and radio production / broadcast (up $96,000) and sports marketing (up $109,000) with all other categories 
reflecting a net decrease in expense. The marketing focus is to continue to promote the bank in the communities that we serve and to promote 
product awareness.

The other real estate owned net expense of $2.4 million for 2015 decreased $749,000 or 23.6% compared to $3.2 million for the prior year. This 
category includes direct expenses for foreclosed real estate including property taxes, maintenance costs, write-downs, less rent income and net 
gains on the sale of properties. For years 2015 and 2014, both years reflected a net loss from sale of OREO. The net loss on sale of OREO for 
2015 reflects a net decrease of $586,000 or 48.8% when compared to the prior year. OREO expenses of $1.8 million for 2015 decreased 
$163,000 or 8.2% compared to $2.0 million for the prior year. The decline in expenses is also reflective of the decline in OREO holdings for 2015. 
Management is aggressively working to reduce total OREO holdings to return the investment in said properties to earning assets.

Telephone expense of $1.4 million for 2015 decreased $395,000 or 21.8% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net decrease is 
primarily attributable to data communication expenses (down $489,000), mobile phone / device expenses (down $12,000), and all other 
expenses (up $105,000). The decrease in data communication expenses were a result of restructuring bandwidth and number of data lines to 
all locations, additional back-up connectivity and from renegotiating line charges of past billings.

Business development expense of $353,000 for 2015 decreased $316,000 or 47.2% compared to $669,000 for the prior year. The net decrease 
is primarily attributable to terminating, during 2014, a promotional program designed to increase customer debit card usage thereby increasing 
the Company’s debit card interchange fee income. The promotional program rewarded customers with redeemable points which were paid for 
by the Company. Total expenses for this program for 2015 of zero reflects a net decrease of $282,000 or 100.0% compared to the prior year.

Supplies expense of $533,000 for 2015 decreased $49,000 or 8.4% compared to $582,000 for the prior year. The net decrease is primarily 

attributable to stationery and printer supplies of $284000 for 2015 which decreased $48,000 or 14.6% compared to $333,000 for the prior year. 
Management is urging all employees to reduce expenses and to go paperless when possible.

Other noninterest expense of $4.7 million for 2015 increased $51,000 or 1.1% compared to $4.6 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to postage (up $103,000); State sales tax (up $194,000); Director expenses (up $146,000); and Other insurance (up 
$97,000), partially offset by ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses (down $166,000) and Provision for Off Balance Sheet Losses (down $287,000). 
The increase in Director expenses includes fees for Advisory Directors. For 2015, a new promotional program was implemented for Advisory 
Directors in the amount of $152,000 for business referrals. The incentives were accrued based on each referral that resulted in booked business. 
The improvement to the ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses were the result of a new debit card monitoring program to control the exposure to 
debit card losses.

Federal and State Income Taxes: Federal and state income taxes of $4.1 million for the year 2015 decreased $1.0 million compared to $5.1 
million for the prior year. The decrease in federal and state income taxes is attributable to a decreased level of pretax income during 2015. The 
decreased level of pretax income was partially achieved by the shift in investment strategy of investing in tax exempt municipal bonds. See 
discussion on “Investment Securities” for more information.

Net Income: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per fully 
diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the prior year.
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The following discussion addresses information pertaining to the financial condition and results of the operation of Lone Star National 
Bancshares-Texas, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) that may not be otherwise apparent from a review of the audited consolidated financial 
statements and related footnotes. It should be read in conjunction with those statements, as well as other information presented throughout 
the report. In addition to historical information, this discussion and other sections contained in this Annual Report include certain forward-looking 
statements regarding events and trends which may affect the Company’s future results. Such statements are subject to risk and uncertainties 
that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially. Such factors include, but are not limited to, those described in this discussion 
and analysis.

The Company is a privately held bank holding company headquartered in McAllen, Texas, offering a broad array of financial services through its 
wholly-owned banking subsidiary, Lone Star National Bank (the “Bank”). The Bank operates from thirty-two banking locations: twenty-seven 
(27) banking locations in the Rio Grande Valley and five (5) banking locations in San Antonio, Texas. The Bank engages in a wide range of 
commercial and personal banking activities including the usual acceptance of deposits for checking, savings and time deposit accounts; 
extension of secured and unsecured loans to corporations, individuals and others; issuance of letters of credit; rental of safe deposit boxes; 
brokerage services and insurance services. The Bank’s lending services include commercial, industrial, real estate, installment and credit card 
loans and participation in loans with other banks. The members of the Bank’s management team have significant experience and contacts from 
their service at the Bank and their prior service with other successful community banks that have operated in the same market. The Bank seeks 
to provide its products and services through a high quality, experienced staff and local decision making.

Year 2015 has proven to be another challenging year for the Company due to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense 
competitive pressures with business owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. On December 31, 2015, the 
Company had total assets of $2.2 billion, loans of $1.1 billion, deposits of $1.8 billion and shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million.

The Company’s primary goal is to provide a higher quality service for its customers in the South Texas market by providing personal service, 
relationship banking and innovative technological solutions. In order to broaden the customer base, primarily through expanding the Company’s 
network of full-service banking offices, the Board of Directors is continuing its efforts to expand our banking organization in the Rio Grande 
Valley and San Antonio markets by selecting sites for future branches.

The Company’s profitability is dependent on managing interest rate spreads, other operating income and expenses, and credit risk. Net interest 
income is the largest component of revenue for the Company. The Company manages interest rate risks through a funds management strategy 
which involves offering deposit and / or loan structures that tend to counter the natural rate risk profile of the Company. The Company addresses 
loan and deposit pricing, the asset and liability mix and interest rate sensitivity on a periodic basis. Yields on earning assets and rates paid on 
interest-bearing deposits within the Company declined during 2015. Through management’s efforts the net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 
reflects an 8 basis points decline when compared to the net interest margin of 3.51% for 2014. The Company manages its credit risk by 
establishing underwriting guidelines which address the characteristics of borrowers, industries, geographic locations and risk products. The 
credit process is controlled by continuous review and credit analysis. The Company evaluates its management of operating expenses through 
the efficiency ratio, which is approximately 82.6% for 2015. The efficiency ratio equates to the cost of recording one dollar’s worth of revenue.

Analysis of Financial Condition
Overview: Total assets of $2.203 billion at December 31, 2015 increased by 1.5% or $31.9 million compared to $2.171 billion on December 
31, 2014. Total deposits of $1.845 billion on December 31, 2015 increased by 1.9% or $33.9 million compared to $1.811 billion on December 
31, 2014. A more detailed description of changes to the balance sheet follows.

Due from Banks-interest bearing: Due from banks-interest bearing accounts of $205.8 million on December 31, 2015 increased $52.4 
million or 34.1% compared to $153.4 million on December 31, 2014. These funds represent excess funds deposited with correspondent banks 
in interest bearing accounts, primarily the Federal Reserve Bank.

Investment Securities: During 2014, management reclassified all held to maturity bonds to available for sale to actively manage the 
investment securities portfolio. As of December 31, 2014, all investment securities were classified as available for sale. Total investment 
securities of $691.5 million at December 31, 2015 increased $68.8 million or 11.1% compared to $622.7 million at December 31, 2014. Included 
in investment securities are municipal tax exempt bonds (“Tax Exempt Munis”). Tax Exempt Munis of $150.0 million at December 31, 2015 
increased $53.6 million or 55.4% compared to $96.8 million at December 31, 2014. The strategy for investment securities during 2015 was to 
remain conservative on reinvesting of cash flows to avoid taking on additional interest rate / extension risk and to increase yield. Included in 
the Tax Exempt Munis are bonds primarily from school districts within the State of Texas that are guaranteed by the Texas Permanent School 
Fund and as such, well secured. The investment securities portfolio yield of 2.49% for 2015 increase 0.04% compared to 2.45% for 2014.

Loans: Loans held for sale and held for investment of $1.143 billion on December 31, 2015 decreased $82.8 million or 6.8% compared to 
$1.225 billion on December 31, 2014. On December 31, 2015, the loan portfolio consisted primarily of $1.2 million of real estate loans held for 
sale, $129.1 million of commercial loans, $1.5 million of agriculture loans, $937.8 million of real estate loans and $73.1 million of consumer and 
other loans. These loans primarily originated within our market area of the Rio Grande Valley and San Antonio, Texas, and are generally secured 
by residential real estate, commercial real estate, business property or personal property. Despite the unprecedented contraction in the credit 
markets, we continued to lend to credit-worthy customers.

The Company manages credit risk by establishing and implementing strategies and guidelines appropriate to the characteristics of borrowers, 
industries, geographic locations and products. Diversification of risk within each of these areas is a primary objective. Policies and procedures 
are developed to ensure that loan commitments conform to current strategies and guidelines. Management continues to refine the Company’s 
credit policies and procedures to address risks in the current and prospective environment and to reflect management’s current strategic focus. 
The credit process is controlled with continuous credit review and analysis, as well as reviewed by internal and external auditors and regulatory 
authorities. The Company’s loans are widely diversified by borrower and industry group.

The Company has lending policies in effect so that lending of all types is approached, to the extent possible, including low-to-moderate income 
neighborhoods and small business, on a basis consistent with safe and sound standards. Stress testing is utilized to take into consideration the 
potentially adverse economic conditions under which liquidation of the loan could occur. Generally collateral accepted to secure the commercial 
loan portfolio is real estate, accounts receivable, inventory, marketable securities and equipment. However, for the consumer loan portfolio, 
autos, deeds of trust, life insurance and marketable securities are accepted as collateral.

The Company’s policy on maturity extensions and rollovers is based on management’s assessment of individual loans. Approvals for the 
extension or renewal of loans without reduction of principal for more than one twelve-month period are generally avoided unless the loans are 
fully secured and properly margined by cash or marketable securities or are revolving lines subject to annual analysis and renewal.

Nonperforming Assets: The Company has procedures in place to assist in maintaining the overall quality of its loan portfolio. Furthermore, 
the Company has established underwriting guidelines to be followed by its officers and monitors its delinquency levels for any negative or 
adverse trends, particularly with respect to credits which have total exposures of $10,000 or more.

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans, loans for which the interest rate has been renegotiated below originally contracted rates and 
real estate or other assets that have been acquired in partial or full satisfaction of loan obligations. On December 31, 2015, nonperforming 
assets totaled $82.3 million or 7.1% of loans plus repossessed assets. Nonperforming assets reflect a decrease of $12.0 million or 17.1% when 
compared to $70.2 million on December 31, 2014. Management has seasoned personnel to assist in turning nonperforming assets into 
performing assets or exiting the relationship. Management believes that it is unlikely that any material loss will be incurred on disposition of the 
collateral.

Management regularly reviews and monitors the loan portfolio to identify borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. Management believes that 
on December 31, 2015 all such loans have been identified and included in the nonaccrual, restructured or 90 days past due loan totals. 
Management continues to emphasize maintaining a low level of nonperforming assets and returning nonperforming assets to an earning status.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 of $25.4 million decreased $3.0 million or 10.7% compared 
to $28.4 million at December 31, 2014. The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 was 2.22% of loans held for investment.

Management analyzes the loan portfolio to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the appropriate provision required to 
maintain an adequate allowance. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, there can be no assurance that 
future additions to the allowance will not be necessary. Future adjustments could be necessary to the allowance for loan losses if circumstances 
or economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations. Additionally, as an internal part of 

the examination process, bank regulatory agencies periodically review our allowance for loan losses. The banking regulatory agencies could 
require the recognition of additions to our loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their 
examination.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment of $56.9 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $2.4 million or 4.0% compared to 
$59.3 million on December 31, 2014. The net decrease in premises and equipment for 2015 is primarily attributable to depreciation expense.

Other Real Estate Owned: Other real estate owned (“OREO”) of $20.7 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $11.3 million or 35.2% 
compared to $32.0 million on December 31, 2014. OREO assets represent property acquired as the result of borrower defaults on loans. 
Management actively manages the OREO and records the value of each OREO at either the lower of the fair market value less estimated selling 
costs or at the cost of the asset. Write-downs occurring at foreclosure are charged against the allowance for possible loan losses. On an ongoing 
basis, OREO is appraised as required by market indications and applicable regulations. Any further write-downs as a result of subsequent 
declines in value are included in other noninterest expense along with other expenses related to maintaining the properties.

Bank Owned Life Insurance: Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”) of $49.1 million on December 31, 2015 increased $1.4 million or 2.9% 
compared to $47.7 million on December 31, 2014. The investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for 
employee compensation and benefit plans. A split dollar benefit is provided for selected management and will be paid to the estate of the 
participant provided the participant is employed by the Company at date of death.

Deposits: Deposits on December 31, 2015 of $1.845 billion increased $33.9 million or 1.9% compared to $1.811 billion on December 31, 2014. 
The increase in deposits was primarily attributable to an increase in public fund deposits, partially offset by a decrease in foreign deposits and 
domestic deposits. Public fund deposits of $633.4 million increased $65.5 million, foreign deposits of $193.1 million decreased $17.0 million and 
all other core deposit accounts of $1.018 billion decreased $14.5 million on December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year. Deposits are the 
Company’s primary source of funds. The Company offers a variety of products designed to attract and retain deposit customers, such as 
checking accounts, regular savings deposits, NOW accounts, money market accounts, select certificates of deposit savings, an interest-bearing 
club account and certificates of deposits. Deposits are obtained primarily from individuals, partnerships and corporations in our market areas. 
In addition, we obtain deposits from state and local public entities, commonly referred to as public fund deposits. The Company’s policies also 
permit the acceptance of brokered deposits. Generally, both brokered certificates of deposit and public funds are less expensive than retail 
deposits  and are easily managed.

The interest rates paid are competitively priced for each particular deposit product and structured to meet our funding requirements. The 
Company’s management will continue to manage interest expense through deposit pricing. The Company’s management believes that additional 
funds, if needed, can be attracted and deposit growth can be accelerated through deposit pricing as the Company experiences increased loan 
demand or other liquidity needs.

Capital Resources: Shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million on December 31, 2015 increased $7.0 million or 2.9% compared to $240.3 million 
on December 31, 2014. The increase was primarily attributable to: $11.6 million of earnings, partially reduced by $1.8 million decrease in 
accumulated other comprehensive income, and further reduced by $2.9 million of net Treasury Stock purchases.

The Company has actively engaged in a buyback program of its stock during years 2012 to the present. During 2015, the Board of Directors 
retired $10.0 million of Treasury Stock by recording a decrease in Treasury Stock of like amount; offset by a $1.3 million decrease in Common 
Stock, a $2.4 million decrease in Paid-in-Capital and a $6.3 million decrease in Retained Earnings.

Bank holding companies are required to maintain capital ratios in accordance with guidelines adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. The 
guidelines are commonly known as Risk-Based Capital Guidelines. The minimum Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common 
Equity Tier 1 Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios which include an additional 2.5% Capital Conservation Buffer are 10.5%, 8.5%, 7.0% 
and 4.0%  respectively. On December 31, 2015, the Company’s Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common Equity Tier 1 
Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios were 21.13%, 19.87%, 17.87%, and 12.42% respectively. Shareholders’ equity as a percentage of 
total year-end assets was 11.22% in 2015 and 11.07% in 2014.

At December 31, 2015, the Company and the Bank met the criteria for classification as a “well-capitalized” institution under the prompt 
corrective action rules promulgated under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. Designation as a well-capitalized institution under these 
regulations does not constitute a recommendation or endorsement of the Company or the Bank by federal bank regulators.

Analysis of Results of Operations
Earnings Summary: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per 
fully diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the year 2014. A more detailed description 
of the results of operations is included in the material that follows.

Net Interest Income: Net interest income represents the largest source of income for the Company. Net interest income is the difference 
between interest earned on assets and interest expense incurred for the funds supporting those assets. The largest category of earning assets 
consists of loans. The second largest category of earning assets is investments, followed by funds due from banks-interest bearing deposits.

Earning assets are funded by consumer and commercial deposits and short-term borrowings. In addition to these interest-bearing funds, assets 
are also supported by interest-free funds, primarily demand deposits and shareholder’s equity. Variations in the volume and mix of assets and 
liabilities and their relative sensitivity to interest rate movements determine changes in net interest income.

Net interest income of $67.4 million for 2015 reflects a decrease of $3.1 million or 4.36% compared to the prior year of $70.5 million. The 
decrease in net interest income was attributable primarily to a decrease in loan volume and partially due to a decline in interest earned. The 
decline in loan volume is primarily attributable to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense competitive pressures with business 
owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. Management’s efforts to control the cost of funds by reducing the 

rate paid on deposits helped offset the decline in noninterest income.

The net yield on total interest-earning assets, also referred to as net interest margin, represents net interest income, on a tax equivalent basis, 
divided by average interest-earning assets. Since a significant portion of the Company’s funding is derived from interest-free sources, primarily 
demand deposits and shareholders’ equity, the effective rate paid for all funds is lower than the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities alone. 
The net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 decreased 8 basis points compared to 3.51% for the prior year. The Company continued to experience 
intense market competition for both loans and deposits during 2015. The yield on interest-earning assets of 4.06% for 2015 decreased 18 basis 
points compared to 4.24% for the prior year. The rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities of 0.86% for 2015 decreased 10 basis points compared 
to 0.96% for the prior year.

Provision for Loan Losses: The amount of provision for loan losses is based on periodic (not less than quarterly) evaluations of the loan 
portfolio, especially nonperforming and other potential problem loans. During these evaluations, management considers various factors. For 
additional information concerning the factors in these evaluations, see the “Allowance for Loan Losses” section of this Report.

The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings to bring the allowance for loan losses to a level deemed appropriate by management based 
on factors such as historical experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by the Company, the amount of nonperforming assets, 
regulatory policies, generally accepted accounting principles, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to the Company’s lending 
area, and other factors related to the collectibility of the Company’s loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for the year 2015 was zero. A 
zero provision for loan losses for year 2015 and 2014 was partially due the allowance for loan losses being at a level deemed appropriate by 
management based on various factors discussed in the “Allowance for Loan Loss” section of this Report.

Noninterest Income: Noninterest income for 2015 of $23.4 million increased $419,000 or 1.8% compared to $23.0 million for prior year. The 
net increase in noninterest income for 2015 compared to the prior year was primarily attributable to increases in Gain on securities, Increase in 
BOLI cash value, Brokerage services, and Insurance Services partially offset by decreases in Service charges on deposit accounts, Other service 
charge and fee income, Real estate package fees and Other noninterest income.

Service charges on deposit accounts for 2015 of $7.1 million decreased $346,000 or 4.6% compared to $7.5 million for the prior year. 
Non-sufficient check income more commonly referred to as net overdraft charges for 2015 of $5.2 million decreased $256,000 or 4.7% 
compared to $5.5 million for the prior year. Foreign customer service charges for 2015 of $233,000 decreased $67,000 or 22.3% compared to 
$299,000 for the prior year. The decline in service charges for the aforementioned categories was attributable to a decline in volume of activity 
for 2015.

Other service charge and fee income for 2015 of $7.7 million decreased $127,000 or 1.6% as compared to $7.9 million for the prior year. The 
net decrease in other service charge and fee income for 2015 was primarily attributable to three subcategories: debit card interchange fee 
income, foreign currency fees, and inspection fees. The decline in other service fees was partially offset by gains in merchant services income. 
Debit card interchange fee income of $4.6 million for 2015 decreased $84,000 or 1.8% compared to $4.7 million for the prior year. The Debit 
card interchange fee income for the prior year was a record year for the Company. The decrease in debit card fee income is attributable to 
volume of activity. Foreign currency fees for 2015 of $326,000 decreased $144,000 or 30.7% as compared to $470,000 for the prior year. The 
decline in foreign currency fees was due to a decline in currency exchange activity. Inspection fees for 2015 of $181,000 decreased $90,000 or 
33.3% as compared to $271,000 for the prior year. Merchant services income of $699,000 for 2015 increased $237,000 or 51.2% compared to 
$462,000 for the prior year and was attributable to an increased volume of business conducted by Bank customer merchants.

Real estate package fees for 2015 of $806,000 decreased $92,000 or 10.2% as compared to $898,000 for the prior year. The decrease in Real 
estate package fees was attributable to management's strategy to keep short-term mortgage loans on the Bank’s portfolio versus holding the 
mortgage loans for sale. For 2015 fewer mortgage loans were sold in the secondary market which resulted in fewer gains on sale of mortgage 
loans.

Gain on securities for 2015 of $1.8 million increased $581,000 or 47.7% compared to $1.2 million for the prior year. Securities were sold out of 
the Available for Sale portfolio to accomplish investment portfolio objectives aimed at maximizing the total return of the investment portfolio 
and to manage the Bank’s liquidity.

Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLI) for 2015 of $1.4 million increased $288,000 or 26.8% compared to $1.1 million for the prior year. The 
investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for employee compensation and benefit plans.

Brokerage services' commission income for 2015 of $2.433 million increased $42,000 or 1.8% compared to $2.391 million for the prior year. 

The increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Insurance services' commission income for 2015 of $2.1 million increased $121,000 or 6.2% compared to $1.9 million for the prior year. The 
increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Other noninterest income for 2015 of $48,000 decreased $48,000 or 50.0% compared to $96,000 for the prior year. The decrease in other 
noninterest income is primarily attributable to loss on sale of repossessed assets and abandoned assets.

Noninterest Expense: Noninterest expense for 2015 of $75.0 million decreased $2.5 million or 3.3% compared to $77.6 million for prior year. 
The decrease in noninterest expense was primarily attributable to a decrease in five subcategories: Legal and professional fees; Other real 
estate, net; Telephone expense; Business development expense, and Supplies. The decrease in noninterest expense was partially offset by an 
increase in employee compensation and employee benefit expense.

The largest category of noninterest expense is personnel expense of $40.3 million, which is comprised of employee compensation of $33.5 
million and employee benefits of $6.8 million. For 2015 these categories increased $1.8 million or 4.8% compared to $38.5 million for the prior 
year. Personnel expense increase was primarily a result of increases in staffing and medical benefit expenses. The Company group medical 
benefits are primarily provided through a self-funded plan which is supplemented by employee premiums. The funding for the self-funded is 
adjusted each year for anticipated claims. Net employee group insurance expense of $3.0 million for 2015 increased $786,000 or 35.6% 
compared to $2.2 million for the prior year. As of year-end 2015, the self-funded group medical plan had excess reserves of $635,000 for future 
medical claims.

Net occupancy and equipment expense of $9.2 million for 2015 increased $83,000 or 0.9% compared to $9.1 million for the prior year. The net 
increase in net occupancy and equipment expense for 2015 is primarily attributable to a decline in rental income of $103,000.

Data processing expense of $5.6 million for 2015 increased $16,000 or 0.3% compared to $5.6 million for the prior year. The net increase in 
data processing expense is primarily due to the volume of business conducted by the Company partially offset by cost savings realized in 
software and maintenance contracts.

Legal and professional expense of $5.8 million for 2015 decreased $3.2 million or 35.5% compared to $8.9 million for the prior year. The 
decrease is primarily due to a decrease in legal and consulting fees incurred to review and enhance compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) 
and legal settlements. That is partially offset by increases in audit and examination fees related to compliance with BSA.

Advertising expense of $1.9 million for 2015 increased $108,000 or 6.0% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to television and radio production / broadcast (up $96,000) and sports marketing (up $109,000) with all other categories 
reflecting a net decrease in expense. The marketing focus is to continue to promote the bank in the communities that we serve and to promote 
product awareness.

The other real estate owned net expense of $2.4 million for 2015 decreased $749,000 or 23.6% compared to $3.2 million for the prior year. This 
category includes direct expenses for foreclosed real estate including property taxes, maintenance costs, write-downs, less rent income and net 
gains on the sale of properties. For years 2015 and 2014, both years reflected a net loss from sale of OREO. The net loss on sale of OREO for 
2015 reflects a net decrease of $586,000 or 48.8% when compared to the prior year. OREO expenses of $1.8 million for 2015 decreased 
$163,000 or 8.2% compared to $2.0 million for the prior year. The decline in expenses is also reflective of the decline in OREO holdings for 2015. 
Management is aggressively working to reduce total OREO holdings to return the investment in said properties to earning assets.

Telephone expense of $1.4 million for 2015 decreased $395,000 or 21.8% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net decrease is 
primarily attributable to data communication expenses (down $489,000), mobile phone / device expenses (down $12,000), and all other 
expenses (up $105,000). The decrease in data communication expenses were a result of restructuring bandwidth and number of data lines to 
all locations, additional back-up connectivity and from renegotiating line charges of past billings.

Business development expense of $353,000 for 2015 decreased $316,000 or 47.2% compared to $669,000 for the prior year. The net decrease 
is primarily attributable to terminating, during 2014, a promotional program designed to increase customer debit card usage thereby increasing 
the Company’s debit card interchange fee income. The promotional program rewarded customers with redeemable points which were paid for 
by the Company. Total expenses for this program for 2015 of zero reflects a net decrease of $282,000 or 100.0% compared to the prior year.

Supplies expense of $533,000 for 2015 decreased $49,000 or 8.4% compared to $582,000 for the prior year. The net decrease is primarily 

attributable to stationery and printer supplies of $284000 for 2015 which decreased $48,000 or 14.6% compared to $333,000 for the prior year. 
Management is urging all employees to reduce expenses and to go paperless when possible.

Other noninterest expense of $4.7 million for 2015 increased $51,000 or 1.1% compared to $4.6 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to postage (up $103,000); State sales tax (up $194,000); Director expenses (up $146,000); and Other insurance (up 
$97,000), partially offset by ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses (down $166,000) and Provision for Off Balance Sheet Losses (down $287,000). 
The increase in Director expenses includes fees for Advisory Directors. For 2015, a new promotional program was implemented for Advisory 
Directors in the amount of $152,000 for business referrals. The incentives were accrued based on each referral that resulted in booked business. 
The improvement to the ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses were the result of a new debit card monitoring program to control the exposure to 
debit card losses.

Federal and State Income Taxes: Federal and state income taxes of $4.1 million for the year 2015 decreased $1.0 million compared to $5.1 
million for the prior year. The decrease in federal and state income taxes is attributable to a decreased level of pretax income during 2015. The 
decreased level of pretax income was partially achieved by the shift in investment strategy of investing in tax exempt municipal bonds. See 
discussion on “Investment Securities” for more information.

Net Income: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per fully 
diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the prior year.
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The following discussion addresses information pertaining to the financial condition and results of the operation of Lone Star National 
Bancshares-Texas, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) that may not be otherwise apparent from a review of the audited consolidated financial 
statements and related footnotes. It should be read in conjunction with those statements, as well as other information presented throughout 
the report. In addition to historical information, this discussion and other sections contained in this Annual Report include certain forward-looking 
statements regarding events and trends which may affect the Company’s future results. Such statements are subject to risk and uncertainties 
that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially. Such factors include, but are not limited to, those described in this discussion 
and analysis.

The Company is a privately held bank holding company headquartered in McAllen, Texas, offering a broad array of financial services through its 
wholly-owned banking subsidiary, Lone Star National Bank (the “Bank”). The Bank operates from thirty-two banking locations: twenty-seven 
(27) banking locations in the Rio Grande Valley and five (5) banking locations in San Antonio, Texas. The Bank engages in a wide range of 
commercial and personal banking activities including the usual acceptance of deposits for checking, savings and time deposit accounts; 
extension of secured and unsecured loans to corporations, individuals and others; issuance of letters of credit; rental of safe deposit boxes; 
brokerage services and insurance services. The Bank’s lending services include commercial, industrial, real estate, installment and credit card 
loans and participation in loans with other banks. The members of the Bank’s management team have significant experience and contacts from 
their service at the Bank and their prior service with other successful community banks that have operated in the same market. The Bank seeks 
to provide its products and services through a high quality, experienced staff and local decision making.

Year 2015 has proven to be another challenging year for the Company due to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense 
competitive pressures with business owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. On December 31, 2015, the 
Company had total assets of $2.2 billion, loans of $1.1 billion, deposits of $1.8 billion and shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million.

The Company’s primary goal is to provide a higher quality service for its customers in the South Texas market by providing personal service, 
relationship banking and innovative technological solutions. In order to broaden the customer base, primarily through expanding the Company’s 
network of full-service banking offices, the Board of Directors is continuing its efforts to expand our banking organization in the Rio Grande 
Valley and San Antonio markets by selecting sites for future branches.

The Company’s profitability is dependent on managing interest rate spreads, other operating income and expenses, and credit risk. Net interest 
income is the largest component of revenue for the Company. The Company manages interest rate risks through a funds management strategy 
which involves offering deposit and / or loan structures that tend to counter the natural rate risk profile of the Company. The Company addresses 
loan and deposit pricing, the asset and liability mix and interest rate sensitivity on a periodic basis. Yields on earning assets and rates paid on 
interest-bearing deposits within the Company declined during 2015. Through management’s efforts the net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 
reflects an 8 basis points decline when compared to the net interest margin of 3.51% for 2014. The Company manages its credit risk by 
establishing underwriting guidelines which address the characteristics of borrowers, industries, geographic locations and risk products. The 
credit process is controlled by continuous review and credit analysis. The Company evaluates its management of operating expenses through 
the efficiency ratio, which is approximately 82.6% for 2015. The efficiency ratio equates to the cost of recording one dollar’s worth of revenue.

Analysis of Financial Condition
Overview: Total assets of $2.203 billion at December 31, 2015 increased by 1.5% or $31.9 million compared to $2.171 billion on December 
31, 2014. Total deposits of $1.845 billion on December 31, 2015 increased by 1.9% or $33.9 million compared to $1.811 billion on December 
31, 2014. A more detailed description of changes to the balance sheet follows.

Due from Banks-interest bearing: Due from banks-interest bearing accounts of $205.8 million on December 31, 2015 increased $52.4 
million or 34.1% compared to $153.4 million on December 31, 2014. These funds represent excess funds deposited with correspondent banks 
in interest bearing accounts, primarily the Federal Reserve Bank.

Investment Securities: During 2014, management reclassified all held to maturity bonds to available for sale to actively manage the 
investment securities portfolio. As of December 31, 2014, all investment securities were classified as available for sale. Total investment 
securities of $691.5 million at December 31, 2015 increased $68.8 million or 11.1% compared to $622.7 million at December 31, 2014. Included 
in investment securities are municipal tax exempt bonds (“Tax Exempt Munis”). Tax Exempt Munis of $150.0 million at December 31, 2015 
increased $53.6 million or 55.4% compared to $96.8 million at December 31, 2014. The strategy for investment securities during 2015 was to 
remain conservative on reinvesting of cash flows to avoid taking on additional interest rate / extension risk and to increase yield. Included in 
the Tax Exempt Munis are bonds primarily from school districts within the State of Texas that are guaranteed by the Texas Permanent School 
Fund and as such, well secured. The investment securities portfolio yield of 2.49% for 2015 increase 0.04% compared to 2.45% for 2014.

Loans: Loans held for sale and held for investment of $1.143 billion on December 31, 2015 decreased $82.8 million or 6.8% compared to 
$1.225 billion on December 31, 2014. On December 31, 2015, the loan portfolio consisted primarily of $1.2 million of real estate loans held for 
sale, $129.1 million of commercial loans, $1.5 million of agriculture loans, $937.8 million of real estate loans and $73.1 million of consumer and 
other loans. These loans primarily originated within our market area of the Rio Grande Valley and San Antonio, Texas, and are generally secured 
by residential real estate, commercial real estate, business property or personal property. Despite the unprecedented contraction in the credit 
markets, we continued to lend to credit-worthy customers.

The Company manages credit risk by establishing and implementing strategies and guidelines appropriate to the characteristics of borrowers, 
industries, geographic locations and products. Diversification of risk within each of these areas is a primary objective. Policies and procedures 
are developed to ensure that loan commitments conform to current strategies and guidelines. Management continues to refine the Company’s 
credit policies and procedures to address risks in the current and prospective environment and to reflect management’s current strategic focus. 
The credit process is controlled with continuous credit review and analysis, as well as reviewed by internal and external auditors and regulatory 
authorities. The Company’s loans are widely diversified by borrower and industry group.

The Company has lending policies in effect so that lending of all types is approached, to the extent possible, including low-to-moderate income 
neighborhoods and small business, on a basis consistent with safe and sound standards. Stress testing is utilized to take into consideration the 
potentially adverse economic conditions under which liquidation of the loan could occur. Generally collateral accepted to secure the commercial 
loan portfolio is real estate, accounts receivable, inventory, marketable securities and equipment. However, for the consumer loan portfolio, 
autos, deeds of trust, life insurance and marketable securities are accepted as collateral.

The Company’s policy on maturity extensions and rollovers is based on management’s assessment of individual loans. Approvals for the 
extension or renewal of loans without reduction of principal for more than one twelve-month period are generally avoided unless the loans are 
fully secured and properly margined by cash or marketable securities or are revolving lines subject to annual analysis and renewal.

Nonperforming Assets: The Company has procedures in place to assist in maintaining the overall quality of its loan portfolio. Furthermore, 
the Company has established underwriting guidelines to be followed by its officers and monitors its delinquency levels for any negative or 
adverse trends, particularly with respect to credits which have total exposures of $10,000 or more.

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans, loans for which the interest rate has been renegotiated below originally contracted rates and 
real estate or other assets that have been acquired in partial or full satisfaction of loan obligations. On December 31, 2015, nonperforming 
assets totaled $82.3 million or 7.1% of loans plus repossessed assets. Nonperforming assets reflect a decrease of $12.0 million or 17.1% when 
compared to $70.2 million on December 31, 2014. Management has seasoned personnel to assist in turning nonperforming assets into 
performing assets or exiting the relationship. Management believes that it is unlikely that any material loss will be incurred on disposition of the 
collateral.

Management regularly reviews and monitors the loan portfolio to identify borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. Management believes that 
on December 31, 2015 all such loans have been identified and included in the nonaccrual, restructured or 90 days past due loan totals. 
Management continues to emphasize maintaining a low level of nonperforming assets and returning nonperforming assets to an earning status.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 of $25.4 million decreased $3.0 million or 10.7% compared 
to $28.4 million at December 31, 2014. The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 was 2.22% of loans held for investment.

Management analyzes the loan portfolio to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the appropriate provision required to 
maintain an adequate allowance. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, there can be no assurance that 
future additions to the allowance will not be necessary. Future adjustments could be necessary to the allowance for loan losses if circumstances 
or economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations. Additionally, as an internal part of 

the examination process, bank regulatory agencies periodically review our allowance for loan losses. The banking regulatory agencies could 
require the recognition of additions to our loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their 
examination.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment of $56.9 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $2.4 million or 4.0% compared to 
$59.3 million on December 31, 2014. The net decrease in premises and equipment for 2015 is primarily attributable to depreciation expense.

Other Real Estate Owned: Other real estate owned (“OREO”) of $20.7 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $11.3 million or 35.2% 
compared to $32.0 million on December 31, 2014. OREO assets represent property acquired as the result of borrower defaults on loans. 
Management actively manages the OREO and records the value of each OREO at either the lower of the fair market value less estimated selling 
costs or at the cost of the asset. Write-downs occurring at foreclosure are charged against the allowance for possible loan losses. On an ongoing 
basis, OREO is appraised as required by market indications and applicable regulations. Any further write-downs as a result of subsequent 
declines in value are included in other noninterest expense along with other expenses related to maintaining the properties.

Bank Owned Life Insurance: Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”) of $49.1 million on December 31, 2015 increased $1.4 million or 2.9% 
compared to $47.7 million on December 31, 2014. The investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for 
employee compensation and benefit plans. A split dollar benefit is provided for selected management and will be paid to the estate of the 
participant provided the participant is employed by the Company at date of death.

Deposits: Deposits on December 31, 2015 of $1.845 billion increased $33.9 million or 1.9% compared to $1.811 billion on December 31, 2014. 
The increase in deposits was primarily attributable to an increase in public fund deposits, partially offset by a decrease in foreign deposits and 
domestic deposits. Public fund deposits of $633.4 million increased $65.5 million, foreign deposits of $193.1 million decreased $17.0 million and 
all other core deposit accounts of $1.018 billion decreased $14.5 million on December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year. Deposits are the 
Company’s primary source of funds. The Company offers a variety of products designed to attract and retain deposit customers, such as 
checking accounts, regular savings deposits, NOW accounts, money market accounts, select certificates of deposit savings, an interest-bearing 
club account and certificates of deposits. Deposits are obtained primarily from individuals, partnerships and corporations in our market areas. 
In addition, we obtain deposits from state and local public entities, commonly referred to as public fund deposits. The Company’s policies also 
permit the acceptance of brokered deposits. Generally, both brokered certificates of deposit and public funds are less expensive than retail 
deposits  and are easily managed.

The interest rates paid are competitively priced for each particular deposit product and structured to meet our funding requirements. The 
Company’s management will continue to manage interest expense through deposit pricing. The Company’s management believes that additional 
funds, if needed, can be attracted and deposit growth can be accelerated through deposit pricing as the Company experiences increased loan 
demand or other liquidity needs.

Capital Resources: Shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million on December 31, 2015 increased $7.0 million or 2.9% compared to $240.3 million 
on December 31, 2014. The increase was primarily attributable to: $11.6 million of earnings, partially reduced by $1.8 million decrease in 
accumulated other comprehensive income, and further reduced by $2.9 million of net Treasury Stock purchases.

The Company has actively engaged in a buyback program of its stock during years 2012 to the present. During 2015, the Board of Directors 
retired $10.0 million of Treasury Stock by recording a decrease in Treasury Stock of like amount; offset by a $1.3 million decrease in Common 
Stock, a $2.4 million decrease in Paid-in-Capital and a $6.3 million decrease in Retained Earnings.

Bank holding companies are required to maintain capital ratios in accordance with guidelines adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. The 
guidelines are commonly known as Risk-Based Capital Guidelines. The minimum Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common 
Equity Tier 1 Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios which include an additional 2.5% Capital Conservation Buffer are 10.5%, 8.5%, 7.0% 
and 4.0%  respectively. On December 31, 2015, the Company’s Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common Equity Tier 1 
Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios were 21.13%, 19.87%, 17.87%, and 12.42% respectively. Shareholders’ equity as a percentage of 
total year-end assets was 11.22% in 2015 and 11.07% in 2014.

At December 31, 2015, the Company and the Bank met the criteria for classification as a “well-capitalized” institution under the prompt 
corrective action rules promulgated under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. Designation as a well-capitalized institution under these 
regulations does not constitute a recommendation or endorsement of the Company or the Bank by federal bank regulators.

Analysis of Results of Operations
Earnings Summary: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per 
fully diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the year 2014. A more detailed description 
of the results of operations is included in the material that follows.

Net Interest Income: Net interest income represents the largest source of income for the Company. Net interest income is the difference 
between interest earned on assets and interest expense incurred for the funds supporting those assets. The largest category of earning assets 
consists of loans. The second largest category of earning assets is investments, followed by funds due from banks-interest bearing deposits.

Earning assets are funded by consumer and commercial deposits and short-term borrowings. In addition to these interest-bearing funds, assets 
are also supported by interest-free funds, primarily demand deposits and shareholder’s equity. Variations in the volume and mix of assets and 
liabilities and their relative sensitivity to interest rate movements determine changes in net interest income.

Net interest income of $67.4 million for 2015 reflects a decrease of $3.1 million or 4.36% compared to the prior year of $70.5 million. The 
decrease in net interest income was attributable primarily to a decrease in loan volume and partially due to a decline in interest earned. The 
decline in loan volume is primarily attributable to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense competitive pressures with business 
owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. Management’s efforts to control the cost of funds by reducing the 

rate paid on deposits helped offset the decline in noninterest income.

The net yield on total interest-earning assets, also referred to as net interest margin, represents net interest income, on a tax equivalent basis, 
divided by average interest-earning assets. Since a significant portion of the Company’s funding is derived from interest-free sources, primarily 
demand deposits and shareholders’ equity, the effective rate paid for all funds is lower than the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities alone. 
The net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 decreased 8 basis points compared to 3.51% for the prior year. The Company continued to experience 
intense market competition for both loans and deposits during 2015. The yield on interest-earning assets of 4.06% for 2015 decreased 18 basis 
points compared to 4.24% for the prior year. The rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities of 0.86% for 2015 decreased 10 basis points compared 
to 0.96% for the prior year.

Provision for Loan Losses: The amount of provision for loan losses is based on periodic (not less than quarterly) evaluations of the loan 
portfolio, especially nonperforming and other potential problem loans. During these evaluations, management considers various factors. For 
additional information concerning the factors in these evaluations, see the “Allowance for Loan Losses” section of this Report.

The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings to bring the allowance for loan losses to a level deemed appropriate by management based 
on factors such as historical experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by the Company, the amount of nonperforming assets, 
regulatory policies, generally accepted accounting principles, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to the Company’s lending 
area, and other factors related to the collectibility of the Company’s loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for the year 2015 was zero. A 
zero provision for loan losses for year 2015 and 2014 was partially due the allowance for loan losses being at a level deemed appropriate by 
management based on various factors discussed in the “Allowance for Loan Loss” section of this Report.

Noninterest Income: Noninterest income for 2015 of $23.4 million increased $419,000 or 1.8% compared to $23.0 million for prior year. The 
net increase in noninterest income for 2015 compared to the prior year was primarily attributable to increases in Gain on securities, Increase in 
BOLI cash value, Brokerage services, and Insurance Services partially offset by decreases in Service charges on deposit accounts, Other service 
charge and fee income, Real estate package fees and Other noninterest income.

Service charges on deposit accounts for 2015 of $7.1 million decreased $346,000 or 4.6% compared to $7.5 million for the prior year. 
Non-sufficient check income more commonly referred to as net overdraft charges for 2015 of $5.2 million decreased $256,000 or 4.7% 
compared to $5.5 million for the prior year. Foreign customer service charges for 2015 of $233,000 decreased $67,000 or 22.3% compared to 
$299,000 for the prior year. The decline in service charges for the aforementioned categories was attributable to a decline in volume of activity 
for 2015.

Other service charge and fee income for 2015 of $7.7 million decreased $127,000 or 1.6% as compared to $7.9 million for the prior year. The 
net decrease in other service charge and fee income for 2015 was primarily attributable to three subcategories: debit card interchange fee 
income, foreign currency fees, and inspection fees. The decline in other service fees was partially offset by gains in merchant services income. 
Debit card interchange fee income of $4.6 million for 2015 decreased $84,000 or 1.8% compared to $4.7 million for the prior year. The Debit 
card interchange fee income for the prior year was a record year for the Company. The decrease in debit card fee income is attributable to 
volume of activity. Foreign currency fees for 2015 of $326,000 decreased $144,000 or 30.7% as compared to $470,000 for the prior year. The 
decline in foreign currency fees was due to a decline in currency exchange activity. Inspection fees for 2015 of $181,000 decreased $90,000 or 
33.3% as compared to $271,000 for the prior year. Merchant services income of $699,000 for 2015 increased $237,000 or 51.2% compared to 
$462,000 for the prior year and was attributable to an increased volume of business conducted by Bank customer merchants.

Real estate package fees for 2015 of $806,000 decreased $92,000 or 10.2% as compared to $898,000 for the prior year. The decrease in Real 
estate package fees was attributable to management's strategy to keep short-term mortgage loans on the Bank’s portfolio versus holding the 
mortgage loans for sale. For 2015 fewer mortgage loans were sold in the secondary market which resulted in fewer gains on sale of mortgage 
loans.

Gain on securities for 2015 of $1.8 million increased $581,000 or 47.7% compared to $1.2 million for the prior year. Securities were sold out of 
the Available for Sale portfolio to accomplish investment portfolio objectives aimed at maximizing the total return of the investment portfolio 
and to manage the Bank’s liquidity.

Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLI) for 2015 of $1.4 million increased $288,000 or 26.8% compared to $1.1 million for the prior year. The 
investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for employee compensation and benefit plans.

Brokerage services' commission income for 2015 of $2.433 million increased $42,000 or 1.8% compared to $2.391 million for the prior year. 

The increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Insurance services' commission income for 2015 of $2.1 million increased $121,000 or 6.2% compared to $1.9 million for the prior year. The 
increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Other noninterest income for 2015 of $48,000 decreased $48,000 or 50.0% compared to $96,000 for the prior year. The decrease in other 
noninterest income is primarily attributable to loss on sale of repossessed assets and abandoned assets.

Noninterest Expense: Noninterest expense for 2015 of $75.0 million decreased $2.5 million or 3.3% compared to $77.6 million for prior year. 
The decrease in noninterest expense was primarily attributable to a decrease in five subcategories: Legal and professional fees; Other real 
estate, net; Telephone expense; Business development expense, and Supplies. The decrease in noninterest expense was partially offset by an 
increase in employee compensation and employee benefit expense.

The largest category of noninterest expense is personnel expense of $40.3 million, which is comprised of employee compensation of $33.5 
million and employee benefits of $6.8 million. For 2015 these categories increased $1.8 million or 4.8% compared to $38.5 million for the prior 
year. Personnel expense increase was primarily a result of increases in staffing and medical benefit expenses. The Company group medical 
benefits are primarily provided through a self-funded plan which is supplemented by employee premiums. The funding for the self-funded is 
adjusted each year for anticipated claims. Net employee group insurance expense of $3.0 million for 2015 increased $786,000 or 35.6% 
compared to $2.2 million for the prior year. As of year-end 2015, the self-funded group medical plan had excess reserves of $635,000 for future 
medical claims.

Net occupancy and equipment expense of $9.2 million for 2015 increased $83,000 or 0.9% compared to $9.1 million for the prior year. The net 
increase in net occupancy and equipment expense for 2015 is primarily attributable to a decline in rental income of $103,000.

Data processing expense of $5.6 million for 2015 increased $16,000 or 0.3% compared to $5.6 million for the prior year. The net increase in 
data processing expense is primarily due to the volume of business conducted by the Company partially offset by cost savings realized in 
software and maintenance contracts.

Legal and professional expense of $5.8 million for 2015 decreased $3.2 million or 35.5% compared to $8.9 million for the prior year. The 
decrease is primarily due to a decrease in legal and consulting fees incurred to review and enhance compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) 
and legal settlements. That is partially offset by increases in audit and examination fees related to compliance with BSA.

Advertising expense of $1.9 million for 2015 increased $108,000 or 6.0% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to television and radio production / broadcast (up $96,000) and sports marketing (up $109,000) with all other categories 
reflecting a net decrease in expense. The marketing focus is to continue to promote the bank in the communities that we serve and to promote 
product awareness.

The other real estate owned net expense of $2.4 million for 2015 decreased $749,000 or 23.6% compared to $3.2 million for the prior year. This 
category includes direct expenses for foreclosed real estate including property taxes, maintenance costs, write-downs, less rent income and net 
gains on the sale of properties. For years 2015 and 2014, both years reflected a net loss from sale of OREO. The net loss on sale of OREO for 
2015 reflects a net decrease of $586,000 or 48.8% when compared to the prior year. OREO expenses of $1.8 million for 2015 decreased 
$163,000 or 8.2% compared to $2.0 million for the prior year. The decline in expenses is also reflective of the decline in OREO holdings for 2015. 
Management is aggressively working to reduce total OREO holdings to return the investment in said properties to earning assets.

Telephone expense of $1.4 million for 2015 decreased $395,000 or 21.8% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net decrease is 
primarily attributable to data communication expenses (down $489,000), mobile phone / device expenses (down $12,000), and all other 
expenses (up $105,000). The decrease in data communication expenses were a result of restructuring bandwidth and number of data lines to 
all locations, additional back-up connectivity and from renegotiating line charges of past billings.

Business development expense of $353,000 for 2015 decreased $316,000 or 47.2% compared to $669,000 for the prior year. The net decrease 
is primarily attributable to terminating, during 2014, a promotional program designed to increase customer debit card usage thereby increasing 
the Company’s debit card interchange fee income. The promotional program rewarded customers with redeemable points which were paid for 
by the Company. Total expenses for this program for 2015 of zero reflects a net decrease of $282,000 or 100.0% compared to the prior year.

Supplies expense of $533,000 for 2015 decreased $49,000 or 8.4% compared to $582,000 for the prior year. The net decrease is primarily 

attributable to stationery and printer supplies of $284000 for 2015 which decreased $48,000 or 14.6% compared to $333,000 for the prior year. 
Management is urging all employees to reduce expenses and to go paperless when possible.

Other noninterest expense of $4.7 million for 2015 increased $51,000 or 1.1% compared to $4.6 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to postage (up $103,000); State sales tax (up $194,000); Director expenses (up $146,000); and Other insurance (up 
$97,000), partially offset by ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses (down $166,000) and Provision for Off Balance Sheet Losses (down $287,000). 
The increase in Director expenses includes fees for Advisory Directors. For 2015, a new promotional program was implemented for Advisory 
Directors in the amount of $152,000 for business referrals. The incentives were accrued based on each referral that resulted in booked business. 
The improvement to the ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses were the result of a new debit card monitoring program to control the exposure to 
debit card losses.

Federal and State Income Taxes: Federal and state income taxes of $4.1 million for the year 2015 decreased $1.0 million compared to $5.1 
million for the prior year. The decrease in federal and state income taxes is attributable to a decreased level of pretax income during 2015. The 
decreased level of pretax income was partially achieved by the shift in investment strategy of investing in tax exempt municipal bonds. See 
discussion on “Investment Securities” for more information.

Net Income: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per fully 
diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the prior year.
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The following discussion addresses information pertaining to the financial condition and results of the operation of Lone Star National 
Bancshares-Texas, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) that may not be otherwise apparent from a review of the audited consolidated financial 
statements and related footnotes. It should be read in conjunction with those statements, as well as other information presented throughout 
the report. In addition to historical information, this discussion and other sections contained in this Annual Report include certain forward-looking 
statements regarding events and trends which may affect the Company’s future results. Such statements are subject to risk and uncertainties 
that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially. Such factors include, but are not limited to, those described in this discussion 
and analysis.

The Company is a privately held bank holding company headquartered in McAllen, Texas, offering a broad array of financial services through its 
wholly-owned banking subsidiary, Lone Star National Bank (the “Bank”). The Bank operates from thirty-two banking locations: twenty-seven 
(27) banking locations in the Rio Grande Valley and five (5) banking locations in San Antonio, Texas. The Bank engages in a wide range of 
commercial and personal banking activities including the usual acceptance of deposits for checking, savings and time deposit accounts; 
extension of secured and unsecured loans to corporations, individuals and others; issuance of letters of credit; rental of safe deposit boxes; 
brokerage services and insurance services. The Bank’s lending services include commercial, industrial, real estate, installment and credit card 
loans and participation in loans with other banks. The members of the Bank’s management team have significant experience and contacts from 
their service at the Bank and their prior service with other successful community banks that have operated in the same market. The Bank seeks 
to provide its products and services through a high quality, experienced staff and local decision making.

Year 2015 has proven to be another challenging year for the Company due to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense 
competitive pressures with business owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. On December 31, 2015, the 
Company had total assets of $2.2 billion, loans of $1.1 billion, deposits of $1.8 billion and shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million.

The Company’s primary goal is to provide a higher quality service for its customers in the South Texas market by providing personal service, 
relationship banking and innovative technological solutions. In order to broaden the customer base, primarily through expanding the Company’s 
network of full-service banking offices, the Board of Directors is continuing its efforts to expand our banking organization in the Rio Grande 
Valley and San Antonio markets by selecting sites for future branches.

The Company’s profitability is dependent on managing interest rate spreads, other operating income and expenses, and credit risk. Net interest 
income is the largest component of revenue for the Company. The Company manages interest rate risks through a funds management strategy 
which involves offering deposit and / or loan structures that tend to counter the natural rate risk profile of the Company. The Company addresses 
loan and deposit pricing, the asset and liability mix and interest rate sensitivity on a periodic basis. Yields on earning assets and rates paid on 
interest-bearing deposits within the Company declined during 2015. Through management’s efforts the net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 
reflects an 8 basis points decline when compared to the net interest margin of 3.51% for 2014. The Company manages its credit risk by 
establishing underwriting guidelines which address the characteristics of borrowers, industries, geographic locations and risk products. The 
credit process is controlled by continuous review and credit analysis. The Company evaluates its management of operating expenses through 
the efficiency ratio, which is approximately 82.6% for 2015. The efficiency ratio equates to the cost of recording one dollar’s worth of revenue.

Analysis of Financial Condition
Overview: Total assets of $2.203 billion at December 31, 2015 increased by 1.5% or $31.9 million compared to $2.171 billion on December 
31, 2014. Total deposits of $1.845 billion on December 31, 2015 increased by 1.9% or $33.9 million compared to $1.811 billion on December 
31, 2014. A more detailed description of changes to the balance sheet follows.

Due from Banks-interest bearing: Due from banks-interest bearing accounts of $205.8 million on December 31, 2015 increased $52.4 
million or 34.1% compared to $153.4 million on December 31, 2014. These funds represent excess funds deposited with correspondent banks 
in interest bearing accounts, primarily the Federal Reserve Bank.

Investment Securities: During 2014, management reclassified all held to maturity bonds to available for sale to actively manage the 
investment securities portfolio. As of December 31, 2014, all investment securities were classified as available for sale. Total investment 
securities of $691.5 million at December 31, 2015 increased $68.8 million or 11.1% compared to $622.7 million at December 31, 2014. Included 
in investment securities are municipal tax exempt bonds (“Tax Exempt Munis”). Tax Exempt Munis of $150.0 million at December 31, 2015 
increased $53.6 million or 55.4% compared to $96.8 million at December 31, 2014. The strategy for investment securities during 2015 was to 
remain conservative on reinvesting of cash flows to avoid taking on additional interest rate / extension risk and to increase yield. Included in 
the Tax Exempt Munis are bonds primarily from school districts within the State of Texas that are guaranteed by the Texas Permanent School 
Fund and as such, well secured. The investment securities portfolio yield of 2.49% for 2015 increase 0.04% compared to 2.45% for 2014.

Loans: Loans held for sale and held for investment of $1.143 billion on December 31, 2015 decreased $82.8 million or 6.8% compared to 
$1.225 billion on December 31, 2014. On December 31, 2015, the loan portfolio consisted primarily of $1.2 million of real estate loans held for 
sale, $129.1 million of commercial loans, $1.5 million of agriculture loans, $937.8 million of real estate loans and $73.1 million of consumer and 
other loans. These loans primarily originated within our market area of the Rio Grande Valley and San Antonio, Texas, and are generally secured 
by residential real estate, commercial real estate, business property or personal property. Despite the unprecedented contraction in the credit 
markets, we continued to lend to credit-worthy customers.

The Company manages credit risk by establishing and implementing strategies and guidelines appropriate to the characteristics of borrowers, 
industries, geographic locations and products. Diversification of risk within each of these areas is a primary objective. Policies and procedures 
are developed to ensure that loan commitments conform to current strategies and guidelines. Management continues to refine the Company’s 
credit policies and procedures to address risks in the current and prospective environment and to reflect management’s current strategic focus. 
The credit process is controlled with continuous credit review and analysis, as well as reviewed by internal and external auditors and regulatory 
authorities. The Company’s loans are widely diversified by borrower and industry group.

The Company has lending policies in effect so that lending of all types is approached, to the extent possible, including low-to-moderate income 
neighborhoods and small business, on a basis consistent with safe and sound standards. Stress testing is utilized to take into consideration the 
potentially adverse economic conditions under which liquidation of the loan could occur. Generally collateral accepted to secure the commercial 
loan portfolio is real estate, accounts receivable, inventory, marketable securities and equipment. However, for the consumer loan portfolio, 
autos, deeds of trust, life insurance and marketable securities are accepted as collateral.

The Company’s policy on maturity extensions and rollovers is based on management’s assessment of individual loans. Approvals for the 
extension or renewal of loans without reduction of principal for more than one twelve-month period are generally avoided unless the loans are 
fully secured and properly margined by cash or marketable securities or are revolving lines subject to annual analysis and renewal.

Nonperforming Assets: The Company has procedures in place to assist in maintaining the overall quality of its loan portfolio. Furthermore, 
the Company has established underwriting guidelines to be followed by its officers and monitors its delinquency levels for any negative or 
adverse trends, particularly with respect to credits which have total exposures of $10,000 or more.

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans, loans for which the interest rate has been renegotiated below originally contracted rates and 
real estate or other assets that have been acquired in partial or full satisfaction of loan obligations. On December 31, 2015, nonperforming 
assets totaled $82.3 million or 7.1% of loans plus repossessed assets. Nonperforming assets reflect a decrease of $12.0 million or 17.1% when 
compared to $70.2 million on December 31, 2014. Management has seasoned personnel to assist in turning nonperforming assets into 
performing assets or exiting the relationship. Management believes that it is unlikely that any material loss will be incurred on disposition of the 
collateral.

Management regularly reviews and monitors the loan portfolio to identify borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. Management believes that 
on December 31, 2015 all such loans have been identified and included in the nonaccrual, restructured or 90 days past due loan totals. 
Management continues to emphasize maintaining a low level of nonperforming assets and returning nonperforming assets to an earning status.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 of $25.4 million decreased $3.0 million or 10.7% compared 
to $28.4 million at December 31, 2014. The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 was 2.22% of loans held for investment.

Management analyzes the loan portfolio to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the appropriate provision required to 
maintain an adequate allowance. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, there can be no assurance that 
future additions to the allowance will not be necessary. Future adjustments could be necessary to the allowance for loan losses if circumstances 
or economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations. Additionally, as an internal part of 

the examination process, bank regulatory agencies periodically review our allowance for loan losses. The banking regulatory agencies could 
require the recognition of additions to our loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their 
examination.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment of $56.9 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $2.4 million or 4.0% compared to 
$59.3 million on December 31, 2014. The net decrease in premises and equipment for 2015 is primarily attributable to depreciation expense.

Other Real Estate Owned: Other real estate owned (“OREO”) of $20.7 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $11.3 million or 35.2% 
compared to $32.0 million on December 31, 2014. OREO assets represent property acquired as the result of borrower defaults on loans. 
Management actively manages the OREO and records the value of each OREO at either the lower of the fair market value less estimated selling 
costs or at the cost of the asset. Write-downs occurring at foreclosure are charged against the allowance for possible loan losses. On an ongoing 
basis, OREO is appraised as required by market indications and applicable regulations. Any further write-downs as a result of subsequent 
declines in value are included in other noninterest expense along with other expenses related to maintaining the properties.

Bank Owned Life Insurance: Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”) of $49.1 million on December 31, 2015 increased $1.4 million or 2.9% 
compared to $47.7 million on December 31, 2014. The investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for 
employee compensation and benefit plans. A split dollar benefit is provided for selected management and will be paid to the estate of the 
participant provided the participant is employed by the Company at date of death.

Deposits: Deposits on December 31, 2015 of $1.845 billion increased $33.9 million or 1.9% compared to $1.811 billion on December 31, 2014. 
The increase in deposits was primarily attributable to an increase in public fund deposits, partially offset by a decrease in foreign deposits and 
domestic deposits. Public fund deposits of $633.4 million increased $65.5 million, foreign deposits of $193.1 million decreased $17.0 million and 
all other core deposit accounts of $1.018 billion decreased $14.5 million on December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year. Deposits are the 
Company’s primary source of funds. The Company offers a variety of products designed to attract and retain deposit customers, such as 
checking accounts, regular savings deposits, NOW accounts, money market accounts, select certificates of deposit savings, an interest-bearing 
club account and certificates of deposits. Deposits are obtained primarily from individuals, partnerships and corporations in our market areas. 
In addition, we obtain deposits from state and local public entities, commonly referred to as public fund deposits. The Company’s policies also 
permit the acceptance of brokered deposits. Generally, both brokered certificates of deposit and public funds are less expensive than retail 
deposits  and are easily managed.

The interest rates paid are competitively priced for each particular deposit product and structured to meet our funding requirements. The 
Company’s management will continue to manage interest expense through deposit pricing. The Company’s management believes that additional 
funds, if needed, can be attracted and deposit growth can be accelerated through deposit pricing as the Company experiences increased loan 
demand or other liquidity needs.

Capital Resources: Shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million on December 31, 2015 increased $7.0 million or 2.9% compared to $240.3 million 
on December 31, 2014. The increase was primarily attributable to: $11.6 million of earnings, partially reduced by $1.8 million decrease in 
accumulated other comprehensive income, and further reduced by $2.9 million of net Treasury Stock purchases.

The Company has actively engaged in a buyback program of its stock during years 2012 to the present. During 2015, the Board of Directors 
retired $10.0 million of Treasury Stock by recording a decrease in Treasury Stock of like amount; offset by a $1.3 million decrease in Common 
Stock, a $2.4 million decrease in Paid-in-Capital and a $6.3 million decrease in Retained Earnings.

Bank holding companies are required to maintain capital ratios in accordance with guidelines adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. The 
guidelines are commonly known as Risk-Based Capital Guidelines. The minimum Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common 
Equity Tier 1 Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios which include an additional 2.5% Capital Conservation Buffer are 10.5%, 8.5%, 7.0% 
and 4.0%  respectively. On December 31, 2015, the Company’s Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common Equity Tier 1 
Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios were 21.13%, 19.87%, 17.87%, and 12.42% respectively. Shareholders’ equity as a percentage of 
total year-end assets was 11.22% in 2015 and 11.07% in 2014.

At December 31, 2015, the Company and the Bank met the criteria for classification as a “well-capitalized” institution under the prompt 
corrective action rules promulgated under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. Designation as a well-capitalized institution under these 
regulations does not constitute a recommendation or endorsement of the Company or the Bank by federal bank regulators.

Analysis of Results of Operations
Earnings Summary: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per 
fully diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the year 2014. A more detailed description 
of the results of operations is included in the material that follows.

Net Interest Income: Net interest income represents the largest source of income for the Company. Net interest income is the difference 
between interest earned on assets and interest expense incurred for the funds supporting those assets. The largest category of earning assets 
consists of loans. The second largest category of earning assets is investments, followed by funds due from banks-interest bearing deposits.

Earning assets are funded by consumer and commercial deposits and short-term borrowings. In addition to these interest-bearing funds, assets 
are also supported by interest-free funds, primarily demand deposits and shareholder’s equity. Variations in the volume and mix of assets and 
liabilities and their relative sensitivity to interest rate movements determine changes in net interest income.

Net interest income of $67.4 million for 2015 reflects a decrease of $3.1 million or 4.36% compared to the prior year of $70.5 million. The 
decrease in net interest income was attributable primarily to a decrease in loan volume and partially due to a decline in interest earned. The 
decline in loan volume is primarily attributable to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense competitive pressures with business 
owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. Management’s efforts to control the cost of funds by reducing the 

rate paid on deposits helped offset the decline in noninterest income.

The net yield on total interest-earning assets, also referred to as net interest margin, represents net interest income, on a tax equivalent basis, 
divided by average interest-earning assets. Since a significant portion of the Company’s funding is derived from interest-free sources, primarily 
demand deposits and shareholders’ equity, the effective rate paid for all funds is lower than the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities alone. 
The net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 decreased 8 basis points compared to 3.51% for the prior year. The Company continued to experience 
intense market competition for both loans and deposits during 2015. The yield on interest-earning assets of 4.06% for 2015 decreased 18 basis 
points compared to 4.24% for the prior year. The rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities of 0.86% for 2015 decreased 10 basis points compared 
to 0.96% for the prior year.

Provision for Loan Losses: The amount of provision for loan losses is based on periodic (not less than quarterly) evaluations of the loan 
portfolio, especially nonperforming and other potential problem loans. During these evaluations, management considers various factors. For 
additional information concerning the factors in these evaluations, see the “Allowance for Loan Losses” section of this Report.

The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings to bring the allowance for loan losses to a level deemed appropriate by management based 
on factors such as historical experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by the Company, the amount of nonperforming assets, 
regulatory policies, generally accepted accounting principles, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to the Company’s lending 
area, and other factors related to the collectibility of the Company’s loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for the year 2015 was zero. A 
zero provision for loan losses for year 2015 and 2014 was partially due the allowance for loan losses being at a level deemed appropriate by 
management based on various factors discussed in the “Allowance for Loan Loss” section of this Report.

Noninterest Income: Noninterest income for 2015 of $23.4 million increased $419,000 or 1.8% compared to $23.0 million for prior year. The 
net increase in noninterest income for 2015 compared to the prior year was primarily attributable to increases in Gain on securities, Increase in 
BOLI cash value, Brokerage services, and Insurance Services partially offset by decreases in Service charges on deposit accounts, Other service 
charge and fee income, Real estate package fees and Other noninterest income.

Service charges on deposit accounts for 2015 of $7.1 million decreased $346,000 or 4.6% compared to $7.5 million for the prior year. 
Non-sufficient check income more commonly referred to as net overdraft charges for 2015 of $5.2 million decreased $256,000 or 4.7% 
compared to $5.5 million for the prior year. Foreign customer service charges for 2015 of $233,000 decreased $67,000 or 22.3% compared to 
$299,000 for the prior year. The decline in service charges for the aforementioned categories was attributable to a decline in volume of activity 
for 2015.

Other service charge and fee income for 2015 of $7.7 million decreased $127,000 or 1.6% as compared to $7.9 million for the prior year. The 
net decrease in other service charge and fee income for 2015 was primarily attributable to three subcategories: debit card interchange fee 
income, foreign currency fees, and inspection fees. The decline in other service fees was partially offset by gains in merchant services income. 
Debit card interchange fee income of $4.6 million for 2015 decreased $84,000 or 1.8% compared to $4.7 million for the prior year. The Debit 
card interchange fee income for the prior year was a record year for the Company. The decrease in debit card fee income is attributable to 
volume of activity. Foreign currency fees for 2015 of $326,000 decreased $144,000 or 30.7% as compared to $470,000 for the prior year. The 
decline in foreign currency fees was due to a decline in currency exchange activity. Inspection fees for 2015 of $181,000 decreased $90,000 or 
33.3% as compared to $271,000 for the prior year. Merchant services income of $699,000 for 2015 increased $237,000 or 51.2% compared to 
$462,000 for the prior year and was attributable to an increased volume of business conducted by Bank customer merchants.

Real estate package fees for 2015 of $806,000 decreased $92,000 or 10.2% as compared to $898,000 for the prior year. The decrease in Real 
estate package fees was attributable to management's strategy to keep short-term mortgage loans on the Bank’s portfolio versus holding the 
mortgage loans for sale. For 2015 fewer mortgage loans were sold in the secondary market which resulted in fewer gains on sale of mortgage 
loans.

Gain on securities for 2015 of $1.8 million increased $581,000 or 47.7% compared to $1.2 million for the prior year. Securities were sold out of 
the Available for Sale portfolio to accomplish investment portfolio objectives aimed at maximizing the total return of the investment portfolio 
and to manage the Bank’s liquidity.

Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLI) for 2015 of $1.4 million increased $288,000 or 26.8% compared to $1.1 million for the prior year. The 
investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for employee compensation and benefit plans.

Brokerage services' commission income for 2015 of $2.433 million increased $42,000 or 1.8% compared to $2.391 million for the prior year. 

The increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Insurance services' commission income for 2015 of $2.1 million increased $121,000 or 6.2% compared to $1.9 million for the prior year. The 
increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Other noninterest income for 2015 of $48,000 decreased $48,000 or 50.0% compared to $96,000 for the prior year. The decrease in other 
noninterest income is primarily attributable to loss on sale of repossessed assets and abandoned assets.

Noninterest Expense: Noninterest expense for 2015 of $75.0 million decreased $2.5 million or 3.3% compared to $77.6 million for prior year. 
The decrease in noninterest expense was primarily attributable to a decrease in five subcategories: Legal and professional fees; Other real 
estate, net; Telephone expense; Business development expense, and Supplies. The decrease in noninterest expense was partially offset by an 
increase in employee compensation and employee benefit expense.

The largest category of noninterest expense is personnel expense of $40.3 million, which is comprised of employee compensation of $33.5 
million and employee benefits of $6.8 million. For 2015 these categories increased $1.8 million or 4.8% compared to $38.5 million for the prior 
year. Personnel expense increase was primarily a result of increases in staffing and medical benefit expenses. The Company group medical 
benefits are primarily provided through a self-funded plan which is supplemented by employee premiums. The funding for the self-funded is 
adjusted each year for anticipated claims. Net employee group insurance expense of $3.0 million for 2015 increased $786,000 or 35.6% 
compared to $2.2 million for the prior year. As of year-end 2015, the self-funded group medical plan had excess reserves of $635,000 for future 
medical claims.

Net occupancy and equipment expense of $9.2 million for 2015 increased $83,000 or 0.9% compared to $9.1 million for the prior year. The net 
increase in net occupancy and equipment expense for 2015 is primarily attributable to a decline in rental income of $103,000.

Data processing expense of $5.6 million for 2015 increased $16,000 or 0.3% compared to $5.6 million for the prior year. The net increase in 
data processing expense is primarily due to the volume of business conducted by the Company partially offset by cost savings realized in 
software and maintenance contracts.

Legal and professional expense of $5.8 million for 2015 decreased $3.2 million or 35.5% compared to $8.9 million for the prior year. The 
decrease is primarily due to a decrease in legal and consulting fees incurred to review and enhance compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) 
and legal settlements. That is partially offset by increases in audit and examination fees related to compliance with BSA.

Advertising expense of $1.9 million for 2015 increased $108,000 or 6.0% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to television and radio production / broadcast (up $96,000) and sports marketing (up $109,000) with all other categories 
reflecting a net decrease in expense. The marketing focus is to continue to promote the bank in the communities that we serve and to promote 
product awareness.

The other real estate owned net expense of $2.4 million for 2015 decreased $749,000 or 23.6% compared to $3.2 million for the prior year. This 
category includes direct expenses for foreclosed real estate including property taxes, maintenance costs, write-downs, less rent income and net 
gains on the sale of properties. For years 2015 and 2014, both years reflected a net loss from sale of OREO. The net loss on sale of OREO for 
2015 reflects a net decrease of $586,000 or 48.8% when compared to the prior year. OREO expenses of $1.8 million for 2015 decreased 
$163,000 or 8.2% compared to $2.0 million for the prior year. The decline in expenses is also reflective of the decline in OREO holdings for 2015. 
Management is aggressively working to reduce total OREO holdings to return the investment in said properties to earning assets.

Telephone expense of $1.4 million for 2015 decreased $395,000 or 21.8% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net decrease is 
primarily attributable to data communication expenses (down $489,000), mobile phone / device expenses (down $12,000), and all other 
expenses (up $105,000). The decrease in data communication expenses were a result of restructuring bandwidth and number of data lines to 
all locations, additional back-up connectivity and from renegotiating line charges of past billings.

Business development expense of $353,000 for 2015 decreased $316,000 or 47.2% compared to $669,000 for the prior year. The net decrease 
is primarily attributable to terminating, during 2014, a promotional program designed to increase customer debit card usage thereby increasing 
the Company’s debit card interchange fee income. The promotional program rewarded customers with redeemable points which were paid for 
by the Company. Total expenses for this program for 2015 of zero reflects a net decrease of $282,000 or 100.0% compared to the prior year.

Supplies expense of $533,000 for 2015 decreased $49,000 or 8.4% compared to $582,000 for the prior year. The net decrease is primarily 

attributable to stationery and printer supplies of $284000 for 2015 which decreased $48,000 or 14.6% compared to $333,000 for the prior year. 
Management is urging all employees to reduce expenses and to go paperless when possible.

Other noninterest expense of $4.7 million for 2015 increased $51,000 or 1.1% compared to $4.6 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to postage (up $103,000); State sales tax (up $194,000); Director expenses (up $146,000); and Other insurance (up 
$97,000), partially offset by ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses (down $166,000) and Provision for Off Balance Sheet Losses (down $287,000). 
The increase in Director expenses includes fees for Advisory Directors. For 2015, a new promotional program was implemented for Advisory 
Directors in the amount of $152,000 for business referrals. The incentives were accrued based on each referral that resulted in booked business. 
The improvement to the ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses were the result of a new debit card monitoring program to control the exposure to 
debit card losses.

Federal and State Income Taxes: Federal and state income taxes of $4.1 million for the year 2015 decreased $1.0 million compared to $5.1 
million for the prior year. The decrease in federal and state income taxes is attributable to a decreased level of pretax income during 2015. The 
decreased level of pretax income was partially achieved by the shift in investment strategy of investing in tax exempt municipal bonds. See 
discussion on “Investment Securities” for more information.

Net Income: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per fully 
diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the prior year.
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The following discussion addresses information pertaining to the financial condition and results of the operation of Lone Star National 
Bancshares-Texas, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) that may not be otherwise apparent from a review of the audited consolidated financial 
statements and related footnotes. It should be read in conjunction with those statements, as well as other information presented throughout 
the report. In addition to historical information, this discussion and other sections contained in this Annual Report include certain forward-looking 
statements regarding events and trends which may affect the Company’s future results. Such statements are subject to risk and uncertainties 
that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially. Such factors include, but are not limited to, those described in this discussion 
and analysis.

The Company is a privately held bank holding company headquartered in McAllen, Texas, offering a broad array of financial services through its 
wholly-owned banking subsidiary, Lone Star National Bank (the “Bank”). The Bank operates from thirty-two banking locations: twenty-seven 
(27) banking locations in the Rio Grande Valley and five (5) banking locations in San Antonio, Texas. The Bank engages in a wide range of 
commercial and personal banking activities including the usual acceptance of deposits for checking, savings and time deposit accounts; 
extension of secured and unsecured loans to corporations, individuals and others; issuance of letters of credit; rental of safe deposit boxes; 
brokerage services and insurance services. The Bank’s lending services include commercial, industrial, real estate, installment and credit card 
loans and participation in loans with other banks. The members of the Bank’s management team have significant experience and contacts from 
their service at the Bank and their prior service with other successful community banks that have operated in the same market. The Bank seeks 
to provide its products and services through a high quality, experienced staff and local decision making.

Year 2015 has proven to be another challenging year for the Company due to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense 
competitive pressures with business owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. On December 31, 2015, the 
Company had total assets of $2.2 billion, loans of $1.1 billion, deposits of $1.8 billion and shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million.

The Company’s primary goal is to provide a higher quality service for its customers in the South Texas market by providing personal service, 
relationship banking and innovative technological solutions. In order to broaden the customer base, primarily through expanding the Company’s 
network of full-service banking offices, the Board of Directors is continuing its efforts to expand our banking organization in the Rio Grande 
Valley and San Antonio markets by selecting sites for future branches.

The Company’s profitability is dependent on managing interest rate spreads, other operating income and expenses, and credit risk. Net interest 
income is the largest component of revenue for the Company. The Company manages interest rate risks through a funds management strategy 
which involves offering deposit and / or loan structures that tend to counter the natural rate risk profile of the Company. The Company addresses 
loan and deposit pricing, the asset and liability mix and interest rate sensitivity on a periodic basis. Yields on earning assets and rates paid on 
interest-bearing deposits within the Company declined during 2015. Through management’s efforts the net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 
reflects an 8 basis points decline when compared to the net interest margin of 3.51% for 2014. The Company manages its credit risk by 
establishing underwriting guidelines which address the characteristics of borrowers, industries, geographic locations and risk products. The 
credit process is controlled by continuous review and credit analysis. The Company evaluates its management of operating expenses through 
the efficiency ratio, which is approximately 82.6% for 2015. The efficiency ratio equates to the cost of recording one dollar’s worth of revenue.

Analysis of Financial Condition
Overview: Total assets of $2.203 billion at December 31, 2015 increased by 1.5% or $31.9 million compared to $2.171 billion on December 
31, 2014. Total deposits of $1.845 billion on December 31, 2015 increased by 1.9% or $33.9 million compared to $1.811 billion on December 
31, 2014. A more detailed description of changes to the balance sheet follows.

Due from Banks-interest bearing: Due from banks-interest bearing accounts of $205.8 million on December 31, 2015 increased $52.4 
million or 34.1% compared to $153.4 million on December 31, 2014. These funds represent excess funds deposited with correspondent banks 
in interest bearing accounts, primarily the Federal Reserve Bank.

Investment Securities: During 2014, management reclassified all held to maturity bonds to available for sale to actively manage the 
investment securities portfolio. As of December 31, 2014, all investment securities were classified as available for sale. Total investment 
securities of $691.5 million at December 31, 2015 increased $68.8 million or 11.1% compared to $622.7 million at December 31, 2014. Included 
in investment securities are municipal tax exempt bonds (“Tax Exempt Munis”). Tax Exempt Munis of $150.0 million at December 31, 2015 
increased $53.6 million or 55.4% compared to $96.8 million at December 31, 2014. The strategy for investment securities during 2015 was to 
remain conservative on reinvesting of cash flows to avoid taking on additional interest rate / extension risk and to increase yield. Included in 
the Tax Exempt Munis are bonds primarily from school districts within the State of Texas that are guaranteed by the Texas Permanent School 
Fund and as such, well secured. The investment securities portfolio yield of 2.49% for 2015 increase 0.04% compared to 2.45% for 2014.

Loans: Loans held for sale and held for investment of $1.143 billion on December 31, 2015 decreased $82.8 million or 6.8% compared to 
$1.225 billion on December 31, 2014. On December 31, 2015, the loan portfolio consisted primarily of $1.2 million of real estate loans held for 
sale, $129.1 million of commercial loans, $1.5 million of agriculture loans, $937.8 million of real estate loans and $73.1 million of consumer and 
other loans. These loans primarily originated within our market area of the Rio Grande Valley and San Antonio, Texas, and are generally secured 
by residential real estate, commercial real estate, business property or personal property. Despite the unprecedented contraction in the credit 
markets, we continued to lend to credit-worthy customers.

The Company manages credit risk by establishing and implementing strategies and guidelines appropriate to the characteristics of borrowers, 
industries, geographic locations and products. Diversification of risk within each of these areas is a primary objective. Policies and procedures 
are developed to ensure that loan commitments conform to current strategies and guidelines. Management continues to refine the Company’s 
credit policies and procedures to address risks in the current and prospective environment and to reflect management’s current strategic focus. 
The credit process is controlled with continuous credit review and analysis, as well as reviewed by internal and external auditors and regulatory 
authorities. The Company’s loans are widely diversified by borrower and industry group.

The Company has lending policies in effect so that lending of all types is approached, to the extent possible, including low-to-moderate income 
neighborhoods and small business, on a basis consistent with safe and sound standards. Stress testing is utilized to take into consideration the 
potentially adverse economic conditions under which liquidation of the loan could occur. Generally collateral accepted to secure the commercial 
loan portfolio is real estate, accounts receivable, inventory, marketable securities and equipment. However, for the consumer loan portfolio, 
autos, deeds of trust, life insurance and marketable securities are accepted as collateral.

The Company’s policy on maturity extensions and rollovers is based on management’s assessment of individual loans. Approvals for the 
extension or renewal of loans without reduction of principal for more than one twelve-month period are generally avoided unless the loans are 
fully secured and properly margined by cash or marketable securities or are revolving lines subject to annual analysis and renewal.

Nonperforming Assets: The Company has procedures in place to assist in maintaining the overall quality of its loan portfolio. Furthermore, 
the Company has established underwriting guidelines to be followed by its officers and monitors its delinquency levels for any negative or 
adverse trends, particularly with respect to credits which have total exposures of $10,000 or more.

Nonperforming assets consist of nonaccrual loans, loans for which the interest rate has been renegotiated below originally contracted rates and 
real estate or other assets that have been acquired in partial or full satisfaction of loan obligations. On December 31, 2015, nonperforming 
assets totaled $82.3 million or 7.1% of loans plus repossessed assets. Nonperforming assets reflect a decrease of $12.0 million or 17.1% when 
compared to $70.2 million on December 31, 2014. Management has seasoned personnel to assist in turning nonperforming assets into 
performing assets or exiting the relationship. Management believes that it is unlikely that any material loss will be incurred on disposition of the 
collateral.

Management regularly reviews and monitors the loan portfolio to identify borrowers experiencing financial difficulties. Management believes that 
on December 31, 2015 all such loans have been identified and included in the nonaccrual, restructured or 90 days past due loan totals. 
Management continues to emphasize maintaining a low level of nonperforming assets and returning nonperforming assets to an earning status.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 of $25.4 million decreased $3.0 million or 10.7% compared 
to $28.4 million at December 31, 2014. The allowance for loan losses on December 31, 2015 was 2.22% of loans held for investment.

Management analyzes the loan portfolio to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the appropriate provision required to 
maintain an adequate allowance. While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, there can be no assurance that 
future additions to the allowance will not be necessary. Future adjustments could be necessary to the allowance for loan losses if circumstances 
or economic conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the initial determinations. Additionally, as an internal part of 

the examination process, bank regulatory agencies periodically review our allowance for loan losses. The banking regulatory agencies could 
require the recognition of additions to our loan loss allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their 
examination.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment of $56.9 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $2.4 million or 4.0% compared to 
$59.3 million on December 31, 2014. The net decrease in premises and equipment for 2015 is primarily attributable to depreciation expense.

Other Real Estate Owned: Other real estate owned (“OREO”) of $20.7 million on December 31, 2015 decreased $11.3 million or 35.2% 
compared to $32.0 million on December 31, 2014. OREO assets represent property acquired as the result of borrower defaults on loans. 
Management actively manages the OREO and records the value of each OREO at either the lower of the fair market value less estimated selling 
costs or at the cost of the asset. Write-downs occurring at foreclosure are charged against the allowance for possible loan losses. On an ongoing 
basis, OREO is appraised as required by market indications and applicable regulations. Any further write-downs as a result of subsequent 
declines in value are included in other noninterest expense along with other expenses related to maintaining the properties.

Bank Owned Life Insurance: Bank owned life insurance (“BOLI”) of $49.1 million on December 31, 2015 increased $1.4 million or 2.9% 
compared to $47.7 million on December 31, 2014. The investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for 
employee compensation and benefit plans. A split dollar benefit is provided for selected management and will be paid to the estate of the 
participant provided the participant is employed by the Company at date of death.

Deposits: Deposits on December 31, 2015 of $1.845 billion increased $33.9 million or 1.9% compared to $1.811 billion on December 31, 2014. 
The increase in deposits was primarily attributable to an increase in public fund deposits, partially offset by a decrease in foreign deposits and 
domestic deposits. Public fund deposits of $633.4 million increased $65.5 million, foreign deposits of $193.1 million decreased $17.0 million and 
all other core deposit accounts of $1.018 billion decreased $14.5 million on December 31, 2015 compared to the prior year. Deposits are the 
Company’s primary source of funds. The Company offers a variety of products designed to attract and retain deposit customers, such as 
checking accounts, regular savings deposits, NOW accounts, money market accounts, select certificates of deposit savings, an interest-bearing 
club account and certificates of deposits. Deposits are obtained primarily from individuals, partnerships and corporations in our market areas. 
In addition, we obtain deposits from state and local public entities, commonly referred to as public fund deposits. The Company’s policies also 
permit the acceptance of brokered deposits. Generally, both brokered certificates of deposit and public funds are less expensive than retail 
deposits  and are easily managed.

The interest rates paid are competitively priced for each particular deposit product and structured to meet our funding requirements. The 
Company’s management will continue to manage interest expense through deposit pricing. The Company’s management believes that additional 
funds, if needed, can be attracted and deposit growth can be accelerated through deposit pricing as the Company experiences increased loan 
demand or other liquidity needs.

Capital Resources: Shareholders’ equity of $247.3 million on December 31, 2015 increased $7.0 million or 2.9% compared to $240.3 million 
on December 31, 2014. The increase was primarily attributable to: $11.6 million of earnings, partially reduced by $1.8 million decrease in 
accumulated other comprehensive income, and further reduced by $2.9 million of net Treasury Stock purchases.

The Company has actively engaged in a buyback program of its stock during years 2012 to the present. During 2015, the Board of Directors 
retired $10.0 million of Treasury Stock by recording a decrease in Treasury Stock of like amount; offset by a $1.3 million decrease in Common 
Stock, a $2.4 million decrease in Paid-in-Capital and a $6.3 million decrease in Retained Earnings.

Bank holding companies are required to maintain capital ratios in accordance with guidelines adopted by the Federal Reserve Board. The 
guidelines are commonly known as Risk-Based Capital Guidelines. The minimum Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common 
Equity Tier 1 Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios which include an additional 2.5% Capital Conservation Buffer are 10.5%, 8.5%, 7.0% 
and 4.0%  respectively. On December 31, 2015, the Company’s Total Risk-Based Capital, Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital, Common Equity Tier 1 
Capital, and Tier 1 Leverage Capital ratios were 21.13%, 19.87%, 17.87%, and 12.42% respectively. Shareholders’ equity as a percentage of 
total year-end assets was 11.22% in 2015 and 11.07% in 2014.

At December 31, 2015, the Company and the Bank met the criteria for classification as a “well-capitalized” institution under the prompt 
corrective action rules promulgated under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. Designation as a well-capitalized institution under these 
regulations does not constitute a recommendation or endorsement of the Company or the Bank by federal bank regulators.

Analysis of Results of Operations
Earnings Summary: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per 
fully diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the year 2014. A more detailed description 
of the results of operations is included in the material that follows.

Net Interest Income: Net interest income represents the largest source of income for the Company. Net interest income is the difference 
between interest earned on assets and interest expense incurred for the funds supporting those assets. The largest category of earning assets 
consists of loans. The second largest category of earning assets is investments, followed by funds due from banks-interest bearing deposits.

Earning assets are funded by consumer and commercial deposits and short-term borrowings. In addition to these interest-bearing funds, assets 
are also supported by interest-free funds, primarily demand deposits and shareholder’s equity. Variations in the volume and mix of assets and 
liabilities and their relative sensitivity to interest rate movements determine changes in net interest income.

Net interest income of $67.4 million for 2015 reflects a decrease of $3.1 million or 4.36% compared to the prior year of $70.5 million. The 
decrease in net interest income was attributable primarily to a decrease in loan volume and partially due to a decline in interest earned. The 
decline in loan volume is primarily attributable to sluggish economic growth, low interest rates and intense competitive pressures with business 
owners deleveraging and remaining cautious about putting capital to work. Management’s efforts to control the cost of funds by reducing the 

rate paid on deposits helped offset the decline in noninterest income.

The net yield on total interest-earning assets, also referred to as net interest margin, represents net interest income, on a tax equivalent basis, 
divided by average interest-earning assets. Since a significant portion of the Company’s funding is derived from interest-free sources, primarily 
demand deposits and shareholders’ equity, the effective rate paid for all funds is lower than the rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities alone. 
The net interest margin of 3.43% for 2015 decreased 8 basis points compared to 3.51% for the prior year. The Company continued to experience 
intense market competition for both loans and deposits during 2015. The yield on interest-earning assets of 4.06% for 2015 decreased 18 basis 
points compared to 4.24% for the prior year. The rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities of 0.86% for 2015 decreased 10 basis points compared 
to 0.96% for the prior year.

Provision for Loan Losses: The amount of provision for loan losses is based on periodic (not less than quarterly) evaluations of the loan 
portfolio, especially nonperforming and other potential problem loans. During these evaluations, management considers various factors. For 
additional information concerning the factors in these evaluations, see the “Allowance for Loan Losses” section of this Report.

The provision for loan losses is charged to earnings to bring the allowance for loan losses to a level deemed appropriate by management based 
on factors such as historical experience, the volume and type of lending conducted by the Company, the amount of nonperforming assets, 
regulatory policies, generally accepted accounting principles, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to the Company’s lending 
area, and other factors related to the collectibility of the Company’s loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for the year 2015 was zero. A 
zero provision for loan losses for year 2015 and 2014 was partially due the allowance for loan losses being at a level deemed appropriate by 
management based on various factors discussed in the “Allowance for Loan Loss” section of this Report.

Noninterest Income: Noninterest income for 2015 of $23.4 million increased $419,000 or 1.8% compared to $23.0 million for prior year. The 
net increase in noninterest income for 2015 compared to the prior year was primarily attributable to increases in Gain on securities, Increase in 
BOLI cash value, Brokerage services, and Insurance Services partially offset by decreases in Service charges on deposit accounts, Other service 
charge and fee income, Real estate package fees and Other noninterest income.

Service charges on deposit accounts for 2015 of $7.1 million decreased $346,000 or 4.6% compared to $7.5 million for the prior year. 
Non-sufficient check income more commonly referred to as net overdraft charges for 2015 of $5.2 million decreased $256,000 or 4.7% 
compared to $5.5 million for the prior year. Foreign customer service charges for 2015 of $233,000 decreased $67,000 or 22.3% compared to 
$299,000 for the prior year. The decline in service charges for the aforementioned categories was attributable to a decline in volume of activity 
for 2015.

Other service charge and fee income for 2015 of $7.7 million decreased $127,000 or 1.6% as compared to $7.9 million for the prior year. The 
net decrease in other service charge and fee income for 2015 was primarily attributable to three subcategories: debit card interchange fee 
income, foreign currency fees, and inspection fees. The decline in other service fees was partially offset by gains in merchant services income. 
Debit card interchange fee income of $4.6 million for 2015 decreased $84,000 or 1.8% compared to $4.7 million for the prior year. The Debit 
card interchange fee income for the prior year was a record year for the Company. The decrease in debit card fee income is attributable to 
volume of activity. Foreign currency fees for 2015 of $326,000 decreased $144,000 or 30.7% as compared to $470,000 for the prior year. The 
decline in foreign currency fees was due to a decline in currency exchange activity. Inspection fees for 2015 of $181,000 decreased $90,000 or 
33.3% as compared to $271,000 for the prior year. Merchant services income of $699,000 for 2015 increased $237,000 or 51.2% compared to 
$462,000 for the prior year and was attributable to an increased volume of business conducted by Bank customer merchants.

Real estate package fees for 2015 of $806,000 decreased $92,000 or 10.2% as compared to $898,000 for the prior year. The decrease in Real 
estate package fees was attributable to management's strategy to keep short-term mortgage loans on the Bank’s portfolio versus holding the 
mortgage loans for sale. For 2015 fewer mortgage loans were sold in the secondary market which resulted in fewer gains on sale of mortgage 
loans.

Gain on securities for 2015 of $1.8 million increased $581,000 or 47.7% compared to $1.2 million for the prior year. Securities were sold out of 
the Available for Sale portfolio to accomplish investment portfolio objectives aimed at maximizing the total return of the investment portfolio 
and to manage the Bank’s liquidity.

Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLI) for 2015 of $1.4 million increased $288,000 or 26.8% compared to $1.1 million for the prior year. The 
investment in BOLI continues to provide strong earnings that provide financing for employee compensation and benefit plans.

Brokerage services' commission income for 2015 of $2.433 million increased $42,000 or 1.8% compared to $2.391 million for the prior year. 

The increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Insurance services' commission income for 2015 of $2.1 million increased $121,000 or 6.2% compared to $1.9 million for the prior year. The 
increase in commission income is attributable to an increased volume of business for 2015.

Other noninterest income for 2015 of $48,000 decreased $48,000 or 50.0% compared to $96,000 for the prior year. The decrease in other 
noninterest income is primarily attributable to loss on sale of repossessed assets and abandoned assets.

Noninterest Expense: Noninterest expense for 2015 of $75.0 million decreased $2.5 million or 3.3% compared to $77.6 million for prior year. 
The decrease in noninterest expense was primarily attributable to a decrease in five subcategories: Legal and professional fees; Other real 
estate, net; Telephone expense; Business development expense, and Supplies. The decrease in noninterest expense was partially offset by an 
increase in employee compensation and employee benefit expense.

The largest category of noninterest expense is personnel expense of $40.3 million, which is comprised of employee compensation of $33.5 
million and employee benefits of $6.8 million. For 2015 these categories increased $1.8 million or 4.8% compared to $38.5 million for the prior 
year. Personnel expense increase was primarily a result of increases in staffing and medical benefit expenses. The Company group medical 
benefits are primarily provided through a self-funded plan which is supplemented by employee premiums. The funding for the self-funded is 
adjusted each year for anticipated claims. Net employee group insurance expense of $3.0 million for 2015 increased $786,000 or 35.6% 
compared to $2.2 million for the prior year. As of year-end 2015, the self-funded group medical plan had excess reserves of $635,000 for future 
medical claims.

Net occupancy and equipment expense of $9.2 million for 2015 increased $83,000 or 0.9% compared to $9.1 million for the prior year. The net 
increase in net occupancy and equipment expense for 2015 is primarily attributable to a decline in rental income of $103,000.

Data processing expense of $5.6 million for 2015 increased $16,000 or 0.3% compared to $5.6 million for the prior year. The net increase in 
data processing expense is primarily due to the volume of business conducted by the Company partially offset by cost savings realized in 
software and maintenance contracts.

Legal and professional expense of $5.8 million for 2015 decreased $3.2 million or 35.5% compared to $8.9 million for the prior year. The 
decrease is primarily due to a decrease in legal and consulting fees incurred to review and enhance compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) 
and legal settlements. That is partially offset by increases in audit and examination fees related to compliance with BSA.

Advertising expense of $1.9 million for 2015 increased $108,000 or 6.0% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to television and radio production / broadcast (up $96,000) and sports marketing (up $109,000) with all other categories 
reflecting a net decrease in expense. The marketing focus is to continue to promote the bank in the communities that we serve and to promote 
product awareness.

The other real estate owned net expense of $2.4 million for 2015 decreased $749,000 or 23.6% compared to $3.2 million for the prior year. This 
category includes direct expenses for foreclosed real estate including property taxes, maintenance costs, write-downs, less rent income and net 
gains on the sale of properties. For years 2015 and 2014, both years reflected a net loss from sale of OREO. The net loss on sale of OREO for 
2015 reflects a net decrease of $586,000 or 48.8% when compared to the prior year. OREO expenses of $1.8 million for 2015 decreased 
$163,000 or 8.2% compared to $2.0 million for the prior year. The decline in expenses is also reflective of the decline in OREO holdings for 2015. 
Management is aggressively working to reduce total OREO holdings to return the investment in said properties to earning assets.

Telephone expense of $1.4 million for 2015 decreased $395,000 or 21.8% compared to $1.8 million for the prior year. The net decrease is 
primarily attributable to data communication expenses (down $489,000), mobile phone / device expenses (down $12,000), and all other 
expenses (up $105,000). The decrease in data communication expenses were a result of restructuring bandwidth and number of data lines to 
all locations, additional back-up connectivity and from renegotiating line charges of past billings.

Business development expense of $353,000 for 2015 decreased $316,000 or 47.2% compared to $669,000 for the prior year. The net decrease 
is primarily attributable to terminating, during 2014, a promotional program designed to increase customer debit card usage thereby increasing 
the Company’s debit card interchange fee income. The promotional program rewarded customers with redeemable points which were paid for 
by the Company. Total expenses for this program for 2015 of zero reflects a net decrease of $282,000 or 100.0% compared to the prior year.

Supplies expense of $533,000 for 2015 decreased $49,000 or 8.4% compared to $582,000 for the prior year. The net decrease is primarily 

attributable to stationery and printer supplies of $284000 for 2015 which decreased $48,000 or 14.6% compared to $333,000 for the prior year. 
Management is urging all employees to reduce expenses and to go paperless when possible.

Other noninterest expense of $4.7 million for 2015 increased $51,000 or 1.1% compared to $4.6 million for the prior year. The net increase is 
primarily attributable to postage (up $103,000); State sales tax (up $194,000); Director expenses (up $146,000); and Other insurance (up 
$97,000), partially offset by ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses (down $166,000) and Provision for Off Balance Sheet Losses (down $287,000). 
The increase in Director expenses includes fees for Advisory Directors. For 2015, a new promotional program was implemented for Advisory 
Directors in the amount of $152,000 for business referrals. The incentives were accrued based on each referral that resulted in booked business. 
The improvement to the ATM, Debit Card and Fraud Losses were the result of a new debit card monitoring program to control the exposure to 
debit card losses.

Federal and State Income Taxes: Federal and state income taxes of $4.1 million for the year 2015 decreased $1.0 million compared to $5.1 
million for the prior year. The decrease in federal and state income taxes is attributable to a decreased level of pretax income during 2015. The 
decreased level of pretax income was partially achieved by the shift in investment strategy of investing in tax exempt municipal bonds. See 
discussion on “Investment Securities” for more information.

Net Income: Net income for 2015 was $11.6 million or $1.94 per fully diluted share, reflecting an increase of $881,000 or $0.18 per fully 
diluted share, compared to the net income of $10.7 million or $1.76 per fully diluted share for the prior year.
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Financial Statements
The management of Lone Star National Bancshares-Texas, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) has 
the responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements and for their integrity and objectivity. 
The consolidated financial statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. The consolidated financial statements include amounts that are 
based on management’s best estimates and judgments.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls over financial 
reporting presented in conformity with both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the instructions of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System for preparation of 
Consolidated Financial Statements for Bank Holding Companies (Reporting Form FR Y-9C). This internal 
control contains monitoring mechanisms, and actions to correct deficiencies identified.

There are inherent limitations in any internal control, including the possibility of human error and the 
circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effective internal control can provide only 
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in 
conditions, the effectiveness of internal control may vary over time.

Management assessed the Company’s internal control over financial reporting presented in conformity with 
both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and call report instructions 
as of December 31, 2015. This assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control over financial 
reporting described in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management concludes that, as of 
December 31, 2015, Lone Star National Bancshares-Texas, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective 
internal control over financial reporting presented in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America and call report instructions.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal and state laws and regulations concerning 
dividend restriction and federal laws and regulations concerning loans to insiders designated by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation as safety and soundness laws and regulations.

Management assessed compliance by the Bank with the designated laws and regulations relating to safety 
and soundness. Based on this assessment, management concludes that the Bank complied with the 
designated laws and regulations related to safety and soundness for the year ended December 31, 2015.

S. David Deanda, Jr.  George R. Carruthers
President    Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

Management’s Report
on Responsibility for
Financial Reporting
To Our Shareholders
March 29, 2016
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�Certified Public Accountants
801 QUINCE AVENUE      •      P.O. BOX 3125      •      McALLEN, TEXAS 78502-3125

�(956) 682-6365      •      FAX (956) 682-2995

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee
Lone Star National Bancshares--Texas, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lone Star National Bancshares--Texas, Inc. (the 
Company) and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related 
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then 
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of Lone Star National Bancshares--Texas, Inc. and its Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We have also examined, in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants, management’s assertion that Lone Star National Bancshares—Texas, Inc. maintained effective internal control over 
financial reporting, including internal control over the preparation of regulatory financial statements, in accordance with the 
instructions for the Call Report, as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“2013 framework”) and our report dated 
March 30, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

March 30, 2016
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2015 2014
Assets

024,03sknab morf eud dna hsaC $               31,014$
518,502gniraeb tseretni-sknab morf euD                153,435
532,632stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsac latoT                184,449
994,196elas rof elbaliava seitiruceS                622,698
471,1elas rof dleh snaoL                    1,071

Loans, less allowance for loan losses
068,511,1ylevitcepser ,734,82$ dna 504,52$ fo             1,195,882
153,65ten ,tnempiuqe dna seitreporP                  59,336
454,01tessa xat derrefed teN                  6,261
532xat emocni laredef fo tnemyaprevO                       378
653,7elbaviecer tseretni deurccA                    7,202
727,02etatse laer rehtO                  31,993
211,94ecnarusni efil denwo knaB                  47,749
399,31stessa rehtO                  14,242
699,202,2stessa latoT $         2,171,261$

Liabilities
Deposits

622,094dnameD $             419,798$
264,385stnuocca WON                524,435
502,161stnuocca tisoped tekram yenom dna sgnivaS                178,347
928,933revo dna 052$ emiT                397,714
249,962emit rehtO                290,438
466,448,1stisoped latoT             1,810,732
259elbayap tseretni deurccA                       1,033
588sessol teehs-ecnalab-ffo rof ecnawollA                       966
311,5seitilibail rehtO                    7,700

Federal funds purchased and securities sold
052,1stnemeerga esahcruper rednu                    7,650

Guaranteed preferred beneficial interest in Company's
738,72serutnebed detanidrobus                  27,837
000,57yenom deworrob rehtO                  75,000
107,559,1seitilibail latoT             1,930,918

Stockholders' equity
Common stock, par value $5; authorized 50,000,000

shares; 6,107,833 and 6,365,518 shares issued 
and 5,941,654 and 6,010,413 shares outstanding 30,539                 31,828

122,75latipac ni-diaP                  59,579
749,951sgninrae deniateR                154,668
866,6 emocni evisneherpmoc rehto detalumuccA                    8,481
)080,7( serahs 501,553 dna 971,661 - kcotS yrusaerT                   (14,213)

592,742ytiuqe 'sredlohkcots latoT                240,343
699,202,2ytiuqe 'sredlohkcots dna seitilibail latoT $         2,171,261$

LONE STAR NATIONAL BANCSHARES-TEXAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share Data)

December 31, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2015 2014
Interest income

506,46seef gnidulcni ,snaoL $               70,252$
847,41elas rof elbaliava seitiruceS                  7,318

-ytirutam ot dleh eb ot seitiruceS                        7,145
-seitiruces gnidarT                        11

385stessa gninrae rehto dna sknab morf euD                       527
79,936                 85,253

Interest expense
110,9stisopeD                    10,784
12stnemeerga esahcruper dna desahcrup sdnuf laredeF                         58
557serutnebed detanidrobuS                       740
547,2yenom deworrob rehtO                    3,191

12,532                 14,773
404,76emocni tseretni teN                  70,480

-sessol naol rof noisivorP                        -
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 67,404                 70,480

Noninterest income
641,7stnuocca tisoped no segrahc ecivreS                    7,492
737,7emocni eef dna egrahc ecivres rehtO                    7,864
897,1seitiruces no niaG                    1,217
263,1ecnarusni efil denwo knaB                    1,074
253,5emocni tseretninon rehtO                    5,329

23,395                 22,976
Noninterest expense

625,33noitasnepmoc eeyolpmE                  32,521
887,6stifeneb eeyolpmE                    5,952

40,314                 38,473
312,9sesnepxe tnempiuqe dna ycnapucco teN                    9,130
367,5lanoisseforp dna lageL                    8,937
016,5esnepxe gnissecorp ataD                    5,594
134,2ten ,etatse laer rehtO                    3,180
148,2ecnarusni CIDF                    2,796
614,1esnepxe enohpeleT                    1,811
409,1esnepxe gnisitrevdA                    1,796
353tnempoleved ssenisuB                       669
335seilppuS                       582
756,4esnepxe tseretninon rehtO                    4,606

75,035                 77,574
467,51esnepxe xat emocni erofeb emocnI                  15,882
831,4esnepxe xat emocnI                    5,137
626,11emocni teN $               10,745$

LONE STAR NATIONAL BANCSHARES-TEXAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2015 2014

626,11emocni teN $         10,745$

Other comprehensive income, before federal income tax

Securities available for sale

Net unrealized gain on securities transferred from held to maturity -                 10,924

)427,1(raey gnirud gnisira sniag )sessol( gnidloh dezilaernU             8,728

Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income (1,798)            (1,011)

(3,522)            18,641

Federal income tax benefit (expense) related to other comprehensive income 1,709             (6,525)

)318,1(xat emocni laredef fo ten ,emocni )ssol( evisneherpmoc rehtO             12,116

318,9emocni evisneherpmoC $           22,861$

Year Ended December 31,

LONE STAR NATIONAL BANCSHARES-TEXAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Dollars in Thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Common Paid-in Retained
stock capital earnings

547,133102 ,13 rebmeceD ta ecnalaB $           59,111$           143,923$

Comprehensive income
-emocni teN                    -                   10,745

Other comprehensive income, net of tax -                   -                   -
Exercise of stock options, 16,500 shares 83                    380                  -
Purchase of treasury stock, 148,498 shares -                   -                   -

-serahs 009,21 ,kcots yrusaert fo elaS                    -                   -
-desicrexe snoitpo kcots morf tifeneb xaT                    88                    -

828,134102 ,13 rebmeceD ta ecnalaB              59,579             154,668

Comprehensive income
-emocni teN                    -                   11,626
-xat fo ten ,ssol evisneherpmoc rehtO                    -                   -

Purchase of treasury stock, 113,561 shares -                   -                   -
-serahs 208,44 ,kcots yrusaert fo elaS                    -                   (20)

Retirement of treasury stock, 257,685 shares (1,289)              (2,412)              (6,299)
-noitasnepmoc desab-erahS                    45                    -
-desicrexe snoitpo kcots morf tifeneb xaT                    9                      (28)

935,035102 ,13 rebmeceD ta ecnalaB $          57,221$          159,947$

LONE STAR NATIONAL BANCSHARES-TEXAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

(Dollars in Thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Accumulated
latoTrehto

comprehensive Treasury stockholders'
income (loss) stock equity

(3,635)$           (8,355)$        222,789$

-                  -                10,745
12,116            -                12,116

-                  -                463
-                  (6,416)          (6,416)
-                  558               558
-                  -                88

8,481              (14,213)        240,343

-                  -                11,626
(1,813)             -                (1,813)

-                  (4,797)          (4,797)
-                  1,930            1,910
-                  10,000          -
-                  -                45
-                  -                (19)

6,668$            (7,080)$        247,295$
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2015 2014
Operating activities

626,11emocni teN $               10,745$
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net

cash provided by operating activities
141,4noitazitroma dna noitaicerpeD                    3,959

Amortization/accretion of investment
615,4ten ,stnuocsid dna smuimerp ytiruces                    4,194
62noitasnepmoc desab-erahS                         -
)079(etatse laer rehto fo elas no niaG                      (2,562)
)897,1(seitiruces tnemtsevni fo elas no niaG                   (1,217)
)442(etatse laer fo erusolcerof no niaG                      -

81tnempiuqe dna ytreporp deriter no ssoL                         11
)02(kcots yrusaert fo elas no ssoL                        -
)363,1(ecnarusni efil denwo knab morf emocnI                   (1,074)

Addition to other real estate owned valuation reserve 78                        -
146,1denwo etatse laer rehto fo nwodetirW                    3,855
)18(sessol teehs-ecnalab-ffo rof noisivorP                        180

341xat emocni laredef fo tnemyaprevo ni esaerceD                       631
)484,2(tifeneb xat emocni derrefed ni esaercnI                   (505)
)451(elbaviecer tseretni deurcca ni esaercnI                      (185)
)301(elas rof dleh snaol ni esaerced )esaercnI(                      6,348
)08(stessa rehto ni esaercnI                        (764)
)18(elbayap tseretni deurcca ni esaerceD                        (191)
)785,2(seitilibail rehto ni esaercni )esaerceD(                   3,476

422,21seitivitca gnitarepo yb dedivorp hsac teN                  26,901

Year Ended December 31,

LONE STAR NATIONAL BANCSHARES-TEXAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in Thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2015 2014

Investing activities
Securities held to maturity

- sesahcruP                        (67,498)
-stnemyaper lapicnirp dna sllac ,seitirutaM                        29,272

Securities available for sale
)503,057(sesahcruP               (514,309)

732,565stnemyaper lapicnirp dna sllac ,seitirutaM                419,277
720,011elas morf sdeecorP                144,499

Trading securities
-sesahcruP                        (159,143)
-stnemyaper lapicnirp dna sllac ,seitirutaM                        41
-elas morf sdeecorP                        159,305
-kcots BLHF fo esahcruper yrotadnam morf sdeecorP                        615
-tisoped fo setacifitrec fo seitirutam morf sdeecorP                        245

5tnempiuqe dna seitreporp fo elas morf sdeecorP                           -
-ecnarusni efil denwo knab fo esahcruP                        (20,000)

)51(kcots BLHF fo esahcruP                        (17)
-kcots evreseR laredeF fo elas morf sdeecorP                        3

)538(tnempiuqe dna seitreporp fo esahcruP                      (1,449)
327,87snaol ni esaerced teN                  33,959
060,21etatse laer rehto fo elas morf sdeecorp teN                  18,198
798,41seitivitca gnitsevni yb dedivorp hsac teN                  42,998

Financing activities
Net increase in demand deposits,

NOW accounts, savings and money market accounts 112,313               15,594
-kcots nommoc fo elas morf sdeecorP                        463

039,1kcots yrusaert fo elas morf sdeecorP                    558
-yenom deworrob rehto fo tnemyapeR                        (15,000)

Net decrease in federal funds purchased and
)004,6(stnemeerga esahcruper rednu dlos seitiruces                   -
)183,87(stisoped emit ni esaerced teN                 (63,625)
)797,4(kcots yrusaert fo esahcruP                   (6,416)

566,42seitivitca gnicnanif yb )desu( dedivorp hsac teN                  (68,426)

687,15stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsac ni esaercnI                  1,473
944,481raey fo gninnigeb ta stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsaC                182,976
532,632raey fo dne ta stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsaC $            184,449$

LONE STAR NATIONAL BANCSHARES-TEXAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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LONE STAR NATIONAL BANCSHARES-TEXAS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2015 and 2014 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Lone Star National Bancshares-Texas, Inc. (the “Parent” or “Company”), its primary subsidiary, Lone 
Star National Bank (the “Bank”) and its other subsidiaries (collectively the “Company”) are 
headquartered in McAllen, Texas.  The Company provides a broad array of customary banking services 
and operates 32 regulatory banking locations throughout the Rio Grande Valley of Texas and San 
Antonio, Texas. The accounting principles and reporting policies conform to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America and to general practices within the banking industry.  
A summary of the more significant accounting policies follows: 

Basis of Presentation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Lone Star 
National Bancshares-Texas, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company eliminates all 
significant intercompany transactions and balances in consolidation. The accounting and financial 
reporting policies the Company follows conform, in all material respects, to accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The Company determines whether it has a controlling financial interest in an entity by first evaluating 
whether the entity is a voting interest entity or a variable interest entity under accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  Voting interest entities are entities in which the total 
equity investment at risk is sufficient to enable the entity to finance itself independently and provides the 
equity holders with the obligation to absorb losses, the right to receive residual returns and the right to 
make decisions about the entity’s activities.  The Company consolidates voting interest entities in which it 
has all, or at least a majority of, the voting interest. As defined in applicable accounting standards, 
variable interest entities (“VIEs”) are entities that lack one or more of the characteristics of a voting 
interest entity. A controlling financial interest in an entity is present when an enterprise has a variable 
interest, or a combination of variable interests, that will absorb a majority of the entity’s expected losses, 
receive a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or both. The enterprise with a controlling 
financial interest, known as the primary beneficiary, consolidates the VIE.  The Company’s wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Lone Star National Capital Trust II, Lone Star National Capital Trust III and Lone 
Star National Capital Trust IV are VIEs for which the Company is not the primary beneficiary.  
Accordingly, the accounts of these entities are not included in the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements. 

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from these estimates. The allowance for possible 
loan losses, the fair value of financial instruments and the status of contingencies are particularly subject 
to change. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents. For the purpose of reporting cash flows, the Company considers cash on 
hand, amounts due from banks, deposits with other financial institutions that have an initial maturity less 
than 90 days when acquired by the Company and federal funds sold to be cash and cash equivalents. 
Generally, federal funds sold are purchased and sold for one-day periods.  The Company has maintained 
balances in various operating and money market accounts in excess of federally insured limits. 

Repurchase/Resell Agreements. The Company purchases certain securities under agreements to resell. 
The amounts advanced under these agreements represent short-term loans and are reflected as assets in 
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The securities underlying these agreements are book entry 
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securities. The Company also sells certain securities under agreements to repurchase. The agreements are 
treated as collateralized financing transactions and the obligations to repurchase securities sold are 
reflected as a liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The dollar amount of the 
securities underlying the agreements remain in the asset accounts. 

Investments in Securities. Securities that management has both the positive intent and ability to hold to 
maturity are classified as securities held to maturity and are carried at cost, adjusted for amortization of 
premium or accretion of discount, using the level-yield method.  Amortization and accretion on mortgage-
backed securities are adjusted for prepayments. Securities that may be sold prior to maturity for 
asset/liability management purposes, or that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates, to 
changes in prepayment risk, to increase regulatory capital or other similar factors, are classified as 
securities available for sale and carried at fair value with any adjustments to fair value reported in 
stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax. 
Declines in the fair value of individual held to maturity and available for sale securities below their cost 
that are other than temporary result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair value. The 
related write-downs are included in net income as realized losses. Securities purchased for trading 
purposes are held in the trading portfolio at fair value, with changes in fair value included in noninterest 
income.

Interest and dividends on securities, including the amortization of premiums and the accretion of 
discounts, are reported in interest income on securities using the level-yield method. Gains and losses on 
the sale of securities are recorded on the settlement date and are calculated using the specific 
identification method. 

Loans. Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until 
maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for 
charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, any deferred fees or costs on originated loans and unamortized 
premiums or discounts on purchased loans.  

Interest accruals are generally discontinued when management has determined that the borrower may be 
unable to meet contractual obligations and/or when loans are 90 days or more in arrears, unless 
management believed that collateral held by the Company is clearly sufficient and full satisfaction of both 
principal and interest is highly probable, or the loan is accounted for as a purchased credit-impaired loan. 
When a loan is placed on nonaccrual, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against 
current period income and amortization of deferred loan fees is discontinued. Interest received on 
nonaccrual loans is either applied against principal or reported as income according to management’s 
judgment as to the collectability of principal. Nonaccrual loans may be returned to an accrual status when 
principal and interest payments are no longer delinquent, and the risk characteristics of the loan have 
improved to the extent that there no longer exists a concern as to the collectability of principal. Loans are 
considered past due based upon their contractual terms.    

Loans are considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable the 
Company will be unable to collect all amounts due in accordance with the original contractual terms of 
the loan agreement, including scheduled principal and interest payments. Impairment is evaluated on an 
individual loan basis. If a loan is impaired, a specific valuation allowance is allocated, if necessary, so 
that the loan is reported net, at the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loan's existing 
rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral. Interest payments 
on impaired loans are typically applied to principal unless collectability of the principal amount is 
reasonably assured, in which case interest is recognized on a cash basis. Impaired loans, or portions 
thereof, are charged off when deemed uncollectible. 

Allowance for Possible Loan Losses. The allowance for possible loan losses is a reserve established 
through a provision for possible loan losses charged to expense, which represents management’s best 
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estimate of probable losses that have been incurred within the existing portfolio of loans. The allowance, 
in the judgment of management, is necessary to reserve for estimated loan losses inherent in the loan 
portfolio. The allowance for possible loan losses includes allowance allocations calculated in accordance 
with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 310, Receivables and allowance allocations 
calculated in accordance with ASC Topic 450, Contingencies.

Loans Held for Sale. The Company originates mortgage loans primarily for sale in the secondary 
market. These loans are generally sold on a non-recourse basis and are carried at the lower of cost or 
market on an aggregate basis. 

Properties and Equipment. Land is carried at cost.  Other premises and equipment are carried at cost, 
net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation for tax purposes is computed by using the Accelerated 
Cost Recovery System and the Modified Accelerated Cost Recovery System required by the Internal 
Revenue Code.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.  Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles are reviewed 
by the Company for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. 

Foreclosed Assets. Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are held for sale and are 
initially recorded at fair value less estimated selling costs when acquired, establishing a new cost basis. 
Costs after acquisition are generally expensed. If the fair value of the asset declines, a write-down is 
recorded through expense. The valuation of foreclosed assets is subjective in nature and may be adjusted 
in the future because of changes in economic conditions. Foreclosed assets are included in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as other real estate and include foreclosed residential real 
estate properties where physical possession has been obtained totaling $3,738,000 and $7,536,000 at 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The recorded investment in consumer mortgage loans secured 
by residential real estate properties where formal procedures are in process total $332,000 and $320,000 
at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

Earnings per Share of Common Stock. Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing earnings 
available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during 
the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect per share amounts that would have resulted if dilutive 
potential common stock had been converted to common stock.  

Loan Origination Fees and Costs.  Loan origination fees and costs are deferred and recognized over 
the life of the loan as an adjustment of yield using the interest method. 

Interest Income on Loans.  Interest income on loans is accrued and credited to income based on the 
principal amount outstanding. The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued when, in the opinion of 
management, there is an indication that the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become 
due. Upon such discontinuance, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. Subsequent interest payments 
received on loans in which accrual of interest has been discontinued are either applied against principal or 
reported as income, depending upon management’s assessment of the ultimate collectability of principal. 
   

Advertising.  Advertising costs are expensed as they are incurred.  

Income Tax Expense.  Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable 
and the change in deferred tax assets and liabilities (excluding deferred tax assets and liabilities related to 
components of other comprehensive income). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future 
tax amounts for the temporary differences between carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and 
liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates. A valuation allowance, if needed, reduces deferred tax assets 
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to the expected amount most likely to be realized. Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the 
generation of a sufficient level of future taxable income and recoverable taxes paid in prior years. 
Although realization is not assured, management believes it is more likely than not that all of the deferred 
tax assets will be realized.   

Off-Balance-Sheet Instruments. In the ordinary course of business the Company has entered into off-
balance-sheet financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit, commitments under 
credit card arrangements, commercial letters of credit and standby letters of credit. Such financial 
instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they are funded or related fees are incurred or 
received. 

Derivative Financial Instruments. FASB ASC Topic 815 Derivatives and Hedging requires companies 
to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial position and measure 
those instruments at fair value. Changes in fair value of a derivative must be recognized currently in 
earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met.  The Company’s risk management activities do 
not presently include entering into derivative contracts to manage interest rate risk.  

Share-Based Payments. The Company accounts for all stock-based compensation transactions in 
accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation — Stock Compensation, which requires that stock 
compensation transactions be recognized as compensation expense in the statement of operations based 
on their fair values on the measurement date, which is the date of the grant. Cost of the unvested portion 
of options issued is recognized using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model.  

Subsequent Events.  The Company has evaluated subsequent events for potential recognition and/or 
disclosure through March 30, 2016, the date on which these consolidated financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

Reclassifications.  Certain amounts in the prior year’s presentation have been reclassified to conform 
to the current year’s presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported net 
income.

Note 2 - Restriction on Cash and Due From Banks 

The Company is required to maintain reserve funds in cash or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank.  
The required reserve balance at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was $16,345,000 and $13,773,000, 
respectively. 

Note 3 - Investment Securities 

An analysis of securities available for sale as of December 31, 2015 follows: 

 detamitsE  ssorG  ssorG    
 riaF  dezilaernU  dezilaernU  dezitromA  

(Dollars in Thousands)  Cost  Gains  Losses  Value 
         

U.S. government agency $    61,114 $              1 $           340   $   60,775
 079,23       42 433             066,23       yrusaert .S.U

State and local government securities 168,850 4,209 90  172,969
 338,532  056420,7       954,922  dekcab-egagtroM

Collateralized mortgage obligations     189,715         807 1,744  188,778
471  1-571 rehtO
994,196 $  948,2        $573,21     $379,186  $ latoT  
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An analysis of securities available for sale as of December 31, 2014 follows: 

 detamitsE  ssorG  ssorG    
 riaF  dezilaernU  dezilaernU  dezitromA  

(Dollars in Thousands)  Cost  Gains  Losses  Value 
         

U.S. government agency $    73,536 $               -  $           842  $   72,694
U.S. treasury securities 35,328 646  -  35,974
State and local government securities 115,446 1,982  336  117,092

944,623     667 740,11       861,613  dekcab-egagtroM
Collateralized mortgage obligations 68,997          1,319  2  70,314

571  - -571 rehtO
896,226 $  649,1        $ 499,41     $ 056,906  $ latoT  

Securities with limited marketability, such as stock in the Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal Home 
Loan Bank, are carried at cost and are reported as other assets on the consolidated balance sheets. 

The net change in unrealized holding gains and losses on securities available for sale, net of related tax 
effect, of $1,813,000 net losses in 2015 and $12,116,000 net gains in 2014 was included in a separate 
component of stockholders’ equity as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax. 

Provided below is a summary of securities which were in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 
2015.  A total of 69 securities had unrealized losses at December 31, 2015. The Company believes the 
deterioration in value is attributable to changes in market interest rates and not the credit quality of the 
issuer.

 latoT  shtnoM 21 naht eroM  shtnoM 21 naht sseL 
   detamitsE    detamitsE    detamitsE 

 dezilaernU  riaF  dezilaernU  riaF  dezilaernU  riaF 
(Dollars in Thousands) Value  Loss  Value  Loss  Value  Loss 
Available for sale:            
  U.S. government agency $     49,300  $           311  $       3,449  $             29  $     52,749  $             340 
  U.S. treasury securities 4,974  24  -  -  4,974  24 
  State and local governments 7,032  37  10,720  53  17,752  90 
  Mortgage-backed  62,667  650  -  -  62,667  650 

             dezilaretalloC  
     mortgage obligations      153,052  1,744                -                  -  153,052             1,744 

 1  471  -  -  1  471  rehtO  
    Total $   277,199  $        2,767  $     14,169  $             82  $   291,368  $          2,849 
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The amortized cost and estimated market value of securities available for sale at December 31, 2015, by 
contractual maturity, is shown below.  Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because 
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

  elaS rof elbaliavA seitiruceS  
    Estimated  
  Amortized  Fair  

(Dollars in Thousands)  Cost  Value  
Due within one year  $       14,929  $       14,939  
Due one to five years  109,399  109,478  
Due five to ten years  49,275  50,503  
Due after ten years  85,543  88,344  

  462,362 641,952  latotbuS     
Mortgage-backed and collateralized     
  mortgage obligations  419,174  424,611  
U.S. Small Business Administration     
  guaranteed loan pool  3,478  3,449  

  571 571  rehtO
  994,196    $ 379,186    $  latoT     

Securities not due at a single maturity date are included in scheduled maturities on the basis of coupon 
maturity. 

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale were $110,027,000 and $144,499,000, respectively, 
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.  Gross realized gains on sales of securities available for 
sale were $1,819,000 in 2015 and $1,011,000 in 2014. Gross realized losses on sales of securities 
available for sale were $21,000 in 2015 and $0 in 2014.  

Proceeds from sales of trading securities were $0 in 2015 and $159,305,000 in 2014. Gross realized gains 
on sales of trading securities were $0 in 2015 and $206,000 in 2014. There were no realized losses on 
sales of trading securities in 2015 or in 2014.   

In November 2014, the Company transferred all of its held-to-maturity investments to the available-for-
sale category.  Management determined that it no longer had the positive intent to hold its investment in 
securities classified as held to maturity for an indefinite period of time because of management’s desire to 
have more flexibility in managing the investment portfolio. The securities transferred had a total 
amortized cost of $284,742,000, fair value of $295,667,000 and unrealized gross gains of $11,747,000 
and unrealized gross losses of $823,000 at the time of transfer. The unrealized gain, net of federal income 
tax, of $7,101,000 was recorded as other comprehensive income at the time of transfer.  

Declines in the fair value of held to maturity and available for sale securities below their cost that are 
deemed to be other than temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses.  In estimating other-than-
temporary impairment losses, management considers, among other things, (i) the length of time and the 
extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (ii) the financial condition and near-term prospects 
of the issuer and (iii) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a 
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in cost.  There are no realized losses 
included in earnings for 2015 and 2014 for other-than-temporary declines in the fair value of securities.  

Investment securities with a carrying amount of $680,718,000 and $609,625,000 at December 31, 2015 
and 2014, respectively, were pledged to secure public funds and for other purposes required or permitted 
by law. 
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Note 4 - Loans Held for Sale 

Net gains realized on the sale of loans held for sale totaled $850,000 and $772,000 for the years ended 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

Note 5 - Loans 

Loans consist of the following: December 31,  
(Dollars in Thousands) 2015  2014  

  :laicremmoC
  Commercial $         139,001  $        164,752  
  Commercial tax-exempt 6,354  19,604  
  Overdrafts 212  541  
    Total commercial 145,567  184,897  

 974,1 larutlucirgA 2,123  
Real estate:   
  Construction 112,740  132,447  
  Agricultural mortgage 48,619  58,761  
  1-4 family mortgage 242,182  251,900  
  Multifamily mortgage 64,272  48,354  
  Commercial mortgage 471,003  488,278  
    Total real estate 938,816  979,740  
Consumer:    
  Consumer 56,867  59,157  
  Overdrafts 289  133  
    Total consumer 57,156  59,290  
        Total principal amount of loans 1,143,018  1,226,050  
Unamortized fees and costs ( 1,753 )( 1,731 ) 
Allowance for loan losses ( 25,405 )( 28,437 ) 

Total loans $      1,115,860  $     1,195,882  

The Company has certain lending policies and procedures in place that are designed to maximize loan 
income within an acceptable level of risk. Management reviews and approves these policies and 
procedures on a regular basis. A reporting system supplements the review process by providing 
management with frequent reports related to loan production, loan quality, concentrations of credit, loan 
delinquencies and non-performing and potential problem loans. Diversification in the loan portfolio is a 
means of managing risk associated with fluctuations in economic conditions.  

Commercial loans are underwritten after evaluating and understanding the borrower’s ability to operate 
profitably and prudently expand its business. Underwriting standards are designed to promote relationship 
banking rather than transactional banking. Once it is determined that the borrower’s management 
possesses sound ethics and solid business judgment, the Company’s management examines current and 
projected cash flows to determine the ability of the borrower to repay their obligations as agreed. 
Commercial loans are primarily made based on the identified cash flows of the borrower and secondarily 
on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower. The cash flows of borrowers, however, may not be 
as expected and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in value. Most commercial loans are 
secured by the assets being financed or other business assets such as accounts receivable or inventory and 
may incorporate a personal guarantee; however, some short-term loans may be made on an unsecured 
basis. In the case of loans secured by accounts receivable, the availability of funds for the repayment of 
these loans may be substantially dependent on the ability of the borrower to collect amounts due from its 
customers.  

Real estate loans are viewed primarily as cash flow loans and secondarily as loans secured by real estate. 
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Real estate lending typically involves higher loan principal amounts and the repayment of these loans is 
generally largely dependent on the cash flows of the borrower. Real estate loans may be more adversely 
affected by conditions in the real estate markets or in the general economy. The properties securing the 
Company’s real estate portfolio are diverse in terms of type and location. This diversity helps reduce the 
Company’s exposure to adverse economic events that affect any single market or industry. Management 
monitors and evaluates real estate loans based on collateral and risk grade criteria. The Company tracks 
the level of owner-occupied real estate loans versus non-owner-occupied loans. At December 31, 2015, 
approximately 52 percent of the outstanding principal balances of the Company’s commercial real estate 
loans were secured by owner-occupied properties.  

The Company originates consumer loans utilizing a computer-based credit scoring analysis to supplement 
the underwriting process. To monitor and manage consumer loan risk, policies and procedures are 
developed and modified. This activity, coupled with relatively small loan amounts that are spread across 
many individual borrowers, minimizes risk. Underwriting standards for home equity loans are heavily 
influenced by statutory requirements, which include, but are not limited to, a maximum loan-to-value 
percentage of 85 percent, collection remedies, the number of such loans a borrower can have at one time 
and documentation requirements.  

The Company utilizes independent loan review consultants that review and validate the credit risk 
program on a periodic basis. Results of these reviews are presented to management. The loan review 
process complements and reinforces the risk identification and assessment decisions made by lenders and 
credit personnel, as well as the Company’s policies and procedures. 

Loans are considered past due if the required principal and interest payments have not been received as of 
the date such payments were due. Loans are placed on non-accrual status when, in management’s opinion, 
the borrower may be unable to meet payment obligations as they become due, as well as when required 
by regulatory provisions. In determining whether or not a borrower may be unable to meet payment 
obligations for each class of loans, the Company considers the borrower’s debt service capacity through 
the analysis of current financial information, if available, and/or current information with regards to the 
Company’s collateral position.  Regulatory provisions would typically require the placement of a loan on 
non-accrual status if (i) principal or interest has been in default for a period of 90 days or more unless the 
loan is both well secured and in the process of collection or (ii) full payment of principal and interest is 
not expected.  Loans may be placed on non-accrual status regardless of whether or not such loans are 
considered past due. When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed.  
Interest income on non-accrual loans is recognized only to the extent that cash payments are received in 
excess of principal due. A loan may be returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest 
amounts contractually due are brought current and future principal and interest amounts contractually due 
are reasonably assured, which is typically evidenced by a sustained period (at least six months) of 
repayment performance by the borrower. 

Year-end non-accrual loans, segregated by class of loans, were as follows: 

 4102  5102 )sdnasuohT ni sralloD(
219                $  498,3              $ laicremmoC
-  - larutlucirgA
011  281 remusnoC
862,43  323,35 etatse laeR
092,53           $  993,75            $ latoT          

As of December 31, 2015, non-accrual loans reported in the table above included $2,395,000 related to 
loans that were restructured as “troubled debt restructurings” during 2015. 
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Had non-accrual loans performed in accordance with their original contractual terms, interest income 
would have increased by $2,531,000 and $2,277,000 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively.  

An age analysis of past due loans (including both accruing and non-accruing loans), segregated by class 
of loans, as of December 31, 2015 follows:

(Dollars in 
Thousands) 

Loans 30-89 
Days Past 

Due 

Loans 90 or 
More Days 
Past Due 

Total Past 
Due Loans Current Loans Total Loans 

Accruing
Loans 90 
or More 

Days Past 
Due 

Commercial $              778 $              279 $           1,057 $         144,510 $         145,567 $               - 
Agricultural 22 - 22 1,457 1,479                  - 
Consumer 603 412 1,015 56,141 57,156 412 
Real estate 16,946 6,452 23,398 915,418 939,816 456 

Total $         18,349 $           7,143 $         25,492 $      1,117,526 $      1,143,018 $           868 

Accruing loans 90 or more days past due totaled $1,561,000 at December 31, 2014. 

Loans are considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable the 
Company will be unable to collect all amounts due in accordance with the original contractual terms of 
the loan agreement, including scheduled principal and interest payments.  Impairment is evaluated in total 
for smaller-balance loans of a similar nature and on an individual loan basis for other loans.  If a loan is 
impaired, a specific valuation allowance is allocated, if necessary, so that the loan is reported net, at the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows using the loan’s existing rate or at the fair value of 
collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral.  Interest payments on impaired loans are 
typically applied to principal unless collectability of the principal amount is reasonably assured, in which 
case interest is recognized on a cash basis.  Impaired loans, or portions thereof, are charged off when 
deemed uncollectible. 

Regulatory guidelines require the Company to reevaluate the fair value of collateral supporting impaired 
collateral dependent loans on at least an annual basis.  While the Company’s policy is to comply with the 
regulatory guidelines, the Company’s general practice is to reevaluate the fair value of collateral 
supporting impaired collateral dependent loans on a quarterly basis.   
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Year-end impaired loans are set forth in the following table.  Interest income recognized on impaired 
loans for the time they were impaired was $1,952,000 and $1,758,000 during 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. 

(Dollars in 
Thousands) 
2015

Unpaid 
Contractual 

Principal 
Balance

Recorded
Investment 
With No 

Allowance 

Recorded
Investment 

With 
Allowance 

Total 
Recorded

Investment 
Related 

Allowance 

Average 
Recorded

Investment 
Commercial  $          4,459   $         3,894 $                 - $           3,894 $               - $           1,402 
Agricultural - - - - - - 
Consumer    182 182 -       182 - 109 
Real Estate           65,238          57,067 -            57,067 - 40,550 
          Total $        69,879 $       61,143 $                 - $         61,143 $               - $         42,061 
2014       
Commercial $             955   $            912 $                 - $              912 $               - $              867 
Agricultural - - - - - - 
Consumer    117 94                 16       110 - 170 
Real Estate           47,361          37,004 223            37,227 33 33,201 
          Total $        48,433 $       38,010 $            239 $         38,249 $             33 $         34,238 

Troubled Debt Restructurings - The restructuring of a loan is considered a “troubled debt restructuring” if 
both (i) the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties and (ii) the creditor has granted a concession.  
Concessions may include interest rate reductions or below market interest rates, principal forgiveness, 
restructuring amortization schedules and other actions intended to minimize potential losses. Troubled 
debt restructurings during 2015 and 2014 are set forth in the following tables.   

2015 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

 Balance at 
Restructuring

Date 

 Balance at 
December 31, 

2015 
Commercial  $                         - $                           - 

 --  larutlucirgA
 --  remusnoC

Real estate  6,141 5,824 
Total  $                 6,141 $                   5,824 

2014 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

 Balance at 
Restructuring

Date 

 Balance at 
December 31, 

2014 
Commercial  $                         - $                           - 

 --  larutlucirgA
 --  remusnoC

Real estate  9,728 8,971 
Total  $                 9,728 $                   8,971 

Typically loans identified as troubled debt restructurings by the Company are previously on non-accrual 
status and reported as impaired loans prior to restructuring. The modifications primarily related to 
extending the amortization periods of the loans and the granting of interest-rate concessions.  Four loans 
restructured during 2015 that remain outstanding are on non-accrual status as of December 31, 2015. 
Seven loans that were restructured during 2015 that remain outstanding are on accrual status and have an 
outstanding balance of $3,429,000 as of December 2015. The modifications did not impact the 
Company’s determination of the allowance for loan losses.  As of December 31, 2015, there were no 
loans restructured in 2015 that were in default. 

35



Credit Quality Indicators - As part of the on-going monitoring of the credit quality of the Company’s loan 
portfolio, management tracks certain credit quality indicators including trends related to (i) the weighted-
average risk grade of loans, (ii) the level of classified loans, (iii) the delinquency status of the loans, (iv) 
net charge-offs, (v) non-performing loans and (vi) the general economic conditions of South Texas. 

The Company utilized a risk grading matrix to assign a risk grade to each of its loans.  Loans are graded 
on a scale of 1 to 11.  A description of the general characteristics of the 11 risk grades is as follows: 

§ Risk Grade 1 – This category includes any loan that is 100% secured by the Company or CD 
deposits, US Government agencies and any publicly traded stock that is properly margined – 
usually at least 120%. It also may include any obligors whose balance sheet, current position, 
capitalization, profitability and cash flow have been demonstrated to be consistently of such high 
quality that the potential for significant disruption in their financial performance is virtually 
nonexistent. Only financially strong and publicly traded companies would be rated in this 
category but all loans secured by the Company’s certificates of deposit would qualify for such an 
internal risk rating. 

§ Risk Grade 2 – This internal risk rating is assigned to borrowers having a stable record of strong 
earnings, a substantial current position, sound capitalization, and solid cash flow, and whose 
management team has experience and depth within a sound and stable industry.

§ Risk Grade 3 – Borrowers assigned this internal rating are considered above average with higher 
than average credit standards based on leverage, liquidity and debt coverage ratios as well as 
having excellent management in critical areas. 

§ Risk Grade 4 – This internal risk rating includes borrowers that have average leverage, liquidity 
and debt service coverage ratios that compare favorably with industry standards. 

§ Risk Grade 5 – This internal risk rating includes borrowers that have average leverage, liquidity 
and debt service coverage ratios and management that may be relatively inexperienced or 
untested. Overall financial ratios are considered acceptable. 

§ Risk Grade 6 – This internal risk rating exhibits the same characteristics as Risk Grade 5, but 
requiring added attention due to added factors such as (1) average or unfavorable earnings and 
cash flow coverage, (2) average or unfavorable debt service coverage ratio, (3) repayment is slow 
or repayment history is marginal,  (4) reliant on liquidation of collateralized assets to repay debt, 
(5) substantial credit, collateral, or loan policy exceptions exist, and (6) no secondary sources of 
repayment are evident. 

§ Risk Grade 7 – This risk grading includes borrowers that exhibit potential weaknesses/early 
warning signals that deserve close attention.  If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may 
result in the borrower being unable to meet its financial obligations at some future date.  

§ Risk Grade 8 – This risk grading indicates that loans are in the category of performing loans 
which are classified substandard. A substandard credit is inadequately protected by the current 
sound worthiness and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any.  Loans so 
classified must have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the 
debt. These credits are characterized by the distinct possibility that the Company will sustain 
some loss if deficiencies are not corrected. However, the distinct possibility of loss in these 
credits, while existing in the aggregate amount of substandard assets, does not necessarily exist in 
individual assets classified substandard.  
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§ Risk Grade 9 – Assets falling in this category bear all of the characteristics of those in the 
“8” Substandard/Performing category with the added characteristic of meeting the criteria 
for being placed on a non-accrual status: the loan or extension of credit is 90 or more 
days past due; it becomes evident that the borrower cannot or will not make payments or 
meet the terms for the renewal of matured loan; anytime full repayment of principal and 
interest is not expected; if the borrower files bankruptcy and an approved plan of 
reorganization or liquidation of collateral is not anticipated to occur in the immediate 
future; and when foreclosure is initiated. 

§ Risk Grade 10 – This risk grading includes loans that have all the weaknesses inherent in a 
substandard classification with the added factor that the weaknesses are pronounced to the point 
where, on the basis of current facts, conditions and values, collection or liquidation in full is 
highly questionable or improbable. While the possibility of loss is extremely high, the existence 
of specific pending factors, which may work to the obligor’s advantage, warrants that the 
estimated loss be deferred until a more exact status is determined. 

§ Risk Grade 11 – This risk grading is reserved for charge-offs. A loan in this category is 
considered uncollectible and of such little value that its continuance as an active asset of the 
Company is not warranted. This classification does not mean that an asset has absolutely no 
recovery or salvage value, but simply that it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off all (or 
sometimes a portion) of a basically worthless asset, even though partial recovery may be effected 
in the future.  Losses should be taken in the period in which they surface as uncollectible.  

In monitoring credit quality trends in the context of assessing the appropriate level of the allowance for 
loan losses, the Company monitors portfolio credit quality by the weighted-average risk grade of each 
class of loan. Individual relationship managers review updated financial information for all loans risk 
graded 1 through 6 to recalculate the risk grade on at least an annual basis. When a loan has a calculated 
risk grade of 7, it is considered to be on management’s “watch list,” where a significant risk-modifying 
action is anticipated in the near term. When a loan has a calculated risk grade of 7 or higher, the loan is 
monitored on an on-going basis.  
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The following table presents weighted average risk grades for all loans by class. 

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Weighted
Average

Risk Grade Loans 

Weighted
Average Risk 

Grade Loans 
   laicremmoC

    Risk grades 1-6 3.54 $     133,426 3.51 $     175,579
    Risk grade 7 7.00 536 7.00          2,783
    Risk grade 8 8.00      7,580 8.00 5,082  
    Risk grade 9 9.00 4,025 9.00 1,453
    Risk grade 10 10.00 - 10.00 -
    Risk grade 11 11.00 - 11.00 -

Total commercial  $     145,567  $     184,897
    Risk grades 1-6 1.67 $         1,479 1.15 $         2,123
    Risk grade 7 7.00 - 7.00 -
    Risk grade 8 8.00      - 8.00      -
    Risk grade 9 9.00 - 9.00 -
    Risk grade 10 10.00 - 10.00 -
    Risk grade 11 11.00 - 11.00 -

Total agricultural  $         1,479  $         2,123
    Risk grades 1-6 2.71 $       56,520 2.59 $       58,882
    Risk grade 7 7.00         40 7.00         6
    Risk grade 8 8.00       126 8.00       159
    Risk grade 9 9.00 470 9.00 243
    Risk grade 10 10.00 - 10.00 -
    Risk grade 11 11.00 - 11.00 -

Total consumer  $       57,156  $       59,290
    Risk grades 1-6 4.36 $     828,412 4.45 $     910,205
    Risk grade 7 7.00         36,689 7.00         3,954
    Risk grade 8 8.00      21,987 8.00      32,499
    Risk grade 9 9.00 51,728 9.00 33,082
    Risk grade 10 10.00 - 10.00 -
    Risk grade 11 11.00 - 11.00 -

Total real estate  $     938,816   $     979,740

In assessing the general economic conditions in the State of Texas, management monitors and tracks the 
Texas Leading Index (“TLI”), which is produced by the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas. The TLI is a 
single summary statistic that is designed to signal the likelihood of the Texas economy’s transition from 
expansion to recession and vice versa. Management believes this index provides a reliable indication of 
the direction of overall credit quality. The TLI is a composite of the following eight leading indicators: 
(i) Texas Value of the Dollar, (ii) U.S. Leading Index, (iii) real oil prices (iv) well permits, (v) initial 
claims for unemployment insurance, (vi) Texas Stock Index, (vii) Help-Wanted Index and (viii) average 
weekly hours worked in manufacturing. The TLI totaled 123.1 at December 31, 2015 and 129.3 at 
December 31, 2014. A higher TLI value implies more favorable economic conditions. 

Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses is a reserve established through a provision for 
loan losses charged to expense, which represents management’s best estimate of probable losses that have 
been incurred within the existing portfolio of loans. The allowance, in the judgment of management, is 
necessary to reserve for estimated loan losses and risks inherent in the loan portfolio. The Company’s 
allowance for loan loss methodology follows the accounting guidance set forth in U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles and the Interagency Policy Statement on the Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses, 

38



which was jointly issued by the Company’s regulatory agencies. In that regard, the Company’s allowance 
for loan losses includes allowance allocations calculated in accordance with ASC Topic 310 Receivables
and allowance allocations calculated in accordance with ASC Topic 450 Contingencies. Accordingly, the 
methodology is based on historical loss experience by type of credit and internal risk grade, specific 
homogeneous risk pools and specific loss allocations, with adjustments for current events and conditions. 
The Company’s process for determining the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses is designed 
to account for credit deterioration as it occurs. The provision for loan losses reflects loan quality trends, 
including the levels of and trends related to non-accrual loans, past due loans, potential problem loans, 
criticized loans and net charge-offs or recoveries, among other factors. The provision for loan losses also 
reflects the totality of actions taken on all loans for a particular period. In other words, the amount of the 
provision reflects not only the necessary increases in the allowance for loan losses related to newly 
identified criticized loans, but it also reflects actions taken related to other loans including, among other 
things, any necessary increases or decreases in required allowances for specific loans or loan pools.  

The level of the allowance reflects management’s continuing evaluation of industry concentrations, 
specific credit risks, loan loss and recovery experience, current loan portfolio quality, present economic, 
political and regulatory conditions and unidentified losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. Portions 
of the allowance may be allocated for specific credits; however, the entire allowance is available for any 
credit that, in management’s judgment, should be charged off. While management utilizes its best 
judgment and information available, the ultimate determination of the appropriate level of the allowance 
is dependent upon a variety of factors beyond the Company’s control, including, among other things, the 
performance of the Company’s loan portfolio, the economy, changes in interest rates and the view of the 
regulatory authorities toward loan classifications. The Company monitors whether or not the allowance 
for loan loss allocation model, as a whole, calculates an appropriate level of allowance for loan losses that 
moves in direct correlation to the general macroeconomic and loan portfolio conditions the Company 
experiences over time.  

The Company’s allowance for loan losses consists of three elements: (i) specific valuation allowances 
determined in accordance with ASC Topic 310 based on probable losses on specific loans; (ii) historical 
valuation allowances determined in accordance with ASC Topic 450 based on historical loan loss 
experience for similar loans with similar characteristics and trends, adjusted, as necessary, to reflect the 
impact of current conditions; and (iii) general valuation allowances determined in accordance with ASC 
Topic 450 based on general economic conditions and other risk factors both internal and external to the 
Company.  

The allowances established for probable losses on specific loans are based on a regular analysis and 
evaluation of problem loans. Loans are classified based on an internal credit risk grading process that 
evaluates, among other things: (i) the obligor’s ability to repay; (ii) the underlying collateral, if any; and 
(iii) the economic environment and industry in which the borrower operates. When a loan has a calculated 
grade of 7 or higher, the loan is analyzed to determine whether the loan is impaired and, if impaired, the 
need to specifically allocate a portion of the allowance for loan losses to the loan. Specific valuation 
allowances are determined by analyzing the borrower’s ability to repay amounts owed, collateral 
deficiencies, the relative risk grade of the loan and economic conditions. 

Historical valuation allowances are calculated based on the historical gross loss experience of specific 
types of loans and the internal risk grade of such loans at the time they were charged-off. The Company 
calculates historical gross loss ratios for pools of similar loans with similar characteristics based on the 
proportion of actual charge-offs experienced to the total population of loans in the pool. The historical 
gross loss ratios are periodically updated based on actual charge-off experience. A historical valuation 
allowance is established for each pool of similar loans based upon the product of the historical gross loss 
ratio and the total dollar amount of the loans in the pool. The Company’s pools of similar loans include 
similarly risk-graded groups of commercial loans, commercial real estate loans, consumer real estate 
loans and consumer and other loans.  
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The components of the general valuation allowance include the additional reserves allocated to specific 
loan portfolio segments as a result of applying an environmental risk adjustment factor to the base 
historical loss allocation.  The environmental adjustment factor is based upon a more qualitative analysis 
of risk.  The various risks that may be considered in the determination of the environmental adjustment 
factor include, among other things, (i) the effects of the national and local economy; (ii) the change in the 
nature and volume of the loan portfolio; (iii) changes in lending policies and underwriting compliance 
risk; (iv) management risk; (v) existence and change in credit concentrations; (vi) credit risk management; 
(vii) change in residential construction; and (viii) international risk.   

The following table presents details of the allowance for loan losses, segregated by loan portfolio segment 
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. 

 larutlucirgA laicremmoC )sdnasuohT ni sralloD( Real Estate Consumer/other Unallocated Total 
December 31, 2015       
Historical Valuation Allowances $          2,428 $                 - $        5,967 $                  818 $                - $   9,213 

 - - - - - - secnawollA noitaulaV cificepS
       :secnawollA noitaulaV lareneG
 295,6 615,5 33 739 - 601 ymonoce fo stceffE  

  Change in nature/volume loan portfolio 119 - 1,051 37 - 1,207 
  Change in lending policies/underwriting 135 - 1,191 42 - 1,368 

 118,1 - 65 775,1 - 871 ksir tnemeganaM  
  Existence/change in credit concentrations 109 - 964 34 - 1,107 

 119,1 - 95 466,1 - 881 tnemeganam ksir tiderC  
  Change in residential construction/development 112 - 993 35 - 1,140 

 650,1 - 23 029 - 401 ksir lanoitanretnI  
Total $          3,479 $                 - $      15,264 $               1,146 $        5,516 $ 25,405 

December 31, 2014  
Historical Valuation Allowances $          1,576 $                 1 $        3,920 $                  909 $                - $   6,406 

 33 - - 33 - - secnawollA noitaulaV cificepS
       :secnawollA noitaulaV lareneG
 353,41 672,31 11 839 - 821 ymonoce fo stceffE  

  Change in nature/volume loan portfolio 128 - 938 11 - 1,077 
  Change in lending policies/underwriting 153 - 1,125 13 - 1,291 

 770,1 - 11 839 - 821 ksir tnemeganaM  
 935 - 5 074 - 46 snoitartnecnoc tiderc ni egnahC  
 705,1 - 51 313,1 - 971 tnemeganam ksir tiderC  

  Change in residential construction/development 128 - 938 11 - 1,077 
 770,1 - 11 839 - 821 ksir lanoitanretnI  

Total $          2,612 $                 1 $      11,551 $                  997 $      13,276 $ 28,437 

The Company monitors whether or not the allowance for loan loss allocation model, as a whole, 
calculates an appropriate level of allowance for loan losses that moves in direct correlation to the general 
macroeconomic and loan portfolio conditions the Company experiences over time. The Company 
analyzes trends in the components of the TLI, as well as any available information related to regional, 
national and international economic conditions and events and the impact such conditions and events may 
have on the Company and its customers. With regard to assessing loan portfolio conditions, the Company 
analyzes trends in weighted-average portfolio risk-grades, classified and non-performing loans and 
charge-off activity. In periods where general macroeconomic and loan portfolio conditions are in a 
deteriorating trend or remain at deteriorated levels, based on historical trends, the Company would expect 
to see the allowance for loan loss allocation model, as a whole, calculate higher levels of required 
allowances than in periods where general macroeconomic and loan portfolio conditions are in an 
improving trend or remain at an elevated level, based on historical trends.

40



The following table details activity in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the years 
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. Allocation of a portion of the allowance to one category of loans 
does not preclude its availability to absorb losses in other categories. 

 (Dollars in Thousands) Commercial Agricultural Consumer Real Estate Unallocated Total 
2015 
Beginning balance $         2,612 $                1 $            997 $       11,551 $       13,276 $       28,437 
Provision for loan losses      2,572                 (1)        239           4,950          (7,760)                - 
Charge-offs           (3,113)                 -                (160)           (1,525) -          (4,798)
Recoveries 1,408                  -                  70   288 -         1,766 
Net charge-offs         (1,705)                    -              (90)           (1,237) -         (3,032)
Ending balance $         3,479 $                 - $         1,146  $      15,264 $         5,516 $       25,405 
Year-end amount allocated to: 
   Loans individually evaluated      
          for  impairment $            198 $                 - $                 - $         2,654 $                 - $         2,852 
   Loans collectively evaluated   
          for impairment    3,281 - 1,146 12,610 5,516 22,553 
Ending balance $         3,479 $                 - $         1,146 $      15,264 $         5,516 $       25,405 

2014 
Beginning balance $         3,722  $               2 $            763 $       15,430 $       10,354 $       30,271 
Provision for loan losses                187                (1)             485     (3,593)        2,922       - 
Charge-offs           (1,966)                    -              (336)         (612) -          (2,914)
Recoveries 669                  -                85 326 -         1,080 
Net charge-offs           (1,297)                    -            (251)              (286) -         (1,834)
Ending balance $         2,612 $                1 $            997 $       11,551 $       13,276 $       28,437 
Year-end amount allocated to: 
   Loans individually evaluated      
          for  impairment $                 - $                 - $                 - $              33 $                 - $              33 
   Loans collectively evaluated   
          for impairment    2,612 1 997 11,518 13,276 28,404 
Ending balance $         2,612 $                1 $            997 $       11,551 $       13,276 $       28,437 

The Company’s recorded investment in loans as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 related to each balance 
in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment and disaggregated on the basis of the Company’s 
impairment methodology follows:  

(Dollars in Thousands) Commercial Agricultural Consumer Real Estate Total 
2015      
Loans individually evaluated        
      for impairment $              3,221   $                 - $                     - $          43,082 $            46,303 
Loans collectively evaluated       
      for impairment             142,346 1,479          57,156 895,734       1,096,715 
Ending balance $          145,567 $          1,479 $            57,156 $        938,816 $       1,143,018 
2014      
Loans individually evaluated      
      for impairment $                 615   $                 - $                 108 $          18,875 $            19,598 
Loans collectively evaluated      
      for impairment             184,282      2,123 59,182  960,865          1,206,452 
Ending balance $          184,897 $          2,123 $            59,290 $        979,740 $       1,226,050 
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Note 6 - Properties and Equipment 

The following is a summary of properties and equipment, at cost less accumulated depreciation, at year 
end:

  4102   5102 )sdnasuohT ni sralloD(
 468,81          $   418,81           $  dnaL
 714,24   165,24  stnemevorpmi dna sgnidliuB
 066,62   263,62 tnempiuqe dna erutinruF
 149,78   737,78 
 )506,82 ( ) 683,13( noitaicerped detalumucca sseL  

 633,95          $   153,65           $ 

Depreciation expense was $3,797,000 and $3,959,000 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. The Company did not capitalize any interest costs as properties and equipment during 2015 
and 2014.   

Note 7 - Time Deposits 

The following table summarizes time deposits by maturity at December 31, 2015:  

Years Ending 
December 31, 

 Amount  
(Dollars in
Thousands) 

2016 $      356,176
2017       178,461
2018 42,615
2019 13,952
2020 18,541

Beyond 2020 26
 $      609,771

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company held $50,011,000 and $55,011,000, respectively, of 
brokered time deposits. Brokered deposits are received on terms other than those available in the 
normal course of business. 

Note 8 - Other Liabilities 

Major classifications of other liabilities at year end are as follows: 

  4102   5102 )sdnasuohT ni sralloD(
 617,5           $   155,4             $ sesnepxe deurccA
 87   98 elbayap sexat emocni etatS
 609,1   374 elbayap sexat ytreporP
 007,7           $   311,5             $ 

Note 9 - Borrowed Funds 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are stated at the amount of cash received in connection 
with the transaction. The agreements have interest rates of 1.45 percent and repurchase dates of March 25, 
2016. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase totaled $1,250,000 and $7,650,000 at December 31, 
2015 and 2014, respectively, with accrued interest of $300 and $2,000, during 2015 and 2014, 
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respectively. The securities sold under the agreements are collateralized by a security interest in securities 
available for sale. 

The following are available lines of credit the Company has with other financial institutions: 

Financial Institution 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

 Line of 
Credit

Amount 
Amount 

Available
Interest 

Rate
Expiration

Date 
Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas  $  496,935  $  421,935  Variable  None 
The Independent Bankers Bank  15,000  15,000  Variable  None 
Frost National Bank  15,000  15,000  Variable  08/31/16 
Federal Reserve Bank  115,974  115,974  Variable  None 

     909,765  $  909,246  $  

The Company has received advances in the amount of $75,000,000 from Federal Home Loan Bank of 
Dallas (“FHLB”) under provisions of its line of credit facility.  The advances mature September 12, 2017 
through September 18, 2018 with interest due quarterly at rates of 3.215 percent through 3.891 percent.   

The line of credit with FHLB is collateralized by a blanket floating lien on certain mortgage loans. The 
lines of credit with The Independent Bankers Bank and Frost National Bank are unsecured.  The line of 
credit with the Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) is collateralized by a blanket floating lien on certain 
commercial and agriculture loans. 

The Company, through a private placement, has issued a total of $27 million of Floating Rate Cumulative 
Trust Preferred Securities (27,000 shares with a liquidation amount of $1,000 per security) (the “Trust 
Preferred Securities”).  The Trust Preferred Securities were issued through newly-formed, wholly-owned 
subsidiaries, Lone Star National Capital Trust II, Lone Star National Capital Trust III and Lone Star 
National Capital Trust IV, which are special purpose Delaware statutory business trusts (“Trusts”).  
Unamortized debt issuance costs related to the Trusts, which are included in other assets, totaled $837,000 
at December 31, 2015 and 2014.  The Trusts invested the total proceeds from the equity contributions and 
the securities sale in the Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures (the 
“Debentures”) issued by the Company.  The net proceeds from the sale of the Debentures were used for 
general corporate purposes, including capital investments in the Bank. 

The Trust Preferred Securities issued by the Trusts rank senior to the common securities.  The obligation 
of the Company under the trust agreements and the guarantees relating to the Trusts constitute the full and 
unconditional guarantee by the Company of the obligations of the Trusts with respect to the Trust 
Preferred Securities and rank subordinate and junior in right to payment to all other liabilities. 

The Debentures are subject to mandatory redemption pursuant to the terms of the trust agreements. The 
Company has the option to redeem the Debentures, in whole or in part, on or after any interest payment 
date after September 30, 2008 for the 2003 issue, April 7, 2009 for the 2004 issue and June 30, 2012 for 
the 2007 issue.  In the event the Debentures are redeemed, a like amount of Trust Preferred Securities will 
be redeemed at the redemption price of $1,000 per security, plus accrued interest to the date of 
redemption.  The table below summarizes the outstanding preferred securities issued by the Trusts as of 
December 31, 2015 and 2014. 
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 II tsurT latipaC lanoitaN ratS enoL :eman tsurT
Issuance date: September 26, 2003 

 000,000,01$ :tnuomA
Stated maturity: September 30, 2033 
Floating interest rate: 2.95% per annum over the Three-Month LIBOR Rate 
Interest payable/Distribution dates: Quarterly/March 30, June 30, September 30, and 

December 30 

 III tsurT latipaC lanoitaN ratS enoL :eman tsurT
Issuance date: March 25, 2004 

 000,000,7$ :tnuomA
Stated maturity: April 6, 2034 
Floating interest rate: 2.75% per annum over the Three-Month LIBOR Rate 
Interest payable/Distribution dates: Quarterly/January 7, April 7, July 7, and October 7    

aN ratS enoL :eman tsurT tional Capital Trust IV 
Issuance date: June 21, 2007 

 000,000,01$ :tnuomA
Stated maturity: September 15, 2037 
Floating interest rate: 1.57% per annum over the Three-Month LIBOR Rate 
Interest payable/Distribution dates: Quarterly/March 15, June 15, September 15, and 

December 15 

Despite the fact that the accounts of the capital trusts are not included in the Company's consolidated 
financial statements, the trust preferred securities issued by these subsidiary trusts are included in the Tier 
1 capital of Lone Star National Bancshares-Texas, Inc. for regulatory capital purposes. Federal Reserve 
Board rules limit the aggregate amount of restricted core capital elements (which includes trust preferred 
securities, among other things) that may be included in the Tier 1 capital of most bank holding companies 
to 25 percent of all core capital elements, including restricted core capital elements, net of goodwill less 
any associated deferred tax liability. 

The scheduled maturities of borrowings at December 31, 2015, were as follows:

 nihtiW After One After Two After Three After Four After  
One But Within But Within But Within But Within Five  

(Dollars in Thousands) Year Two Years Three Years Four Years Five Years Years Total 
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings  $               -  $          65,000  $       10,000  $                 - $                  -  $               -  $          75,000
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase          1,250                  -                 -                   - -                 -           1,250 
Trust preferred subordinated debentures                -                  -                  -                   - -         27,837            27,837 
Total borrowings  $       1,250  $          65,000  $       10,000  $                 - $                  -  $     27,837  $        104,087

Note 10 - Federal and State Income Taxes 

The components of the provision for income taxes consist of the following: 

(Dollars in Thousands) 2015 2014 
Current income tax expense    
  Federal $           6,527   $          5,644
  State 96   71
    Total current income tax expense 6,623   5,715
Federal deferred income tax benefit ( 2,485 ) ( 578 )

     
      Total income tax expense $       4,138   $          5,137

44



The following is a reconciliation between the amount of reported income tax expense and the amount 
computed by multiplying the income before income tax expense by the federal statutory rate: 

 4102 5102  )sdnasuohT ni sralloD(
955,5             $   484,5             $ etar yrotutats laredef ta xaT

    )snoitcuder( snoitiddA
)700,1 ( ) 585,1( emocni tpmexe-xaT  

935   041 sesnepxe elbitcuded-noN  
64   26 tceffe xat emocni laredef fo ten ,xat emocni etatS  
-   73 ten ,rehtO  
731,5             $   831,4             $ esnepxe xat emocni latoT    

The net deferred tax asset included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets is comprised of the 
following deferred tax assets and liabilities: 

  4102   5102           )sdnasuohT ni sralloD(
     ytilibail xat derrefeD

  Properties and equipment 
  Mortgage servicing rights 
  Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale 

$             1,407 
125 

               2,858  

  $             1,975 
                    76 
               4,567   

  816,6                093,4              ytilibail xat derrefed latoT    
    

     tessa xat derrefeD
 606   316 seef naol derrefeD  
 68   97  elas rof dleh snaoL  
 359,9   298,8 sessol naol rof ecnawollA  
 833   103 sessol teehs ecnalab ffo rof ecnawollA  
 -   9 evreser esahcruper SFHL  
 -   048,2 lapicnirp ot deilppa tseretnI  
 462   642 noitasnepmoc derrefeD  
 236,1   468,1 etatse laer rehtO  

    Total deferred tax asset before valuation allowance 14,844   12,879  
 -   - ecnawolla noitaulaV    
 978,21   448,41 tessa xat derrefed latoT      
 162,6             $   454,01           $ tessa xat derrefed teN        

No valuation allowance for deferred tax assets was recorded at December 31, 2015 and 2014 as 
management believes it is more likely than not that all of the deferred tax assets will be realized because 
they were supported by recoverable taxes paid in prior years. There were no unrecognized tax benefits 
during any of the reported periods.  

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The Company is no longer subject 
to U.S. federal income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2012. The Company also files 
income tax return with the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts and is no longer subject to state tax 
examination by tax authorities for years before 2011. 

Note 11 - Concentrations of Credit Risk 

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of customers are engaged in similar business activities 
or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their 
ability to meet contractual obligations to be affected similarly by changes in economic conditions. 
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A significant portion of the Company’s investments are in securities of the U.S. Government and its 
agencies and corporations.  The Company’s lending activities are conducted primarily with customers in 
the Rio Grande Valley of Texas and San Antonio, Texas.  The concentrations of credit by type of loan are 
set forth in Note 5.  Based on the nature of the banking business, management does not consider any of 
these concentrations unusual. 

Note 12 - Supplemental Disclosures 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information 
  ,13 rebmeceD dednE raeY  
  4102   5102  
     )sdnasuohT ni sralloD(
 640,5             $   583,6             $ diap sexat emocni etatS dna laredeF

    
 369,41           $   316,21           $ diap tseretnI

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities 

     )sdnasuohT ni sralloD(
     fo noitcafsitas ni noissessoper dna serusolceroF
 379,7             $   986,3             $ elbaviecer snaol  
     dna desolcerof fo selas rof dedivorp gnicnaniF
 722,7             $   033,2             $ stessa dessessoper  

Note 13 - Fair Value Measurements 

ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair 
value under GAAP and enhances disclosures about fair value measurements. Fair value is defined under 
ASC Topic 820 as the price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) 
in the principal market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on 
the measurement date.  In estimating fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that are 
consistent with the market approach, the income approach and/or the cost approach. Such valuation 
techniques are consistently applied. Inputs to valuation techniques include the assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. ASC Topic 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy for 
valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy is as follows: 

Level 1 Inputs - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.  

Level 2 Inputs - Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly. These might include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in 
active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, 
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (such as interest rates, 
volatilities, prepayment speeds, credit risks, etc.) or inputs that are derived principally from or 
corroborated by market data by correlation or other means.  

Level 3 Inputs - Unobservable inputs for determining the fair values of assets or liabilities that reflect an 
entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets 
or liabilities.  

In general, fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available. If such quoted market prices 
are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed models that primarily use, as inputs, 
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observable market-based parameters. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that financial 
instruments are recorded at fair value. These adjustments may include amounts to reflect counterparty 
credit quality and the Company’s creditworthiness, among other things, as well as unobservable 
parameters. Any such valuation adjustments are applied consistently over time. The Company’s valuation 
methodologies may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or 
reflective of future fair values. While management believes the Company's valuation methodologies are 
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or 
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different estimate 
of fair value at the reporting date. Furthermore, the reported fair value amounts have not been 
comprehensively revalued since the presentation dates, and therefore, estimates of fair value after the 
balance sheet date may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein. A more detailed 
description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value is set forth 
below. Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized on the actual date of the event 
or circumstances that caused the transfer, which generally coincides with the Company's monthly and/or 
quarterly valuation process. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis include the following:  

Securities Available for Sale. U.S. Treasury securities are reported at fair value utilizing Level 1 
inputs. Other securities classified as available for sale are reported at fair value utilizing Level 2 inputs. 
For these securities, the Company obtains fair value measurements from an independent pricing service. 
The fair value measurements consider observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, 
cash flows, the U.S. Treasury yield curve, live trading levels, trade execution data, market consensus 
prepayment speeds, credit information and the bond’s terms and conditions, among other things.  

Trading Securities. U.S. Treasury securities and exchange-listed common stock are reported at fair 
value utilizing Level 1 inputs. Other securities classified as trading are reported at fair value utilizing 
Level 2 inputs in the same manner as described above for securities available for sale.  

Derivatives. Derivatives are reported at fair value utilizing Level 2 inputs.  The Company’s risk 
management activities do not presently include entering into derivative contracts to manage interest rate 
risk. In connection with single family mortgage loan originations, the Company enters into commitments 
with customers to extend mortgage loans and forward sales commitments for individual loans. The 
Company has identified these as derivative financial instruments and accordingly records these loan 
origination and sales commitments at estimated fair market value. As of December 31, 2015, the 
Company has not identified any other financial instruments as derivatives. 

The following table summarizes the securities available for sale which were the financial assets measured 
at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2015, segregated by the level of valuation inputs within 
the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value: 

Level 1 Inputs  $          32,970
Level 2 Inputs  658,529
Level 3 Inputs  -
Total fair value  $        691,499

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis; that is, 
the instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value 
adjustments in certain circumstances.  

ASC Topic 825, Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of the fair value of financial assets and 
financial liabilities, including those financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured and 
reported at fair value on a recurring basis or non-recurring basis. The methodologies for estimating the 
fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring or non-
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recurring basis are discussed above. The estimated fair value approximates carrying value for cash and 
cash equivalents, accrued interest and the cash surrender value of life insurance policies. The 
methodologies for other financial assets and financial liabilities are discussed below:  

Loans. The estimated fair value approximates carrying value for variable-rate loans that reprice 
frequently and with no significant change in credit risk. The fair value of fixed-rate loans and variable-
rate loans which reprice on an infrequent basis is estimated by discounting future cash flows using the 
current interest rates at which similar loans with similar terms would be made to borrowers of similar 
credit quality. An overall valuation adjustment is made for specific credit risks as well as general portfolio 
credit risk.

Deposits. The estimated fair value approximates carrying value for demand deposits. The fair value of 
fixed-rate deposit liabilities with defined maturities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using 
the interest rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities. The estimated fair value of 
deposits does not take into account the value of the Company’s long-term relationships with depositors, 
commonly known as core deposit intangibles, which are separate intangible assets, and not considered 
financial instruments. Nonetheless, the Company would likely realize a core deposit premium if its 
deposit portfolio were sold in the principal market for such deposits.  

Borrowed Funds. The estimated fair value approximates carrying value for short-term borrowings. 
The fair value of long-term fixed-rate borrowings is estimated using quoted market prices, if available, or 
by discounting future cash flows using current interest rates for similar financial instruments. The 
estimated fair value approximates carrying value for variable-rate junior subordinated deferrable interest 
debentures that reprice quarterly.  

Loan Commitments, Standby and Commercial Letters of Credit. The Company’s lending commitments 
have variable interest rates and “escape” clauses if the customer’s credit quality deteriorates. Therefore, 
the fair values of these items are not significant and are not included in the following table.  

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2015 are as follows: 

  Carrying   Fair  
(Dollars in Thousands)  Amount   Value  
Financial assets  
    Cash and due from banks  $            30,420   $            30,420
    Due from banks-interest bearing  205,815   205,815
    Investment securities  691,499   691,499
    Loans 
    Accrued interest receivable 
    Loans held for sale 

 1,115,860 
7,356 
1,174 

  1,124,573
7,356
1,174

Financial liabilities     
    Deposits  1,844,664   1,691,542
    Repurchase agreements/borrowed funds 
    Subordinated debentures 
    Accrued interest payable 

 76,250 
27,837 

952 

  79,629
27,837

952

ASC Topic 825 permits the Company to choose to measure eligible items at fair value at specified 
election dates. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value measurement option has been 
elected are reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value option (i) may be 
applied instrument by instrument, with certain exceptions, thus the Company may record identical 
financial assets and liabilities at fair value or by another measurement basis permitted under generally 
accepted accounting principles, (ii) is irrevocable (unless a new election date occurs) and (iii) is applied 
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only to entire instruments and not to portions of instruments. Unrealized gains and losses on items for 
which the fair value measurement option has been elected must be reported in earnings at each subsequent 
reporting date. During the reported periods, the Company had no financial instruments measured at fair 
value under the fair value measurement option. 

Note 14 - Related-Party Transactions 

The Company has entered into transactions with its officers, directors and significant stockholders.  Such 
transactions were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms and conditions, 
including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions 
with other customers, and did not, in the opinion of management, involve more than normal credit risk or 
present unfavorable features.

Activity in related party loans is presented in the following table: 

 4102 5102  )sdnasuohT ni sralloD(
 371,64          $   281,92          $ raey fo gninnigeb ta ecnalaB
     snoitiddA
 904,7   577,5 secnavdA        
 32   52 sutats detaler ot segnahC        
     snoitcudeR
)324,42 ( ) 279,8( snoitcelloC        
 281,92          $   010,62          $ raey fo dne ta ecnalaB

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the total amount of deposits of the Company’s officers, directors and 
significant stockholders were $43,396,000 and $40,154,000, respectively. 

During 2015, the Company entered into construction contracts, totaling $87,000 with one of its principal 
stockholders. The contracts are for the construction and improvements of branch facilities.  Payments 
made for construction contracts during 2015 totaled $89,000, of which $1,000 were for contracts entered 
into in years prior to 2015. Payments in 2014 totaled $50,000. 

The Company leases various facilities under operating leases with related parties that expire at various 
dates through July 2020 with some containing provisions that allow renewal at similar terms.  Total rental 
expense in 2015 and 2014 for all operating leases with related parties was approximately $454,000 and 
$436,000, respectively.   

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments under operating leases with 
related parties as of December 31, 2015 that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year: 

Year ended 
December 31, 

000,59         $ 6102
000,68 7102
000,68 8102
000,38 9102
000,37 0202

The Company engaged in other related party transactions with an aggregate amount of $535,000 during 
2015. These transactions included payments to related parties for office supplies, printing, travel, 
maintenance and repair of other real estate owned property and the Company’s marketing program.   
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Note 15 - Employee Benefits 

Employee Stock Ownership Plan.  The Company has an employee stock ownership plan containing 
Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) provisions in effect for substantially all employees.  An employee 
becomes a participant after completing three months of service provided he or she has attained age 18.  
The Company makes a discretionary matching contribution up to a certain percentage of contributions 
made by the participant. Additional contributions are made at the discretion of the Board of Directors.  
Employee benefits include $527,000 and $475,000 for the employee stock ownership plan for 2015 and 
2014, respectively. 

Note 16 - Share-Based Payments 

The Company has granted stock options providing for the purchase of common stock by certain key 
employees and directors under option plans approved by the stockholders.  

The 2006 Stock Option Plan authorized the issuance of stock options for 150,000 shares at fair value on 
the date of grant. In 2011, the Company terminated the plan except for outstanding awards. During 2015, 
the Company authorized the issuance of a Stock Option Plan for 500,000 shares of common stock at an 
option price not lower than the fair value at day of grant. Any forfeiture will be terminated. The options 
have a vesting period of five years.   

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plan as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and 
changes during the years ended on those dates are presented below: 

 ,13 rebmeceD dednE raeY  
 4102  5102  

    Weighted    Weighted 
Shares Average Shares Average 

Underlying Exercise Underlying Exercise 
Options Price Options Price 

Outstanding at beginning of year  116,811 $     36.69 134,311 $     35.68
- -00.54000,161  detnarG
00.82) 005,61(00.63)005,4( desicrexE
00.54) 000,1(00.54)000,5( detiefrof/deripxE

Outstanding at end of year  268,311 $     41.53 116,811 $     36.69
Options exercisable at end of year  112,311 $     36.72 116,811 $     36.69

   
Range of exercise prices  $35.50 - $45.00 $35.50 - $45.00
Weighted average remaining contractual life  7.51  years 5.19  years
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 
2014: 

   
Year Ended December 31, 

  2015  2014 
Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Shares
Underlying 

Options

Shares
Underlying 

Options
     

$35.50 
$36.00 
$45.00 

 84,188 
14,500 

169,623

84,188 
19,000 
13,623

  268,311  116,811

The Company recognizes the cost of the unvested portion of options issued in prior years using the Black-
Scholes-Merton option pricing model.  This option pricing model relies on highly subjective and variable 
assumptions, including the expected life of the options; the price volatility of the underlying stock; and 
the rate of return a prudent investor could expect in a stable market. This fair value is then amortized on a 
straight-line basis over the requisite service periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting period.  
The forfeiture rate utilized is based on the Company’s historical experience with respect to stock options 
issued in prior periods. 

During 2008, the Stock Appreciation Right Bonus Plan was established to provide a means through which 
the Company can attract and retain able individual to serve as employees, directors or consultants of the 
Company and to provide a means whereby employees may be awarded for their contributions to the 
Company. The right shall vest in a series of 5 equal yearly installments on each anniversary of the date of 
grant, however an award shall not be vested and/or exercisable prior to the date on which the holder has 
completed two continuous years of service. 

Outstanding rights at December 31, 2015: 

Date of 
Award 

Number of  
Appreciation

Rights

Stock Value 
On Grant 

Date 

Value at 
December 31,  

2015 
2009 1,938 $         40.00 $            5,813 
2011 65,812 35.50 493,590 
2013 7,500 38.25 35,625 
2014 27,500 43.25 - 
2015 21,000 43.25 - 

 123,750 $        535,028 

Total compensation cost for share-based payments was ($17,000) in 2015 and $214,000 in 2014, net of 
tax (expense) benefit of ($9,000) and $115,000, respectively.

Note 17 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

In the normal course of business, the Company makes various commitments and incurs certain contingent 
liabilities that are not presented in the accompanying financial statements. These commitments and 
contingent liabilities include commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and credit card 
guarantees. 
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Commitments under standby letters of credit aggregated $5,398,000 and $7,649,000 at December 31, 
2015 and 2014, respectively. Commitments to fund loans were approximately $110,176,000 and 
$135,269,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the 
Company had guarantees on credit cards to its customers totaling $713,000 and $503,000, respectively. 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. The Company evaluates each customer’s 
creditworthiness on a case by case basis.  The amount of the collateral obtained, if it is deemed necessary 
by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the 
counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include certificates of deposit, accounts receivable, 
inventory, equipment and real estate. 

Standby letters of credit and financial guarantees written are a conditional commitment issued by the 
Company to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing 
letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. The 
Company holds various types of collateral supporting those commitments for which collateral is deemed 
necessary, which may include certificates of deposit, accounts receivable, inventory, equipment and real 
estate. The Company did not incur any loss on its commitments in 2015 or 2014. Management does not 
anticipate any material losses as a result of its commitments and contingent liabilities. 

The Company has entered into long-term agreements for certain data processing and computer software 
products and services. The data processing and computer software contracts provide for minimum 
monthly payments and additional charges based upon volume.  These agreements expire in various years 
through 2020 and contain provisions that allow renewal at similar terms. Total expense from these 
agreements amounted to $2,694,000 and $2,480,000 in 2015 and 2014, respectively.   

Aggregate minimum contractual payments under these agreements for the next five years are as follows:  

Year ended 
December 31, 

000,417,2    $ 6102
000,182,1 7102
000,862,1 8102
000,769 9102
000,304 0202

The Company leases various facilities under operating leases expiring at various dates through October 
2023 with some containing provisions that allow renewal at similar terms.  Total rental expense in 2015 
and 2014 for all operating leases was approximately $1,020,000 and $960,000, respectively.   

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments for each of the next five years 
under operating leases as of December 31, 2015 that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one 
year: 

Year ended 
December 31, 

000,374       $ 6102
000,463 7102
000,563 8102
000,382 9102
000,261 0202
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The Company is a defendant in legal actions arising in connection with its ordinary course of business 
that are in various stages of litigation and investigation by the Company and its legal counsel. After 
reviewing with counsel the actions pending involving the Company, management believes that the 
ultimate resolution of these matters will not materially affect the Company’s financial position. 

Note 18 - Earnings Per Share 

Basic net income per share (“EPS”) was computed by dividing net income available to common 
stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year.   

Diluted net income per share was computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of 
common shares and common stock equivalents outstanding during the year.  The diluted net income per 
share computations include the effects of common stock equivalents applicable to stock option contracts 
and are determined using the treasury stock method. 

The table below presents a reconciliation of basic and diluted net income per share computations. 

 ,13 rebmeceD dedne raeY 
 4102  5102 )ataD erahS reP tpecxE ,sdnasuohT ni sralloD(

    
Net income available to common shareholders $         11,626  $       10,745

   serahs nommoc fo rebmun egareva dethgieW
    outstanding used in basic 263,770,6  552,489,5 noitaluclac SPE

    seitiruces evitulid fo esicrexe demussa ddA
518,61  294,71 snoitpo kcots - gnidnatstuo    

   serahs nommoc fo rebmun egareva dethgieW
    outstanding used in diluted basic EPS calculation 6,001,747  6,094,177

77.1           $  49.1             $ SPE cisaB
67.1           $  49.1             $ SPE detuliD

Note 19 - Regulatory Matters 

The Bank, as a National Bank, is subject to the dividend restrictions set forth by the Comptroller of the 
Currency (the “OCC”).  Under such restrictions, the Bank may not, without the prior approval of the 
OCC, declare dividends in excess of the current year’s earnings (as defined) plus the retained earnings (as 
defined) from the prior two years or pay any dividend which would cause the Bank to become 
undercapitalized.

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking 
agencies.  Failure to meet the minimum regulatory capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and 
possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that if undertaken, could have a direct material 
effect on the Company and the consolidated financial statements.  Under the regulatory capital adequacy 
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company must meet specific 
capital guidelines involving quantitative measures of the Company’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-
balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.  The Company’s capital amounts 
and classification under the prompt corrective action guidelines are also subject to qualitative judgments 
by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company to 
maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total risk-based capital and Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets 
(as defined in the regulations), and Tier I capital to adjusted total assets (as defined).  Management 
believes, as of December 31, 2015, that the Company meets all the capital adequacy requirements to 
which it is subject. 
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As of December 31, 2015, the most recent notification from the regulators categorized the Company and 
the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.  To be 
categorized as well capitalized, the Company and the Bank have to maintain minimum or greater total 
risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios as disclosed in the table below. 

There are no conditions or events since the most recent notification that management believes have 
changed the Bank’s prompt corrective action category. 

 lleW eB oT         
 dezilatipaC       

 tpmorP rednU  latipaC roF   
 snoisivorP noitcA  sesopruP ycauqedA  lautcA 
 oitaR  tnuomA  oitaR  tnuomA  oitaR  tnuomA )sdnasuohT ni sralloD(

      
      .cnI ,saxeT-serahscnaB lanoitaN ratS enoL
     5102 ,13 rebmeceD

    Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 284,580 21.13% $   80,814  6.0%  $ 107,752 8.0%
    Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 267,627 19.87% $   60,610  4.5%  $   87,548 6.5%
    Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) $ 267,627 12.42% $   86,190  4.0%  $ 107,738 5.0%

      
     4102 ,13 rebmeceD

    Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 275,154 21.32% $ 103,230  8.0%  $ 129,037 10.0%
    Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 258,861 20.06% $   51,615  4.0%  $   77,422 6.0%
    Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) $ 258,861 11.92% $   86,877  4.0%  $ 108,596 5.0%

    
     knaB lanoitaN ratS enoL
     5102 ,13 rebmeceD

    Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)  $ 260,409 19.48% $   80,206  6.0%  $ 106,941 8.0%
    Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 243,582 18.22% $   60,154  4.5%  $   86,889 6.5%
    Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) $ 243,582 11.37% $   85,698  4.0%  $ 107,122 5.0%

   
     4102 ,13 rebmeceD

    Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)  $ 245,825 19.29% $ 101,938  8%  $ 127,422 10.0%
    Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) $ 229,731 18.03% $   50,969  4%  $   76,453 6.0%
    Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) $ 229,731 10.62% $   86,506  4%  $ 108,133 5.0%

      

During 2012 the Bank agreed to the issuance of a Consent Order by the Comptroller of the Currency.  The 
primary focus of the order is to strengthen the Bank’s controls and procedures over compliance with the 
Bank Secrecy Act.  Compliance with the order requires enhanced due diligence in managing risk inherent 
with the Bank’s customer base and with foreign correspondent relationships. The Bank is reviewing and 
revising, where appropriate, its controls to ensure compliance with reporting required under the act. 
Management believes the Bank is on track to be in full compliance with the order. 

The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency staff and United States Department of the Treasury 
Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (“FinCEN”) staff have been conducting non-public 
investigations, which are focused principally on the Bank’s compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act and 
the Bank’s foreign correspondent banking relationship with Banco Azteca, which terminated in 2012.  
The Bank has fully cooperated with the OCC and FinCEN, and currently there has not been any ongoing 
dialogue by staff with the OCC and FinCEN concerning these issues.  The Bank does not believe that the 
issues raised by the OCC and FinCEN staff affect the material adequacy of the Bank’s consolidated 
financial statements.  At this time, the Bank cannot predict the outcome of these investigations, nor can it 
predict the timing associated with any such conclusion or resolution. 
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Note 20 - Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)” ASU 2014-09 implements a 
common revenue standard that clarified the principles for recognizing revenue. The core principle of ASU 
2014-09 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to 
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods or services. To achieve that core principle, an entity should apply the following 
steps: (i) identify the contract(s) with a customer, (ii) identify the performance obligations in the contract, 
(iii) determine the transaction price, (iv) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in 
the contract and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. The 
FASB recently issued ASU 2015-14, “Revenue form Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) – Deferral of 
the Effective Date” which deferred the effective date of ASU 2014-09 by one year to January 1, 2018. 
Currently, the potential impact of ASU 2014-09 is being evaluated for the Company’s financial 
statements.   

ASU 2014-11, Transfers and Servicing (Topic 860).” ASU 2014-11 requires the repurchase-to-maturity 
transactions be accounted for as secured borrowings consistent with the accounting for other repurchase 
agreements. In addition, ASU 2014-11 requires separate accounting for repurchase financings, which 
entails the transfer of a financial asset executed contemporaneously with a repurchase agreement with the 
same counterparty. ASU 20145-11 requires entities to disclose certain information about transfers 
accounted for as sales in transactions that are economically similar to repurchase agreements. In addition, 
ASU 2014-11 required disclosures related to collateral, remaining contractual tenor and of the potential 
risk associated with repurchase agreements, securities lending transactions and repurchase-to-maturity 
transactions. ASU 2014-11 became effective on January 1, 2015 and did not have a significant impact on 
the Company’s financial statements.      

ASU 2015-03, Interest-Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt 
Issuance Cost. ASU 2015-03 requires that debt issuance cost related to a recognized debt liability be 
presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, 
consistent with debt discounts. The recognition and measurement guidance for debt issuance cost are not 
affected by the amendments in ASU 2015-03. ASU 2015-03 will be effective for the Company on 
January 1, 2016, though early adoption is permitted. ASU 2015-03 is not expected to have a significant 
impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
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Rio Grande Valley Locations
Brownsville
3300 N. Expressway 83
  • Mortgage Center  •  ATM  •  Motor Bank

2100 Boca Chica Boulevard
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

Edinburg
117 S. 10th Avenue
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

Harlingen
1901 N. Ed Carey Drive, Suite 100
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

918 W. Harrison Avenue
(Motor Bank)
  • ATM

Hidalgo
633 S. International Boulevard
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

McAllen
520 E. Nolana Avenue
(Corporate Office)

5515 N. 10th Street
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

200 Lindberg Avenue
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

1300 E. Ridge Road
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

600 E. Nolana Avenue
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

5537 N. McColl Road
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

800 N. Main Street, Suite 600
  (Located at the Art Village on Main)
  • ATM

2109 S. 10th Street
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

Mission
2003 E. Griffin Parkway
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

1100 S. Bryan Road
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

Palmview
720 E. Veterans Boulevard
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

Pharr
206 W. Ferguson Avenue
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

1201 S. Cage Boulevard
(Motor Bank)
  • ATM

118 South Cage Boulevard
  (Located at the Pharr City Hall Building)
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

Port Isabel
202 E. Queen Isabella Boulevard
(Motor Bank)
  • ATM

Rio Grande City
2300 E. Highway 83
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

201 N. Texas Street
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

Roma
305 E. Grant Street
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

South Padre Island
601 Padre Boulevard
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

Weslaco
214 S. Texas Boulevard
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

620 W. Expressway 83
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

San Antonio Locations
7954 Fredericksburg Road
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank 

10000 San Pedro Avenue
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

6986 S. Zarzamora Street
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

15326 Huebner Road
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

381 N. Loop 1604 W.
  • ATM  •  Motor Bank

Mortgage Centers
McAllen
4500 N. 10th Street, Suite 305

San Antonio
930 Proton, Suite 106

Lone Star Insurance Services
520 E. Nolana Avenue, Suite 110
McAllen, Texas 78504

LSNB Investment Services
520 E. Nolana Avenue, Suite 120
McAllen, Texas 78504

Offsite ATM Locations
Alton
605 S. Alton Boulevard
  (Located Across Alton City Hall)

Edinburg
5502 S. McColl Road
  (Located Inside The Women’s Hospital at
   Renaissance)

5501 S. McColl Road
  (Located Inside Doctors Hospital at
   Renaissance)

1380 W. University Drive

100 N. Closner Boulevard
  (Hidalgo County Courthouse)

100 E. Freddy Gonzalez Drive
  (Located Inside Edinburg Municipal Court)

415 W. University Drive
  (Located Inside Edinburg City Hall)

2802 S. Business Highway 281
  (Located Inside The Hidalgo County
   Administration Building)

315 E. Palm Drive
  (Located Inside The Edinburg Wellness Center)

1510 S. Highway 336

McAllen
3700 Buddy Owens Avenue
  (Located at Burger King)

Palmhurst
4121 N. Conway Avenue

Pharr
3000 N. Cage Boulevard
  (Located Inside The Pharr Events Center)

Progreso
251 S. International Boulevard
  (Located at the Progreso International Bridge)

Roma
2897 E. Grant Street

San Juan
400 N. Virgen de San Juan Boulevard
  (Located Outside the Shrine Gift Shop &
   Inside the Basilica Shrine)

Securities, financial planning, and insurance products offered
through LPL Financial and its affiliates, A Registered

Investment Advisor, Member, FINRA/SIPC.

Lone Star National Bank and LSNB Investment Services
are not registered broker/dealers and are not affiliated with

LPL Financial.

Insurance products offered through Lone Star Insurance Services.

INVESTMENT AND INSURANCE PRODUCTS ARE:
NOT A DEPOSIT • NOT FDIC INSURED

NOT INSURED BY ANY FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY
NOT GUARANTEED BY THE BANK • MAY LOSE VALUE

Banking Centers,
Mortgage & ATM Locations
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Social Responsibility

Making a Difference In Our Community



Lone Star National Bank opened for business on January 23, 1983 in Pharr, Texas. 
Conducting business in a small, 3,000 square-foot, temporary building and with only ten 
employees, the bank opened its doors with the objective of making the future more 
prosperous for the community.

Over the next two decades, Lone Star National Bank expanded continuously opening 
banking centers throughout the Valley, beginning with its first banking center in Hidalgo 
County on April 4, 1994, at 200 Lindberg in McAllen. In August 2000, the bank opened 
the banking center outside Hidalgo County in Rio Grande City and then entered the 
Cameron County market in July 2001, with a banking center at 3300 N. Expressway 83 
in Brownsville. In March 2010, the bank opened the first banking center in Bexar County 
at 40 NE Loop 410, Suite 408, in San Antonio. By December 2011, the bank opened the 
fourth banking center in San Antonio. In 2013, two additional full-service banking 
centers were opened located at 15326 Huebner and 381 N. Loop 1604 W.

Today, Lone Star National Bank is a technologically advanced, full-service, independent, 
community bank with over 700 employees and 32 locations across South Texas. Our 
rapid growth is attributable to several factors such as offering personal “value added” 
customer service and providing a rewarding environment for our employees. In addition, 
we stay true to our mission of supporting individuals and small businesses who 
contribute to the growth of their communities.  As a financial institution we are 
committed to staying at the forefront of technological advances by offering products like 
LSNB Mobile™ (mobile banking), Office Banker™ (remote capture) and LSNB Card 
Manager™ (debit card control) which allows us to bring the bank to our customers’ 
fingertips.

These factors, combined with the support of our stockholders, customers, neighbors and 
friends, have made Lone Star National Bank a well-known success and a leader in the 
financial services industry in South Texas.

Our History
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Member FDIC Federal Reserve System and Lone Star National Bancshares-Texas, Inc.

520 E. Nolana Avenue
McAllen, Texas 78504

1.800.580.0322
www.lonestarnationalbank.com
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